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Town Centre Securities PLC

At a glance

TCS is a UK real estate investment trust
that has built a diversified, mixed use

portfolio with a high-quality tenant base

focused on regional centres, primarily
Leeds and Manchester.

Our portfolio covers a wide range of sectors:

]

Office Space
t of prime office

space. let to long-standing tenants
including Leeds City Council.

Portfolio value

22

(]

Residential

Completed our first purpose-built
private rental sector building

in 2019 and have plans to develop
more residential properties.

Portfalio value

60

(2]

Retail & Leisur

Focused on the more stable
supermarket, discount, and
convenience retailing sector.
Leisure portfolio includes
restaurants, coffee shops, gyms
and a tenpin bowling facility.

Portfolio value

47

=]

Car Parking

Pioneering technology focused
car parking operalor managing
car parks in key locations in Leeds,
London, Manchester and Watford.

Portfolio value

Hotels

Own two hotels in Leeds at the year
end, one let o and operated by
Premier Inn, and one managed by
TCS under the ibis brand.

Portfolio value

6

[e]

Developments

Development portfolio of over
£600m GOV principally comprises.
large city centre sites at Piccadilly
Basin in Manchester and Whitehall
Road in Leeds, centred on office
and residential opportunities.

Portfolio value
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Town Centre Securities PLC

Market overview

With its 60 year heritage,
TCS has a long history of
delivering returns over the
longer term. We achieve this
by responding to market trends
to build opportunities for the
future, while at the same time

ing chall tothe

Long-term relationships with our
tenants and active asset management
are key parts of our business model
and we are working together to
negotiate solutions to help our tenants
manage their cash flow, including
offering rent-free periods or deferred
payments. Our long-term and flexible
h will enable us to navigate the

business effectively and in
the interests of our broader
stakeholders.

Here we identify the key developments
which we expect to impact our
business now and in the future and
set out how we are responding.

COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has had a
significant impact on our business,
our tenants and the UK economy with
shops, restaurants, offices and car
parks closed for several months in the
first half of 2020. Social distancing
measures and other restrictions are
expected to remain in place for some
time to come, changing the way

that retail and leisure space is both
accessed and used by customers.

How we are responding

COVID-19 has had a material impact
on our car parking division in the short
term as people have stayed at home
and not used their cars. We have
minimised our expenditure during
this period by closing car parks and
furloughing staff. However, as the
£economy opens up, we expect our
operations to pick up relatively rapidly
and see a short-term opportunity as
consumers move away from public
transport in response to social

current challenging environment and
we are confident in our ability to help
generate future economic growth in
the regions in which we operate.

Changing consumer

shopping habits

Changes in consumer spending habits
due to the rise in online shopping

are challenging the retail sector’s
traditional business model of operating
large stores on the high street and

in shopping centres. While town and
city centres began to address falling
footfall by evolving their offering to
provide more food and beverage
outlets, other experiences and boost
their night time economy, physical
retail sales have continued to fall
steadily, leading to shop closures and
job losses. The COVID-19 pandemic
has only served to accelerate this trend.

How we are responding

In line with our strategy, we are
continuing to diversify our portfolio

to reduce our retail exposure; retail
and leisure now accounts for less than
47% of our portfolio value, down from
70% in 2016. We are looking to recycle
some of the receipts to accelerate
our diversification strategy going
forward through acquisitions and by
developing our landbank to deliver
schemes such as our consented PRS

transport company’s and concerns for
their own wellbeing.

Our property division has not been

as significantly impacted in FY2020,
as the vast majority of tenants pay
quarterly rent in advance, meaning
approximately 87% of rent due has
been paid or a deferred payment
agreed until the end of June. However,
we expect to see a longer-term impact
as tenants face challenges with cash
flow and the ability to pay their rent

in a timely manner.

Eider House in Piccadilly
Basin, Manchester and also taking

the opportunity to re-purpase assets
where there is a strong commercial
case to do so.

We have accelerated our retail
and leisure disposal programme,
and agreed over £40m of sales in
September 2020. This will lower
the proportion of retail and leisure
to close to 40%.

UK economic growth

Over the past few years, political
attention has focused on rebalancing
the UK economy. While there is

great uncertainty around the short-
term outlook, in the longer term we
expect government initiatives and
investment in long-term infrastructure
projects to lead to greater economic
growth outside the South East and
the strengthening of major cities in
the North West and North East, in
particular Leeds and Manchester.

How we are responding

79% of our assets are focated in Leeds
and Manchester, including most of
our landbank and we also have a
long-standing presence in Scotland,
where we see continue to see
opportunities, particularly in Glasgow.
Leeds is already attracting significant
investment with economic growth of
8.3% forecast over the next five years.
Manchester is the leading professional
and business service centre outside
of London and Greater Manchester's
economy is forecast to grow at a rate
of 14% over the next five years. Local
market knowledge of the regions in
which we operate combined with our
flexible business model and long-term
development portfolio of over E600m
mean we are well-positioned to take
advantage of investment in these
areas by developing high-quality
assets on a case-by-case basis when
opportunities arise.

Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Flexible working

and office space

Companigs have successlully
uansitioned to remote working as

a resull of COVID-19, and many will
adopt a more balanced approach
going forward, nevertheless we expect
to see continued demand for high-
quality office space which can also
provide flexibility of use. We also
believe that businesses will be seeking
more of a blend of fixed and flexible
and short-term office space, to enable
them to work in 3 more efficient and
agile way. Now, more than ever,
husiness agility is crucial to companies’
chances of survival and a return 1o
sustained growth.

How we are responding
Office space currently accounts
for 20% of our portfolio and our
development pipeline comprises
predominantly office and residental
assets. Our portfolio consisis of

i uality office spaces in city
centres. The majority of these,
including 123 Albion Street and Ducie
House, are multi-tenanted and we
reclevelop and upgrade these offices
to provide flexible and functional
space. At Ducie House tenants can
take advantage of a variety of lease
structures and our active asset
managemenl means that occupancy
can be flexed to meet the requirements
of companies as they giow. Our
flexible approach means that we are
hands on with our tenants and have
built strong relationships with many
entrepreneurial businesses, working
with them through the cycle.

Impact on Earnings of COVID-19

01. Strategic Report

Environmentally friendly

and sustainable solutions
Consumers are increasingly focused
on the environmental impact of

their activities and are looking

for environmentally friendly and
sustainable options. In the property
sector, this includes minimising the
environmental impact of buildings
and developing sustainable and
energy efficient solutions, as well as
considering the health and wellbeing
of tenants. From outside space to the
increased pro n of cycle racks and
the introduction of shower facilities,
changing rcoms and lockers as part of
our office developments to providing
EV chaiging points across our car
parks and in new developments as
the number of electric vebhicles in use
by commuters grows rapidly, we are
flexing our products to best meet the
demands of consumers and make our
buildings a great place to work, spend
leisure time and shop.

How we are responding

Across our buildings we integrate
high standards of environmental
design and target the latest standards
including BREEAM Excellent and the
WELL Building Standard in our new
developments. We have also built
three of our own solar photovoliaic
farms in Leeds and Manchester, which
generated over 200,000 kwh of
energy in FY2020, and continue to look
at innovative ways 10 further reduce
our environmental impact.

In our car parking division, we are
nvesting significantly in solutions for
electric vehicles, including installing EV
charging in all our car parks, expanding
our EV supply and introducing rapid
chargers at the Merrion Centre in Leeds
10 help future-proof the business.

Total £3.6m

Propeny £1.2m

ibis Hote!
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Chairman & Chief Executive’s statement

Many financial years have ups and downs, | &&

but few have seen such contrasting | have been very
periods as this one. Though we have pleased with
sought to iron out the peaks and troughs the ability of the

of the property market for many years, business to adapt in
the COVID-19 crisis has presented entirely | such circumstances
new challenges for the business and for and by the flexibility
our stakeholders. and resilience

The final third of FY20 has been Of our tenants

avery challenging time, but and employees.

I believe that when the going

gets tough, the true strengths
of a business emerge.

As well as demonstrating the
soundness of our strategic direction,

I have been very pleased with the
ability of the business to adapt in
challenging circumstances and
impressed by the flexibility and
resilience our tenants and employees
We have long prided ourselves on have demonstrated. The contribution
being a conservatively managed of every single member of the TCS
business with a focus on fong-term. team has been exemplary, and | would
sustainable performance, and a like to extend my personal thanks to all.
number of strategic moves we have

made in recent years have protected

us from the worst impacts of COVID-19.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive

Performance

It should not be overlaoked that we
had a strong first two thirds of the year,
with good numbers and progress made
against our strategic initiatives.

We progressed with redevelopment
projects at Ducie House and 123 Albion
Street. We also launched Burlington
House, our first private rented sector
(PRS) development and initial take

up was strong. In recognition of the
success of that scheme, we were
named Apartment Developer of the
Year at the North West Residential
Property Awards, an excellent
achievement and testament to the
high standard of the work. We also
won two new car park management
contracts, including the Manchester
Arena car park, building on our
successful partnership with John Lewis
in Cheltenham.

However, COVID-19 has understandably
i our financial perf

portfolio, which is down 6.9% year
on year, with net asset value also down
£32.8m or 17.4% to £155.5m.

These are clearly disappointing
numbers, but with earnings impacted
by £3.6m due to COVID-19, and our
valuation results significantly better
than other companies with less resilient
retail portfolios; we are reassured by the
resilience of our portfolio and our full
compliance with all covenants. With our
decision to accelerate asset sales and
with significant progress already made
post 30 June 2020, | firmly see this as
an inflexion point from which we can
successfully move forwards.

COVID-18 response

From the onset of the crisis in March,
we have ensured informed decision-
making and close control through
weekly Board meetings and separate
weekly meetings for myself and our
N ive Directors.

This is the first year that our financial
statements are presented in
accordance with IFRS 16, which affects
how we account for leases and is
further discussed in the financial review.
Excluding the effect of IFRS 16, adjusted
EPRA earnings were down £3.7m on

the prior year to £2.6m. We report a
statutory loss for the year, on an IFRS 16
basis, of £24.2m, down £11.7m year on
year, largely due to the negative impact
the crisis has had on the value of our

Proportion of retail and leisure

Rasd mora on 08ges 12-13

* 2021 (post Sepiembor 2020 salos)

Afongside protecting the health and
wellbeing of our staff and stakeholders,
our main priority has been cash flow
management. We have always paid
close and careful attention to cash
flow and borrowing headroom, and
we immediately did everything we
could to minimise costs and preserve
cash. All non-essential spending was
stopped; we closed over half of our
car parks; we accessed a number of
the Government's support schemes

Asset sales

£42.5m

ad mord on page 1

including deferrals of VAT and other
taxes and the furlough scheme.
Additionally, all Board members agreed
ta reduce their salary by 20% for

six months.

Out of our control has been the
significant impact on some segments
of our property portfolio, specifically
the retail and leisure sector and our car
park businesses. Our financial results
for the year ending 30 June 2020

have been impacted by COVID-19 by
an estimated £3.6m loss to earnings;
include providing for £1.7m of rental
income and service charge not
received in the period, a net reduction
to our CitiPark business of £2.0m, and
a £0.4m impact to our ibis Styles hotel.

However, the unigue nature of our
property portfolio as it stands today

has given us stability. The significant
reduction in our exposure to high street
retail, that we have worked towards over
the past five to ten years, has proved
invaluable during this period, and

the crisis has led us to accelerate our
strategy of diversifying away from retail
and leisure in the portfolio.

The biggest threat to the business
lies in the risk of continued reductions
in property values, which could
threaten banking covenants and
future borrowing headroom. We were
pleased, however, to have extended
our NatWest facility by a further year
without additional cost.

Netasset value per share

ead more o page 47



Town Centre Securities PLC

Chairman & Chief Executive'’s statement

continued

Total headroom at 30 June 2020
stood at £14.8m.

Despite the crisis, we have decided to
press ahead with key refurbi:

supply chain in jeopardy. Thereisa

Finally, for our shareholders, we are very

in
that all creditors should be treated
equally. We hope that in light of this
the

at 123 Albion Street and Ducie House.
These are high-guality opportunities
and we expect demand for office
space will return as the quidance

on working from home eases. Our
development pipeline is full of similarly
exciting opportunities and we envision
moving forwards with the next phase
of residential property development
at Eider House in h when

will seek toii

to break a 60-year track
record of delivering a maintained or
increased dividend. The unpredictable
nature of the COVID-19 crisis has made

to prevent
companies acting in this way in the
future. We have been able to support
our tenants in part thanks to our strong
relationships with our banks and
debenture holders.

The importance of good stakeholder
engagement with our funders has been

itis prudent to do so.

Our stakeholders
We approached the crisis with

i ion for our key
groups and the potential long-term
impacts our decisions may have on
them lie at the heart of our thinking.

We have always sought to work
closely with our tenants, building
trusting partnerships. Such long-term
relationships have been key during this
period, allowing us to understand the
changing needs of tenants and share
their pain where we can. We worked
closely with many tenants to agree
payment plans during the peak of the
crisis and are now helping to ensure
the safe and successful reopening

of their businesses.

Most tenants have acted responsibly
and in good faith in difficult
circumstances, however, it has been
frustrating that some, such as Boots,
have not been so considerate and
have taken of legislatit

again during this crisis.

1 have been particularly proud of the
respanse from our colleagues. The
vast majarity of our staff transitioned

to working from home, and in doing

so demonstrated great flexibility and
resolve. We chose to furlough 53

staff, predominantly CitiPark branch
employees, and | would like to thank
those colleagues for their patience

and understanding. Making use of the
furlough scheme was a necessary step,
but 1 am pleased that during a difficult
time for all, we were able to continue
to pay all staff 100% of their salaries.
We expect a lot from our staff. however
we hope we have demonstrated that
we are always there to support them
when they need it.

I would also like to take this opportunity
to thank Lynda Shillaw, who has now
left the business as Group Property
Director. As a long-standing friend

of TCS we wish her and her family

well and wish her wellin her future.
Following Lynda's departure, we have

put in place far companies who
wouldn't otherwise be able to afford
their rent. We were also extremely
disappointed with JD Sports in relation
to the administration of its subsidiary
Go Outdoors, a tenant at our Piccadilly
Basin site. For a large, profitable and
valuable company, their unwillingness
to stand by leases they had only
recently acquired is

Helen Green to the role

of Property Director, and appointed
Craig Burrow, previously Director of
Leeds at Bruntwood, as Development
Director. Both will report to me and as.
a result of these changes we will not be
appointing a Group Property Director.

In line with our tong history of being
a local business with strong ties to

and reflects very poorly on their senior
management. Knowing they were
impacted by COVID-19, we made
proposals to share the impact. However,
with their chosen approach landlords
have had to 1ake all the rental pain.

We presume they haven't treated their
trade suppliers in the same manner,
otherwise they would have put their

10

our ities, we were proud to
be able to offer free car parking and
concessionary hotel accommodation
to hardwarking NHS staff. We also
championed many other initiatives
set up by our tenants to support key
workers, the elderly and the most
wvulnerable in the community during
the pandemic.

the decision to reduce the final dividend
payment for the year unavoidable.

We are pleased that we are able to pay
a1.75p final dividend, totalling 5.00p
for the full year. However, we recognise
that this represents a significant
reduction for shareholders.

Outlook

| am extremely grateful to my
colleagues and staff, who have done an
excellent job in difficult circumstances.
With most of our portfolio apen and
trading again, and staff returning to the
office, the business is recovering. It is
now time for us to return to business

as usual. Our conservative and flexible
approach has allowed for our continued
operation despite the disruption;
however looking forwards, we face an
unprecedented level of uncertainty.

The acceleration of our disposal
programme, though essential for
generating cash, reducing risk and
strengthening our foundations, will
have an effect on earnings and our
dividend levels in the coming years.
That said, some of the cash generated
from sales will be available to reinvest
where it’s needed most, and we will
do all we can to see a return to
previous levels as soon as possible.

There are many reasons to be
positive though. Our portfalio is
unique and diversified, and our
development pipeline continues

1o be a key differentiator for us.

We are not currently committed to
any single project but have £600m
of development opportunities in the
pipeline, with flexibility over when
and how these can be defivered.

Overall, | have been very satisfied with
our response to an unprecedented
situation. Despite the ongoing
challenges of COVID-19, | am certain
that we remain an excellent long-term
investment proposition.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive

R

lowe Peter, and another lormer
director, David Whitehead, an
enormous debt of gratitucle, i
particular for mentoring me in my
eatly days in the business. Much of
my knowledge and experience was
influenced for the better by Peter's
involvement. Peter became not anly
atrusted and valued colleague at
TCS. and advisor to the Ziff family,
but was a close personal friend who
is sorely missed.

1 would like to personally acknowledge
his huge contribution to TCS over

the course of 30 years, many of our
shareholders will have known Peter
well. All of us at TCS would like to offer
our condolences 10 his wile Barbara,
his sons Philip and David and his
daughter Jane.

| Report & Accounts 2020
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Peter Warrington,
TCS's third
employee and its
Finance Director
from 1963-1993,
sadly passed away
in June 2020.
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Actively managing assets Maximising available capital

Strategy in action

[

Ducie House

We acquired Ducie House in 2018,
further extending our ownership
in Piccadilly Basin, Manchester.

Ducie House is a 33,000 sq ft
flexible office conversion, originally
a petticoat factory. The property is
a multi-tenanted office, occupied
predominantly by technology and
creative industry companies. The
variety of product provides a wide
choice for tenants with spaces of up
to circa 4,000 sq ft, as well as the
flexibility for businesses to expand
within the building as they grow.

TCS bought the site for £9.0m as
a strategic acquisition with four key
asset management considerations:

0. To eliminate the potential rights
of light claim (valued at £1.5-£2m)
on our Eider House development the
value of which has been removed
from the ongoing valuation.

0O Toincrease tand holdings around
Piccadilly Basin and to increase the
non-retail element of our portfolio.

O The opportunity for a new X
development on the 63-space car
park at the rear of the building.

O The opportunity to update and
refurbish the building to further
increase appeal and increase
rental income.

The acquisition solved the right of
light issue and we now have planning
permission for Eider House and are
determining appropriate timing.

Our proportion of retail and leisure
assets continues to reduce, and plans
for a 60,000 sq ft interlinking office
with an end value of over £2im and
£1.3m of income are being developed.

‘We are now underway with a £2m
refurbishment of this unique office
building with key aspects of the work
including essential fabric and M&E
repairs post acquisition. We adopted a
strategy of restructuring the building’s

14

configuration to provide two additionat
meeting rooms, shower facifities

and break-out space. We have also
refurbished the common parts on the
upper floors to provide further amenity
space including break-out booths with
balcony space and improved toilet/
kitchen facilities. We have restructured
the space within the building to provide
larger office space to accommodate
greater requirements and facilitate
organic growth within the building.

Critical to the decision to proceed
with this investment was the benefits
derived for all stakeholders, including:

Investors:
O Increasing net income by circa
£0.3m per annum.

O Delivering a post investment
return in excess of 8.5%.

Tenants:

O Providing improved common space
with high-quality entrance and
reception, improved lifts, heating
and air-conditioning.

DO Increasing the availability of some
larger office spaces giving more
flexibility to tenants as they grow
their businesses.

Employees:
O Creating a better quality working
environment for our on-site staff.

Communities:

O Improving the overall tone and
feel of Piccadilly Basin as a whole
for all visitars.

As the COVID-18 disruption hit we had
already started this redevelopment but
made the conscious decision to halt
works and preserve cash during the
height of the uncertainty. We have now
restarted the works and expect to be
completed by Autumn 2020.

In arder to facilitate the safe working
of the contractors and to provide
our tenants with a much needed
break in rental commitments we
have agreed that 21 tenants would
vacate the property for four months,
rent-free, allowing for completion of
the refurbishment. This did increase
the effective cost to TCS by £80k,
but the ability to support our tenants
and proceed with the development
outweighed this additional cost.

At the June 2020 valuation Ducie
House has been valued at £7.95m,
and it is expected to increase by a
further ¢. £1.0m following completion
of the development, with the
opportunity to improve further as
we move rental incomes forward.

Ducie House - estimated value

£795m

Strategy in action

©On Ist April 2020 we took over

the management services of the
Manchester Arena car park, a

978 space MSCP in the heart of
Manchester. Despite the obvious
challenges presented at this time.
we successlully navigated the
handove: from the predecessor and
oversaw the instalfation of a new
skidata parking management system.

Welcoming 1.2 million customers
every year, Manchester Arena is one
of the busiest venues in the wold and
the largest indoor Arena in Europe.
Hosting some of the biggest name:

in music, boxing and comedy, the
Manchesler Arena car park puls you
right at the heart of the action. As welt
as providing parking for arena visitor
1his car park is also ideally located for
the National Football Museum, Corn
Exchange and the iconic Arndale
shopping centee.

Working with the owness of the
arena car park we have agreed

an initial two-year fixed term
contract with the option to extend.
The opportunity presented by
management agreements means

there is no capital outlay by CitiPark

whilst still producing a fixed
management fee per annum.
In addition to this, our agreement

also allows us 10 earn a profit shaie

percentage should the car park
achieve pre-agreed largels.

2]

Manchester Arena
Car Park

Our CitiPark car parking business
has long been an important part
of TCS and provides a significant
profit contribution.

We see the CiliPark business

a growth opportunity leveraging our
operational and technological areas

of expertise. A key pait of this growth
sirategy is car park management,

a business line that allows the business
to generate good profitability without
capital commitments - a key element
of the wider business strategy.

Annual Arena Customers

1.2m
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Investing in development pipeline

Strategy in action
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Burlington House

Burlington House is our first
dedicated Private Rented Sector
(PRS) property.

Located in our Piccadilly Basin
development site in Manchester,

the 91-unit SimpsonHaugh designed
property achieved practical completion
in the late summer of 2019 and had
fully let by September 2019.

Burlington House was a strategic
next phase in realising our significant
development pipefine which stands
at over £600m (see page 29).

TCS's strategy is to unlock each
element of the pipeline separately,
determining the best moment to
fund and to develop. This investment
represents the Company’s first

pure PRS development and further
diversified the portfolio, and opens
the way to a larger PRS offering from
further devetopment land we own

in Piccadilly Basin.

The investment was undertaken in
a 50/50 joint venture with Highgrove
Group, with c. 60%

Burlington House, was awarded
‘Apartment Development of the
Year' (fewer than 100 homes) at

the prestigious Insider North West
Residential Property Awards 2019.
The judges recognised that the
development has served as one of
the catalysts for further regeneration
and development acrass Piccadilly
Basin with the unique building being
fully let within just three months of
launch. TCS has also worked closely
with CityCo, the Manchester city
centre management company, along
with the Mayor’s office and the local
police to improve security and safety
in the Basin. Furthermore TCS has

finance initially provided by the Greater
Manchester Housing Fund, thereby
minimising the capital required by
TCS to unlock the scheme. Since
completion the joint venture has repaid
the fund and entered into a nine-year
fixed rate facility with PRS Finance PLC
as part of the government's Private
Rented Sector Housing Guarantee
Scheme, borrowing £13.8m ata

fixed rate of 3.02%. This refinancing
provides long-term certainty at

an attractive rate of interest.

a street art project to

further enhance and improve the area.

Development pipeline

£600m

Acquiring investment assets

Strategy in action

The acquisition of 123 Albion Street
is a prime example of our investment
strategy, where we seek to acquire
assets that are being sold atan
effective discount due to factors
that the previous owner was not
equipped to deal with, in this case
terminating leases.

We use our local knowledge, active
asset management expertise and
willingness 10 get into the detail to
deliver significant improvements in
value and/or incor is i

aspect of our business model cycle.

In the case of 123 Albion Street

10,000 sy I of office spa

been re-let to the existi

the Secretary of State. In addition

the other tenant has now vacated,

paying a £0.5m dilapidations
ttlement which is reflected in the

year end earnings, helping to mitigate

lost rental income.

Annual Report & Accounts 2020

We are now underway with a net
€4m refurbishment of the office
space in this building. Critical 10

the decision 10 proceed with thi
investment was the benefits derived
for all stakeholders, including:

Investors:
This £4m investment upgrading
the office space is expected to
deliver a post investment running
yield in excess of 8.5%

Rental income will be impacted by
'm on a full year basis whilst the
space is being redeveloped but in
the current year the dilapidations
payment helped to mitigate this.

This investment helps o increase
the proportion on non-retail
property within our portfolio.

Tenants:
Providing high-quality flexible
office space. at a discount to prime
offices, in the heart of a busy part
of the city centre.

Providing facilities for cycle storage
and shower facilities.

01. Strategic Report
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123 Albion Street

We originally purchased 123 Albion
Street {previously named The Cube)
from Avivain 2018 for £12m at a yield
of over 12.5%. The building comprises
22,000 sq ft of leisure space on the
ground floor, with 50,000 sq ft

of office space over three floors.

located in central Leeds in close
proximity to the Merrion Estate.
This was a strategic purchase, as the
two office tenants had served notice
10 end their leases in 2019. TCS always
planned to further invest in the office
at the point of exit of the tenants.

Communities:

@ The development improves
and stiengthens the business
and retail and leisure community
in the northern part of the city
cenire, and will drive footfall to
the local businesses.

The refuibishment work includes
some notable environmental
benefits which are detailed in
our ESG section on page 39.

At the June 2020 valuation 123

Albion Street has been valued at
£14.6m, and it is expected to increase
further following completion of the
development, with the opportunity

to improve lurther as we let the newly
refurbished space.

Post investment running yield

+8.0%
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Portfolio review

Valuation summary

For the year to the 30th June 2020 the
total portfolio, including development
and car parking assets, sales and
purchases, declined in value from

£394.2m to £372.5m after a net

movement of £5.1m of capex,

sales and purchases. This represent

a decline of 6.9% year on year.

TCS saw the like for like value of its portfolio also fall by
6.9% (£26.6m) after capex of £6.0m. TCS's retail assets
bore the brunt of the valuation reductions (€23.0m being
11.8%), reflecting the major shift in both investor sentiment
and retail trading conditions. As reported at the half-year
TCS experienced only a 1.1% like for like decline in valuation
inthe first half of the year, and therefore the remaining
5.8% fall has occurred in the second half of the year,

with the backdrop of the COVID-19 crisis.

Our development assets increased in value slightly by
2.6%, and our car parks increased by 1.3% where a bounce
back in customers is being seen as the lockdown eases and
long-term alternative uses are identified and progressed.
In the year, we sold two assets in Shandwick Place,
Edinburgh for £2.5m (3.7% above valuation) and acquired
106b Kilburn High Road. London for £1.7m including costs.

Qur main and most complex asset, the Merrion Estate
saw a 6.1% decline (after capex) in value year on year from
£156.9m to £148.0m. More than a shopping centre, from
initial inception, a true mixed-use asset, this comprises
offices including our share of Merrion House, retail space,
ahotel and a multi-storey car park.

The initial yiekl across the whole Metrion Estate of 6.8%
signifies a robust performance against others in the secior
where retail assets, particularly shopping centres have
fallen by in excess of 20% in value.

The valuation of all of our properties except one are
carried out by CBRE and Jones Lang LaSalle. As a result
of the COVID-19 crisis both companies have reported that
valuations on the majority of our properties are subject

to a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ clause as set oul in
the RICS Valuation Global Standards.

Sales and purchases

It had been a relatively quiet year io the 30 June 2020

for sales and purchases. However, as desciibed earlier

the COVID19 crisis has prompted the Board 1o decide

to accelerate the retail and leisure disposal programme.

1n September 2020 we agreed sales of a further six
properties for a combined sum of £40.2m. The sales
comprised two Waitrose stores and an Aldi/HomeBargains
in Scotland and three high street retail stores in Wood
Green and Chiswick in London.

Qur continued commitment (o asset recycling is clear.
The below table details the £€89.1m of disposals since FY17
of which 95% wete retail and leisure assets. Acquisitions
of £30.6m included only 24% reiail and leisure.

Sales Purchases

7 223 88%
8 95%
FY19 100%
FY20 25 100%6
FY2110 date 40.2 100%
89.1 30.6

As described earlier the COVID-19 ciisis has promptecd
the Board to decide to accelerate the retail and leisure
disposal programme.

'CORF UI: Reta: Snapshat (22 2020
2 ponal Ot lnsrstiment Markey,
's UK Reygionsd Olfie tnestrnent Marbuwate
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Retail and leisure

The UK retail market has had a tough
time over the last 18 months. Structural
shifts in consumer behaviour and the
shift to multichannel retailing have
been accelerated by the impact of
COovID-19.

With high streets closed for nearly
three months to all but non-essential
retailers and office workers staying
away from the office, the easing of
lockdown more recently has supported
footfall improvements. However,
despite considerable weekly growth,
high street destinations over the
summer remain at nearly 50% below
2019 levels with shopping centres
slightly ahead of these levels at the hatf
year. Local regional high streets appear
to be responsible for driving the
recavery of footfall as office workers.
remain working from home and the
feed through to larger urban centres

is much slower.

Retail parks have remained more
resilient over the entire period,
benefiting from schemes anchored by
essential retailers, the earlier reopening
of homeware retailers as well as being
more accessible by car and consisting
of more spacious stores, allowing for
greater social distancing.

Through a landlord's lens, pressure
on valuations, LTVs, rents and leasing
models are all being experienced.
Despite Government moratoria, codes
of conduct, rates relief and other
available assistance, some retailers
wha can afford to rent have chosen
not to do se. In addition to a flurry

of administrations and CVAs, most
tenants are seeking concessions on
their leases.

Lackdown continued to hit the retail
market in Q2, with yields increasing
across all asset classes. Prime UK high
street yields moved from 5.25% in
March 2020, to 6.25% in June 2020
and prime shopping centre yields are
now at 6.5%, up from 5.85% in March.
Good secondary high street yields
for Q2 were up from Q1 to 8.50% and
secondary high street yields in Q2
were up from Q1 to 12.0%'".

From a TCS perspective, total retail
and leisure assets fell by £23m or
11.8%. Merrion ex offices delivered an
tnitial Yield of 7.7% reflecting the skew
in tenant mix to supermarket and value
retailers. Merrion’s value fell by £2.3m
or 7.9%. TCS's out of town retail had
aninitial yield of 6.3% reflecting assets.
in well placed suburbs and again,

a tenant mix of food and value retailers,
with vatue falling £4.0m or 9.5%. Other
retail and leisure assets fell by E11.7m
or 19.2%, with these mare traditional
standalone retail units being most
significantly impacted.

QOur hotels, while open for key workers,
were impacted by COVID-19, seeing
values fall £2.7m or 10.5%. White yields
have only softened slightly to the 30th
June, and the hospitality sector is now
slowly starting to recover as lockdown
eases; the speed of the recovery of the
sector will depend on how quickly both
tourists and businesses come back into
city centres at something approaching
pre-COVID-19 levels.

Regional offices

Office investment volumes reached
£1.3 billion outside of central London
in Q12020, which was a 24% increase
in volumes recorded in Q12019,
although 15% below the long-term
average. 43% of office investment in
the UK was outside of central Londan
in Q120202.The regional office markets
have been quiet since COVID-19.

Not many prime assets are trading
with a general lack of any new stock
coming to market. Investors are set

o gauge general sentiment when
occupiers return to buildings and
restrictions are eased. Yields for prime
offices in regional cities held at 4.75%
to June 2020.

Every core regional city market has
below two years of Grade A supply.
The development pipeline is limited
and will not alleviate the supply
constraints that are present in the
market. There is currently 4.48 mitlion
sq ft under construction and 56% of
this total space in the regional city
office market has been pre-let. Nine
of the regional office markets have a
vacancy rate below 10% which Savills
classify as undersupplied. The total

vacancy rate across the core regianal
office markets combined is 7.1% which
compares favourably to the long-term
average of 10%. Savills has produced
vacancy rate forecasts which underline
the robust nature of the market.?

Our office portfolio dropped £2.3m
or 2.9% over the year, the majority

of which was due to a reduction in
the value of 123 Albion Street as leases
fell away, tenants vacated, and we
were able to refurbish. We expect

this to recover. The value of TCS' share
in Merrion House was unchanged

at £34.7m, at an initial yield of 4.49%.
Ducie House and 123 Albion Street
are currently undergoing major
refurbishments and we expect to

see a corresponding uptick in value
post completion.

FY20 Capex investment

£6.0m

19
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Residential Approximately two-thirds of the Portfolio overview:
Given the current operating ;nvt-;s_tmen( pipeline a'e,';:'wfa'dh Passing ERV Value %of  Valuation InitialReversionary
and little 2‘:)"%'"9 i Vz{ a further rentEm £m £m__ portfollo _Incr/(decr) yleld yleld
evidence in Q2, CBRE opted to accounted for by direct site 2o
Tt theis benehonark sields acquisitions. The lockdown period Retail & leisure 36 44 511 0% 19.2% 6.6% 75%
at the current level. However, since has also served to demonstrate the Merrion Centre (ex offices) 70 7.4 85.7 23% -1.9% 17% 8.1%
lockdown restrictions were eased, re!a‘nve rel"sllli:r;‘ce :' ‘hg‘ '3“,'"'(3"(‘”7 Offices 38 6.2 825 22% 2.9% 4.4% 7%
there are early signs that deals are sector, which has boosted investor
progressing at pre-lockdown levels, appetite. Specifically, muitifamily rent Hotels 12 16 231 8% 10.5% 4.8% 6.7%
with no significant pricing impact. collections have been resilient and Out of town retail 25 25 38.0 10% -9.5% 6.3% 6.2%
Prime net yields continue to range remained high, averaging 96% in May. istributic 4 6.0 2% .
from 3.25% to 4.25%. Prime regional | This compares with 90% (offices) 82% Distribution 04 0 - 21% 6.5% 6.7%
centres are now trending stable, but {logistics) and 63% (retail). Although we Residential 11 0.6 215 6% 1.3% 5.0% 2.8%
yields may begin to weaken in more may see modest rent falls in 2020, we 19.7 228 307.9 83% -8.6% 6.0% 7.0%
secondary locations. expect the sector to return to growth in
2021 and outperform. CBRE is currently Development propert 16 16 378 10% 26%
Althaugh there was little activity in forecasting total returns of 5% per P property ! ; ) )
Q2, investment into the UK multifamily | annum for multifamily over the next Other car parks 09 0.9 269 7% 1.3%
sector looks poised to make a five years. This compares with 3% and Let portfolio 22.2 25.3 3725 100% -6.9%
significant rebound in the second 2% per annum, for offices and retail
half of 2020. There is a substantial respectively. Overall, demand for UK i duntlol,
investment pipeline with just over multifamily remains strong. Sentiment Wote: oxcludes IFRS 16 adjustments 10 cor pork valuations.
£1.4bn worth of deals cusrently under is positive and we are seeing early
offer. This is broadly equivalent to the signs of an increasing level of activity
investment pipeline at the end of 2019, | as the lockdown restrictions continue
which then translated into £1bn of toease.
investment in Q12020. Although it's . ) 5 Location Value %
not a certainty all of this will transact, TCS's residential assets are Leeds 226.5 51%
it nonetheless demonstrates the concentrated in the city centres of
continued strang appetite for the UK Leeds, Manchester, suburban London Manchester 66.8 18%
multifamily sector. Currently hatf of the :"‘dl_s'a_59°r‘:'< oTe'a“zf we 53”{: slight Scotland 419 13%
investment pipeline is spread across. lecline in the value of our residential
the prime regional centres. portfolio year on year of -1.3%. This was London =02 8%
largely driven by a short-term softening Other 1.2 0%
of rents in the Manchester market, 3725 100%
reflecting both the impact of COVID-19
and the volyme of stock coming into Sector Value %
the market in 2021, Rents are expected —
10 return to 2 3% per annum growth Retail/leisure 174.8 7%
rate from 2022. Appetite for high- Hotels 231 6%
quality, centrally located residential
sites in Manchester from both tenants Offies 825 2%
and investors remains strong. Car parking 26.9 7%
O'uLPiccadilly Besilrl| slile remains one Distribution 6.0 2%
of the most centrally located and ——
accessible sites in the city and as such Residential 215 6%
we expect it to outperform the market Development 378 10%
in the long term. 3725 100%
Lease Expiries Value %
Retail/leisure 95 48%
Retail/leisure 4.0 20%
Retail/leisure 6.2 3%
19.7 100%

6%

Note: As 81 30 Juno 2020
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Divisional review

Property

Overview

This has been a
year of two parts
for the business.
In the first two
thirds of the year,
we delivered
robust operational
performance
and made good
progress against
our strategic
initiatives.

We continued to actively manage

our assets, investing in refurbishment
projects including Ducie House in
Manchester and 123 Albion Street
(formally known as The Cube) in
Leeds, both of which offer high-quality
office space.

We also signed a number of deals
with new tenants from a diverse range
of sectors, including supermarkets
and food and drink outlets, and further
expanded our Asian food offering

at the Merrion Centre. In addition,

we successfully renewed leases

with a number of existing tenants

in both our retaif and office portfolios,
including Whittards, OKA, Cotswold,
PCSU and K7.

We completed and launched our

first PRS product in Manchester,
Burlington House. This 91 apartment
SimpsonHaugh designed building has
been a real success as well as a new
iconic piece of architecture in the city.
Along with our JV partner GM|, we were
delighted to be awarded Apartment
Developer of the Year at the North West
Residential Property Awards.

8|

In the final third of the year, we have
clearly been significantly impacted

by the disruption caused by COVID-18.
This period tested our colleagues,

our relationships with our customers
and suppliers, and our operational
capabilities in the most extreme way
imaginable. So far, our performance
has proved to be very reassuring, with

resulted in some tenants who could
pay choosing not to pay their rent and
service charges. This puts pressure
on landlords, like TCS, and significant
uncertainty remains around the level of
rent receipts for the coming quarters.

CQVID-19 has put additional significant
pressure on retailers and the food
and itality sectors. We expect

income ion at 82%, si

ahead of the majority of our peer
group. Overall, the strategy to diversify
the portfolio in recent years is proving
to be a resilient and sustainable one.
We have had to provide for non-
payment of £1.2m of rental income.

Impact of COVID-19
Since February, COVID-19 has had
avery significant impact on our
business. Our focus during this time
has been on maximising our capital
and managing our cash flow while

ing our tenants and
and ensuring they can continue to
wark safely.

While the housing and industrial
markets have remained more resilient,
the need to work remotely has led to
a slowdown in tenants looking for new
office space. The retail and leisure
sector has been significantly impacted
by COVID-19 and just under two thirds
of our setail and leisure businesses,
including high street shops, hotels,
food and beverage outlets, gyms

and hotels were closed during the
height of the lockdown period. This
has impacted rental payments and
collection rates in the short and
medium term.

We have good relationships with most
of our tenants, particutarly our smaller
tenants, and have held one-on-one
discussions to find solutions, such as
deferring payments or renegotiating
lease terms and we have shared

the pain with those most in need of
support. As a result, we received or
agreed to defer payments for 86% of
the rent and service charge due for
the period from March to the middle
of September. However, a number

of our larger tenants have chosen to
take advantage of the government
limiting the ability of landlords to
pursue non-payment of rent. This has

this to lead to increasing pressure on
rents, lower levels of rental growth

and continued lower levels of rent
collection. We could also potentially
see a shift towards more flexible
leases, for example, a combination of
fixed and turnover rent. It should be
noted that the nature of TCS’s retail
property portfolio means that we have
little exposure to those fashion retailers
and department stores who have been
most hard hit. However, there remains
a considerabte degree of uncertainty
across the market in relation to the
speed at which normal business will
resume, rent receipts, rental levels
going forward and the ability of tenants
to continue trading.

TCS made the decision to put all
capital projects on hold, with the
exception of 123 Albion Street (which
completed in August 20), in order to
preserve cash during the height of the
crisis. Work has restarted post year
end on Ducie House, due to complete
this autumn.

(11

The strategy

to diversify the
portfolio in recent
years is proving to
be a resilient and
sustainable one.
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Our tenant portfolio

Overview

Over the past five years TCS has

built an increasingly diverse and

mixed-use portfolio with a high-quality

and diverse lenant base across a

range of sectors including retail and
ure, office, hospitality. food and

drink and residential property. Through

our strategy of dh ilication, the

proportion of tetail and leisure asseis

in the portfelio has reduced to 47%

at year end, down from 70% in 2016.

Pure retail represents only 35% of the
total portfolio and our retail portiolio
remains focused on supermarket,
discount, and convenience retailing,
which typically has higher footfalf
and is less affected by the growth in
internet shopping. As our exposure to
retail has been reduced, office space,
food and drink and privale rented
sector (PRS) residential assets have
increased share.

Top 10 tenants

Leeds City Council 9%
Waitrose %
Wm Morsison %
Pure Gym %
Premier Inn Hotels 4%
Aldi %
Step Change Debi Charity. %
Home Bargains 3%
Dune Group 2%
The Deltic Group %

As a result, we have been insulated to
a degree from some of the challenges
currently facing the retail sector,

but we have been exposed to the
challenges faced by our tenants in
the food, beverage and leisure sectors
and are working through this with
them, supporting their recovery.

The COVID-19 pandemic has
reinforced the need to continue

with our strategy of reposilioning

our portlolio by reducing our retail
exposure going forward.

Key tenants include Leeds City
Council, Morrisons, Step Change Debt
Chaity, Pure Gym and Premier Inn.

Weoo-on [Jovo-son

Rent collected

82%

Rentdeferred

4%

(March 27 10 September 15 inclusive)
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Regional focus

TCS has a regionally
focused property portfolio,
with an emphasis on the
northern cities of Leeds
and Manchester, which
together represented 79%
of our portfolio by value
atend FY20.

Leeds and Manchester are two of the largest
conurbations in the UK and have attracted
significant investment from both UK and
international investors and delivered strong
economic growth over the past five years.

The regions typically do not see the extreme peaks
and troughs in returns seen in the London property
market, providing a more stable and less volatile
environment through the cycle. As a result, we believe
the fundamental longer-term autlook for our Leeds and
Manchester assets remains positive. The housing market
remains strong but the challenge of rebalancing the
UK economy and delivering the critical infrastructure
required to drive growth in the regions remains.
Devolution deals have an important rofe to play in
rebalancing the economy and Leeds and Manchester
have two of the most significant devolution deals of all
of the English regions and key roles to play in drawing
further investment into big regional cities to attract
businesses and create jobs.

s

Leeds key facts

Leeds City Region is the UK's largest

regional economy and the largest contributor
to UK GDP in the Northern Powerhouse,

a national and international leader in key
industries and one of the best places in the
UK for businesses to grow.

Population:

770.000

Student population:

Largest number of
universities outside of
London. 39,000 skilled
graduates per year.

Workforce:

A skilled workforce
of 1.4m people.

Corporate offices/HQs:

Channel 4, ASDA,

PwC, KPMG, HSBC,

DLA Piper, Direct Line,
BOS. Yorkshire Bank,
Addleshaw Goddard,
Eversheds, Pinsents.
169,000 businesses and
a GVA of over £69billion.
Home to the UK's leading
professional services hub
outside of London.

Our stakehalders:

Mesrion Morrisons
Merrion Offices
Merrion Retail § Leisure
Merrion Car Park

Other Leeds asscls:
Retail & leisure
Otfices
Hotels
Residential
Indusuial
Car par

lopment
Totalleeds

Leeds as % of total

61%

Forecast growth rate:

8.3% forecast over
the next five years.
Fourth best shopping
destination in the UK,
with over 660.000
people claiming the
city as their ary
shopping destination.

Key growth sector:

Digital ilechnotogies,
healthcare and innovation,
manufacuring, financial
and professional services.

Other development of
the Southbank by CEG,
the new West End by
MEPC and CPP, significant
amount of student
accommodation around
Mersion and Moda next

o WYPhouse.

Leeds

Merrion Estate

The Merrion Estate has been

a key asset in our portfolio for
over 55 years and one that we
continue to evolve as a unique
mixed-use development
consisting of retail and leisure,
office and car parking assets.

Adjacent to Leeds Arena and very
much at the centre of a growing
student community from both
existing student developments and
approximately 3,500 new student
beds under construction around the
centre, our significant investment and
{focused asset management activity
has materially reinvented the centre,
1argeting the growing local student
population and the Leeds Arena

+ crowds. With various redevelopment

opportunities still existing, we
believe the Merrion Estate continues

O Outside the centre we have
invested significantly to improve
the centre’s fascia and kerb appeal.
This has generated significant
interest and led 1o a raft of new
tenants including the Co-op and
a variety of food outlets such as.
Starbucks, Blue Sakura, Dominos,
and a number of new Asian food
offerings which are popular with
the local student population.

ibis Styles hotel

Due to the direct impact of COVID-19
on the hospitality sector, performance
has been weak across our hotel and
leisure assets. However, forming part
of the Merrion Estate, the hotefisin a
key location close to Leeds Infirmary
and it has been able to help support
the local community by remaining
open to key workers at a discounted
rate during the lockdown.

As people slowly return to work,

the business is starting to attract

customers once again and it has
its ing channels

to represent a valuable long
opportunity. During the year we
continued to develop the centre:

O The office space is fully let serving a
range of smaller and larger tenants
including Leeds City Council's
headquarters and we work hard
to keep tenants on site and buitd
strong relationships.

0O Inside the centre, 23% of our
space is retail, focused an the
more stable food and value sector
of the market. 30% of our retail
tenants were able to remain open
during tockdown including a large
Morrisons supermarket and we
have supported our tenants during
this time, ensuring they are able to
operate safely and helping other
tenants to get up and running as
lockdown eases.

to attract corporate bookings to
help increase the occupancy rate.

Refurbishing existing
investment assets

Grade A space is in short supply in
Leeds and Manchester. TCS is spending
over £7m on major refurbishments

of 123 Albion Street in Leeds and
Ducie House in Manchester, and the
common parts in Carvers Warehouse.
These great city centre locations are
well placed to benefit from the lack

of availeble new Grade A stock on the
market and we are seeing strong levels
of interest in 123 Albion Street where
the refurbishment is complete.

123 Albion Street

Acquired in 2018, we have undertaken
a net £4m refurbishment of this
building which achieved practical
completion in August 2020. The
building comprises 22,000 sq ft of
leisure space on the ground floor, with
50,000 sq ft of good quality office
space over three floors. Itis located

in central Leeds in close proximity to
the Merrion Estate and we have had
healthy interest for occupancy from
the end of this year.

For more information,
see our case study on page 17.

New tenants

and lease renewals

At Vicar Lane, we have signed a ten-
year lease with income of £75,000 with
anew tenant, We are Cow, a leading
independent retailer specialising in
vintage clothing. This unit has now
been fitted out and is trading. We have
successfully re-geared a number of
our properties during the year. At the
Headrow in Leeds we have agreed
lease renewals with both Whittard (five
years) and Greggs (five years) while in
West Park, Harrogate ten-year lease
renewals have been signed with OKA
and Cotswold Outdoor. All deals have
been at or close to passing rent.

"
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Manchester represents one of the largest
UK city regions outside London, with an
economy worth £62.8 billion (GVA). This
strength has enabled it to establish an

ding r ion asa iti
place to do business, boasting a diverse and
high-quality portfolio of business properties.
Talent-hungry companies choose to invest
in Manchester because of the people that
choose to live, work and study here.

Manchester is a leading European business destination
and the most successful UK city for attracting foreign
direct investment outside of London. The birthplace of
the industrial Revolution, it continues to be a city which
innovates across a variety of sectars. As highlighted in
The Data City for the UK’s Top Digital Tech Cities - 2020
report, Manchester outperforms all other major UK
cities in the fields of Al and data, advanced materials,
cyber, construction tech, eCommerce, loT, MedTech
and service design.
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Manchester key facts

Population:

With access t0 7.2
million people within
aone-hour diive and
over 100,000 students,
Manchester provides
companies with unrivalled
access 1o a wealth of
talent. With strengths in
cyber security, FinTech,
genomics, advanced
materials and more.

Over 550,000 in
the centre with over
7.2m people within
one hour’s drive.

Student poputatiof

Over 100,000, supported
by the city region’s five
universi and a strong

civic focus on developing
the future talent pipeline.

Workforce:

The population of

Manchester is forecast to

grow by 81,200 from 2017,
00

taking its tolal to 619.4

by 2036. The working age
population (16-64) will
increase by 10.5%.

Corporate offices:

BBC, ITV, the Co-operative
Group, BooHoo, MAG,
THG, Amazon.

Our stakeholder
Manchester Residential
Manchesier Car Parks

1 Development
Total Manchester

Manchester as % of total

18%

Forecast growth rate:

14.1% over the 20 years
from 2017. Primary retail
catchment of 1.6m people.

Primary retail catchmen

1.6m people.

The Greater Manchester
Forecasting Model-2018
shows GVA growing at
1.7% per year up t0 2036,
an increase of £25.800
million belween 2016
and 2036.

Total employment is
forecast to grow at 0.5%
per yeat in GM, equaling
10 a net increase of
140,100 employees 2016
10 2036. Employment
growth is largely driven
by Business, Financial,
and Professional Services
- accounting for over half
of the net increase in the
total number of jobs based
in GM, up 10 2036.

Value

Manchester

Office space

In Manchester, vacancy
rates for grade A office stock
are relatively low, and rents
have risen steadily over the
last five years. With a lack

of new build space, the city
is also seeing significant
growth in refurbished space
as these buildings offer an
attractive alternative to

new developments.

Ducie House

Ducie House is a 33,000 sq ft
multi-tenant office building where

we are investing £2.2m in a full
refurbishment of the building during
the year to create good quality working
spaces which can be let on flexible,
short-term leases. Due to COVID-19,
the refurbishment was paused in the
spring, but the work is now due to be
completed in October 2020 and we
expect ta see strong demand as good
quality refurbished office space is

in short supply.

For more information, see our case
study on page 14.

Carvers Warehouse

During the year we also invested
£0.3m improving the common areas in
our Carvers Warehouse office building,
creating social and break-out space
for our tenants. Carvers Warehouse
continues to have high occupancy
levels and we are working hard to let
the remaining suite. Our investment
has enabled us to ensure that the asset
is consistent with the best refurbished
space available locally, pushing rents
on from an average of £16 psf to
£18pst. The tone of the building is

now £19-£20 psf.

Residential

Housing in the region is in short
supply and there are plans to develop
a minimum of 25,000 new homes

in Manchester over the next 10 years.
While there are some risks to the future
outlook from COVID-19, the residential
market here remains robust with
strong investor developer interest

for key sites.

Burlington House

Qur first dedicated PRS building,
Burlington House, in Manchester,

was completed and fully occupied by
September 2019 and we were pleased
to be awarded Insider's North West
Apartment Developer of the Year for
this development. It has continued to
enjoy high levels of occupancy during
COVID-19 and we anticipate that this
will be a key step towards further PRS
developments in the Piccadilly Basin.
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Scotland & London

We have had a long-standing
o in {and h
following disposals over

the past couple of years we
have sold the majority of our
Edinburgh assets and now
focus solely on retail and
residential assets in Glasgow

Refurbishing existing
investment assets

We let the ground floor and
basement of a property in Bath Street,
Glasgow, on a fifteen year lease to
The Scotch Malt Whisky Society at

a headline rent of £30k per annum.
The transformational refurbishment
has been a great success and the
tenant opened for business in March
before unfortunately having to close
ily as a result of COVID-18.

andits close town
of Milngavie.

In London, our investments are in
goad quality secondary high street
locations and primarily consist of retail
and residential mixed-use assets.

Acquisitions and disposals

In London, we bought a shop with
upper residential space at 106b Kilburn
High Street for £1.61m. This was an
opportunistic purchase of an asset at
an attractive price and yield adjacent
to an existing TCS asset.

We cantinue to look to maximise
available capital partly through the
disposal of ex growth assets. In
January 2020 we completed the sale
of aretail unit in Shandwick Place in
Edinburgh. The 6,000 sq ft unit was
empty but let for a remaining eight
years to Morrisons, and has been
sold for £2m, 5% above valuation,

ata yield of 7%. 1.Glasgow .
Scotch Whisky Society

‘We cantinue to explore opportunities
to dispose of retail assets at the
right price.

2.London
1063 Kilburn High Street

3.Glasgow
Scotch Whisky Society

Ourstakeholders: Valuo Em %

Scotland & London 58.0 4%

Retail & Leisure

Scottand & London o7 %
ices

Scotland & London 67 9%

Residential

Scottand & London 27 18%
Parks

Totat 783 100%

Scotland & London

Scotland & London as % of total

21 o/o * Total % rounded
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Our development pipeline of over

£600m has been built up over time
and is a major value creation opportunity
for the business, providing TCS with

opportunities to support the business
and generate long-term value on a case-
by-case basis. We take a conservative,
long-term approach to development to
ensure we do not overcommit ourselves,
exploiting opportunities when the timing
is right and controlling the pace

of development.

In the curient uncertain and
changing market environment,

our focus is capilal management
and some development projects are
therefore under review as we assess
the opportunities.

O we wete in the planning process
for a 50/50 joint venture with Leeds
City Council 1o develop a 136 room
aparthotel on George Street in
Leeds. Our original plan was (o
use shares in the joint venlure as
security o fund the asset, butin
the current environment this has.
proven unachievable, and therefore
we have decided not 10 proceed.

Our planning consent for Whitehall
Road in Leeds to develop a
180,000 sa ft Grade A office space
and 513 space multi-storey car
park has been implemented and
we continue to market the site

to secure a pre-let. We are also
reviewing alternative options for the
Whitehall Road development site
in order to ensure we can maximise
value from this prime location.

O westill see long-term value in
residential property, particutarly
prime sites wilth major transport
links, and this will enable us
1o continue to diversify away
from retail. Qur Eider House
development, our second PRS
scheme in Manchester’s Piccadilly
Basin, meets these criteria and has
been granted planning consent.
We intend to proceed with this
development, but the 1iming is
currently under review,

Over the long term we believe our
development pipeline continues 1o
present material opporltunities for TCS.
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Ben Ziff
Managing Director CitiPark
& TCS Energy

Key facts

Number of car parks

19

Spaces operated across 19 car parks

8,470

Overview

Until the end of February 2020,
CitiPark enjoyed a strong year and saw
significant year on year improvement
in both revenue and profitability.

We introduced a number of new
initiatives during this period, including
launching our own parking app and
offering instantly available season
tickets to car park users. We have

also taken significant sieps o expand
our car park management services
platform, successfully adding two new
locations in the pas! twelve months.
Animportant development for the
business was the launch of BaySentry
Solutions, our parking enforcement
company, which started operations
on 1st January 2020.

CoviD-19

Since the end of February, COVID-19
has had a very significant adverse
effect on our business. Business
closures across the commercial,

CitiPark

CitiPark is a strong and profitable
standalone business in its own right,

and also plays a valuable role in monetising
what would otherwise be empty,
non-income producing, development
assets in Leeds and Manchester.

leisure and retail sectors combined
with the restrictions on movement
during Jockdown reduced the use of
car parks. The majority of our car parks
were closed and we also saw season
ticket cancellations. In addition, car
parks were not able 1o benefit from the
UK government’s business rates relief
scheme. This has materially impacied
our profitability, leading to profit for
FY20 of £2.6m (pre IFRS 16) compared
t0 a profit of £4.4m for FY19. Given the
growth expected and seen in the first
eight months of the year we estimate
COVID-19 to have impacted CitiPark
profitability by £2.0m in the year.

We were proactive in taking action to
manage the impacts on the business by:

O implementing cost saving initiatives
across the business;

O making use of the furlough
scheme, furloughing approximately
80% of our car park business
employees including our hourly
paid operations staff;

closing our operations in Leeds,
Manchester and Watford and
making partial closures throughot
the rest of our portiolio helping
to minimise costs, in particular
business rate

cancelling or suspending non-
essential contracts and sesvices
wherever possible.

The measures we have taken
combined with our strong early stast
to the year, mean that we have been

able to successfully navigate this
challenging situation and are well-
positioned to benefit as the economy
begins to open up.

We are starling (o see an impiovement
in business, our branches are now
open, and we expect this improvement
to accelerate as consumers move away
from public tansport and companies
buy parking spaces for their employees
so they can drive (0 work.

Supporting our stakeholders
During this difficult time, despite the
adverse effect on our business from
COVID-19. we felt it was important

10 support the NHS and other key
workers, in line with our commitment
to contribute positively to our local
communtties. We therefore offered
our services and premises o the
NHS, becoming an NHS supplier so
we could open car parks and provide
6.500 car parking spaces to be used
completely free-of charge as and
when needed, worth £80,000.

We also put in place support
mechanisms for our employees,
including topping up the pay of those
staff who were furloughed so they
continued to receive their full salaries
and providing regular updates and
touch points for all our employees.
To protect our staff as they return

to work, we have conducted new

risk assessments fos all our car parks
and ensured that our employees
have access to suitable PPE and
hand sanitisers.
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Finally, we have been working together
with high street retailers and other
operators to encourage people back

to their offices and businesses, and
therefore using our car parking facilities.

Qur performance

During the first sight months of the
year, CitiPark made good progress
and saw strong growth, increasing
revenues by 4.7% against the same
period in the previous year.

We added over 1,500 parking

spaces to our portfolio and following
our successful partnership with

John Lewis, we took on car park
management Contracts at two new
locations, Victoria Mills, Shipley

and the Manchester Arena car park, a
prime car park with 978 parking spaces
in a flagship location. This went live
successfully on 1st April 2020, despite
the challenges during this time, and
we remain confident on the outlook
for this location. Car park management
services remain a growth opportunity
for the business going forward.

For more information, see our case
study on page 15.

Developing

technological solutions

We also continued to focus on
technological improvements and
progressed various new initiatives
during the year:

developing and launching our

own fully integrated CitiPark app,
enabling our customers to pre-book
parking and other services via their
maobile devices, whilst also allowing
third-party integration (e.g. YPS);

O offering digital season tickets that
can be downloaded to mobile
phones eliminating the need for
a plastic card; and

O providing mobile pay, scan and
pay solutions at all our CitiPark
car parks.

We have seen strong take up of these
new solutions, recording over 16,900
pre-bookings and over 12,600 mobile
payment transactions since launch and
issuing over 500 digital season tickets.

in addition, we have our
own parking management system
which utilises ANPR technology

and our own app. This system has
been introduced at our Ducie Street,
Burlington and Victoria Mills car parks
during the year and we intend to

roll this out more widely across our
portfolio in the coming year.

CitiCharge

The business continues to look

at developing sustainable and
environmentally responsible sofutions
and we view this as an opportunity to
create additional vatue going forward.
Sales of electric cars continue to
grow rapidly and, as a result, we

are seeing increased demand for
electric vehicle (EV) charging points.
As part of our CitiCharge plan to roll
out EV charging points across all our
appropriate investment property, we
installed EV bays in the car park of our
Milngavie retail property during the
year. Post year-end we won an order
to supply 35 EV chargers to Coventry
NHS hospital, a significant contract
which also provides us with a potential

Yourparki co.uk (YPS)
YPS is an internet and app-based
business that matches customers

to available car parking spaces across
the UK. It has over 87,000 spaces
available to boak in over 15,000
different locations. TCS has a stake

in YPS, and in line with its original

i TCS i

a further share purchase option in the
year. Qur equity stake at 30 June 2020
stood at 19.9%.

YPS, like all parking businesses, has
been impacted by COVID-19. However,
it has managed its cash and expenses
very carefully, remains in good financial
shape and has seen 3 significant upturn
in business in the past few months.

Since the 30th lune YPS has
concluded a further round of
fundraising with a new private

equity investor investing cash into
the business for the next phase of
growth, and becoming a significant
lead shareholder. As part of the
process TCS executed its final option

for further )
on future NHS projects.

BaySentry

In order to deter inconsiderate parking
and ensure that there are car parking
spaces available for fee-paying

and past
of the transaction will hold 21.7%
of the business.

Outiook

The easing of lockdown measures since
the middle of June has enabled shops
and busi to reopen and staff

we use
services across our car parks, which
have previously been contracted

to a third-party supplier. We saw an
opportunity to reduce our costs and
gain an additional income stream by
supplying these services ourselves.

BaySentry Solutions Ltd, our parking
management company, started
operating in January 2020 following
receipt of its accreditation from the
British Parking Association Approved
Operator Scheme. We currently

have contracts in place to provide
enforcement services and issue
Parking Charge Notices (PCNs} at six
branches and this will expand further.

Going forward, we shatl be able to
add our enforcement services to any
future car park

to return to work and we have started
to see customers returning to our

car parks. We expect the business to
recover relatively quickly as confidence
returns and consumers are encouraged
to support local businesses. We have
put measures in place to ensure we are
able to operate safely and effectively
going forward, including phasing out
cash as a form of payment across our
car parks and implementing new, safe
ways of working to protect our staff
and customers.

We also continue to look at growth
opportunities, including the addition
of new management services
contracts, the growth of our

EV charging platform and further

agreement tenders in the wider
market, often seen as a prerequisite
to those looking for an operator.

development of our app including
thei ion of the emissions-b
tariffs and the expansion of our
BaySentry Solutions business.
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The table below details some of the ESG focused and COVID-19 specific activities that are currently
underway across the business and outlines how they fit into our strategic framework.

Aoty mansging Moximising irvesting inestingin
cuanasete
Minimise our environmental impact 1.2,ev13 14,513,115 6.8 12,19, 20
. Engage with our external stakeholders CV3,Cve 2,415 2,6,8.9.1 2,6,9,16,Cv9
Overview i
. . Engaged and committed employees 3,7,Cv4, CV7.Cvin B2
TCS has been committed to generating Make a positive contribution 18,CV5 cvia ] cvi2
H H H 10 our communities
long-term sustainable success since its o
. . Always do the right thing cve Cvi, Cv2,CV10
foundation over 60 years ago and still S—— p——
retains the ethos of its founder that business T Merrian Centre waste W Picaddilly Sasin street TV1_Reducing Boardsalaries  CV8 Full round of
" : . and sustainability plsn art project and security by 20% updates presented 1o
should make a positive contribution 2 Energy officiency improvemen: Cv2 Weekly fulBoard Debenture holders
. . N " programmes lowering 12 Envircnmental targets meetings and weekly Cv3  Continued investment
to the communities in which it operates. service charge costs for 123 Albion Street Non-Exec meetings in123 Albion Street and
3 New office refit with fving and Ducie House with Chair/CEO Ducie House
walls and improved space 13 Launch of CitiCharge CV3  Entering into bespoke CV10 All ather Capex
4 lnvestmentinEV charging 14 Signili nents with tenants suspended
infrastructure supporting local regarding their ability o cyn Al furloughed members
The Marjorie & Arnold Ziff Charitable Governance 5 Solar farm investments communities and charities gzzr’f;&?lg';;‘m"'s of staffed topped up
ion i i » - . AT h - 10100% salary by th
foundation s aregistered charity The Board currently has responsibility for overseeing our activities in this inLeeds and Manchester 15 Specllc parking iS00V Gy ging treo adeltionl Company Y Y e
which. whilst managed separately area and ensuring that ESG issues are considered in all our decision-making. 6 BREEAM targets for © P rest days for non- V12 CitiPark and Walk
withits own resourcesbasedona When we invest our capital we always look to protect the environment, allnew buiidings ment in © hed staff initiative to replace
TCS shareholding, plays a key rolein  benefit the communities that surround us, and take into accaunt the needs 7 Weu Bulding 17 Wostliald Health benefiis totakein Q12021 closed Leeds Perk
facilitating the Ziff family to support of all our stakeholders. tandard target or stal CV5  NHS and key worker and Ride service
the local community while Edward " 8 Full rec_:ycllng options 18 Ongoing SIP scheme to ?I{ppcll via car parks and CV13 Energy usage across
e AN h at Burlington House engage and benefi al staff ibis Styles hote! closod promises
iff, our current Ghair and GEO. Our approac 9 Merrion House facilities 19 Go Ultra Low status CV6  Warking with tenants managed ta reduce
was awarded an OBE for service to ESG is at the heart of everything we do. We aim to ensure that all the activities including recycling and for CitiPark who remained open environmentaf impact
community in 2017 and is Chair and we undertake as part of our four strategic workstreams are underpinned by the cycle store 20 Installation of PIR and ioensure safe access and cost
following five les which form the basis for our ESG programme: 10 Burlington House LED lighting systems in o customers an CV14 Worked with trustees
ng five ESG princples which fors hasi: U prog! value added services properties and car parks facility users of the Marjorie and
including cleaning, 21 lan Marcus CV7 Twoor threetimesa Arnold Ziff Charitable

We recognise the need to develop

a more formal structure to support
our activities and ambitions in this
area and have embarked on a journey
to create an ESG framework with
clearly articulated targets and metrics
10 measure progress against our
focus areas. While the disruption

due to COVID-19 has prevented us
from making the progress intended
this year, the approach we have
taken 1o managing the exceptional
challenges we have faced has

served to demonstrate our intrinsic
commitment to ESG issues.

e

/ Always do the
right thing

A

operatein

Minimise our

environmental

3

Engaged and
committed
employees

impact

2

]

Alignment with the UN $0G Goats
Make a positive Engage with our Sustainable Development Goal3 - Good health and wellbeing Our charitable work with children
contribution to the external Goals (SDGs) (e.g. our work with the Ahead Partnership)
communities we stakeholders Tcs ises the imp fthe  goal7 d cl Producing our own solar energy through

deliveries and fithess.

appointed workforce
Board representative

week video calls with
senior staff to review alt
aspects of the business
including staff wellbeing

Foundation to support
charities associated with
1CS during the crisis

seveiorment GsALS

[

e

QO

12 G
o

T i

A

O

sz o
[T LRI

e
e hesgus

UN SDGs and as we further develop
our ESG programme we are using
these to inform our decision-making
and target setting.

The key SDGs that TCS has an impact
on and our activities in these areas
are set out adjacent:

the development of three solar farms
in Leeds and Manchester

Goals 11812 - Sustainable citles
and communitles and Responsible
consumption and production

£V charging network, and newly
formed CitiCharge business. Also our
five-year Merrion Centre sustainability plan

Goals 10 & 17 - Reduced inequalities
and Partnerships for the goals

Local charitable partnerships
including Tempus Nova

“|
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Delivering the programme:

Minimise our

environmental Impact

TCS has long taken it

responsibilities seriously, including
making long-term investment

ions that giveimmediate
environmental benefits, with longer-
term commercial ones. We outline
our approach to date on those
aspects of the environment that we
caninfluence and some of the key
initiatives that we have delivered.
This report does not include metrics
for the whole of our estate, since

the majority of it is let to third party
tenants who are responsible for the
generation of, and reporting on, their
environmental footprint. We also
highlight our environmental work
onthe Merrion Centre, our largest
and most complicated asset, and
123 Albion Street which is currently
being refurbished.
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Our app h

Across our busi our key

| focus to date

has been on sustainable energy usage in three key areas:

O Buildings - We aim to design
and deliver buildings that:

- Are capable of achieving
the WELL Building Standard,
reflecting our commitment
to the health, wellbeing and
productivity of the spaces
that we create.

Integrate high standards of
environmental design so that
the impact on the natural world
is minimised and wherever
possible delivers positive
environmental benefits.

We apply the BREEAM standards,
targeting the BREEAM Excellent
rating in our new office
developments and a minimum

of BREEAM Good in office
refurbishments.

Sustainable materials, full lifecycle
models and energy efficiency

are part of our project evaluation
process for development and
refurbishment works in our estate.

All of our buildings have had
EPC assessments and we
monitor and seek to improve
EPC ratings through the lifecycle
of the building.

We aim to ensure that the
construction process minimises
disruption and nuisance to
surrounding communities

and occupiers by employing
contractors who meet the
standards of the Considerate
Constructars Scheme.

O Generation - We have three of our
own solar photovaltaic farms in
Leeds and Manchester, whichin
FY20 generated over 200,000 kWh
of energy and avoided over
115 tonnes of carbon dioxide.

O Vehictes - Through our CitiPark
business we have a unique
lens into the consumer’s use of
electric vehicles and are taking
considerable steps forward in
increasing the provision of EV
charging for customers’ electric
vehicles. Projects include:

Installation of EV charging
across our car park estate and
intraduction of our first rapid
charger at Merrion in Leeds.

Creation of our CitiCharge

EV charging venture, with new
charging facilities installed

in Milngavie in the year.

CitiPark plans to introduce an
emission-based parking tariff.
This is currently being trielled
in one of our London branches.

- CitiPark are accredited as
a'Go Ultra Low’ company
recognising CitiPark’s
commitment to EV vehicles
within its own fleet

The Merrion Centre
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The Merrion Centre is now in year three of its five-year sustainability plan and is on target for
implementing its goals ahead of schedule. Qur key objective is to reduce our carbon footprint
and in turn reduce our impact on the environment, these initiatives include:

Waste initiative

With growing services in the night-time
economy we have seen an inciease in
the volume of waste being produced.
We have reviewed the vatious waste
streams, ensuring we betier segregate
the recycling from the geneial waste.

The COVID-19 lockdown saw a number
of our lenants closing their doors for a
period of time. The waste management
service was adapted accorclingly

10 ensure financial savings were
captured. During this period recycling
was still widely promoted across site.

For the second year running 100%

of our waste has been diverted from
landfill with the waste either being
recycled or sent 10 a local Energy
Recovery Facility (ERF). Using a local
firm also cuts clown on CO, emissions
from vehicles.

The Merrion Centre produced

38.4 tonnes of wasle in tolal last year,
which is a reduction of 28.7% over
the previous 12 months. 22% of the
total waste produced this year was
recycled and 78% was sent (o an ERF.

Total waste produced (tonnes)

384

Total waste recluction over 12 months

28.7%

Total waste recycled

22%

Total waste sent to ERF

78%

Sustainability projects

Measures to improve sustainability at the Merrion Centre include:

O The creation of a cycle shower
facility in the centre largely
through reusable products to
support the growing number
of eycling enthusiasts.

Our rolling programme continues.
to upgrade and improve our power
distribution network including:

Two new meters installed

to help reduce the load on

our oldest controls panel.

Further LED lighting was installed
in the centre mall and offices.

To promote well-being and offer
aspace lo relax and re-charge,
the Merrion Centre launched
a brand-new space The Green'.
Offering free Wi-Fi and charging
points within a contemporary
garden backdrop of giant deck
chairs and seating, it invited visitors
10 ‘experience the great indoors’ and
offered the perfect place 1o ‘meet,
connect and charge’ in a serene
and creative space and in line with
Government guidance on social
distancing. Residing in a temporary
space on the main mall, ‘The Green’
hosted pop up refreshment stalls
and events including the Leeds
United Chanipions Trail and offered
f kers, students anc
families a space 10 enjoy their own
refreshments in the heart of the
city. This was created largely out
of reusable equipment
We continue to operate an Ecocap
system in the Town Cenure House
toilets and as a result in the pasl year
we saved approximately 300,000
lires of water.

O ‘Merrion Goes Green’ week was.
re-taunched in October 2019,
lollowing its success the previous
year. This provided a platform 1o
promote all things sustainable and
environmental. The themes were
Reduce, Reuse. Recycle, Rejuvenate
and Renew, working with tenants and
local focus groups to raise awareness
and reiterate our commitment.

During the pandemic a new piece
of innovation was implemented,
an escalator hand sanitising unit.
This uses uv lamp technology

10 sterilise the handrails by
continuously disinfecting the
rails during the operation of the
escalator on sile. The system is
designed to wipe oul 99.99 per
cent of germs on the surface of th
handtail in a sustainable manner.

The Merrion Centre and a

number of our tenants joined the
#Refill campaign, with the aim

of reducing plastic pollution by
making it easy to refill your reusable
water botile instead of buying a
plastic one. For more information
visit refill.org.uk.

GitiPark’s highly successiu! ‘play
with plastic’ initiative was further
enhanced in 2019 with a month-long
recycling scheme. CitiPark rewarded
environmentally conscious drivers
by offering a 5p discount on parking
for every plastic bag brought to both
the Merrion Centre and Leeds Dock
car parks.

Energy and water consumption
As a result of our energy saving
initiatives, the Merrion Centre saved
£5.0k fast year, equaling to a 10.9%
reduction on electrical consumption,
notwithstanding the development

of the centre.

The Merrion Centre also achieved a
52.7% saving on gas and water volumes.
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Corporate responsibility

continued

SECR

Inline with the Companies Act

This is the second year of GHG

2006(2013 andthe
recently introduced Streamlined

reporting for TCS but
the first following the new SECR

TCS purchases natural gas for one
office and has a fleet of nine vehicles
- three of which are electric and three

Engage with our

external stakeholders

Energy and Carb ing (SECR) under which energy that are petrol/electric hybrid cars - .
it Town it consumption must also be disclosed. which is the sum of the Company’s 123 Al b|on Stl’eet CitiPark diagrid This also coincided with our
PLC('TCS")is disclosing its annual TCS has addressed environmental Scope 1 GHG emissions. Scope 2 . The flagship CitiPark branch at involvement in the city's first
Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) impacts through a number of emissions are made up of electricity Our refurbishment Leeds Merrion Centre has this year ‘Dinosaur Trail’ where we played
emissions for the second time. measures and processes; details consumed at two offices and for of 123 Albion Street is supported a variety of regional, host to a life-size Triceratops as part
We are required to report the of these are laid out on page 36 the charging of electric vehicles. asignificant investment national and international causes by of the free trail for children visiting
:’:om:any's emlission(s ofct;rhon of this report. LA;ﬁl(v;thCSf's opxilrali::ns abrelin the for TCS, and as part of the illuminating its external LED diagrid the city over the school hotidays.
ioxide equivalence (CO,e), . " , therefore all values below are i facing Merrion Way. . .
aCO,¢ intensity value, and the The table below includes emissions both Group totals and UK totals. ::ll(eect:rx?r::\rf;z?alifdat:d 9 ¥ O Excite (millennials)
consumption of energy in the UK. for the consumption and combustion  vehicle emission data and emissions el ntally The NHS (blue), National Play Day September-October: Leeds
The methodologies and processes of fuel (Scope 1) and purchased from natural gas combustion have user-positive d'eC|5|or|s (Orange), Pride {Rainbow) and many first shopping centre scare
used to calculate th issi lectricity (Scape 2) of the premises been reported for the first time wherever possible. more initiatives have been supported attraction - The Black Death:
are also disclosed. and other assets operated by TCS. in 2020. . through this unique and impactful Zombie experience! The five-night
Examples include: channel which further highlights B60-minute immersive experience
Energy cansumption (all UK-based) 2018 2020 unit O Touch-fiee technology that has Tf's‘::’::":"‘!'::’“u::‘;n:"e:’:;:’:s'"Ess :f:ntﬂ:: ’J:'s::';;s::‘;h;:;he
Scope 1 nfa 29,447  Kilowatt hours of energy used f[?g:(:c“"’;::l‘ﬁff:rg::;(I’Igl:‘ﬁgus i groups of up to 80 explore, sneak
Scope 2? nfa 18,118 Kilowatt hours of energy used controls improving efficiency Engaging young people and scream \he_u way through "!e"
e 2018 saw us embark on a journey very own zombie blockbuster with
Total 164,743 by 50%. of brand re-invention as Leeds 20+ live actors, sets and industry
Contactless lifts. Merrion Centre’s ‘Shop, Eat, Drink leading special effects.
CO,e emisslons (all UK-based) 2018 2020  Unit Eneray efficienth " and Be Merrion!’ slua(eg.y continued D Experience (families)
Scope 1 nfa 10876 Kgsol COe o efictent heating an o return the Merrion to its status as a November-December: Leeds first
cooling system and a bespoke retail and leisure destination. Initiating . - 5 e .
Scope 2! 59.007 39,808 Kgsof COe building management system a Leeds shopping centre first’, an interactive Christmas ‘Elfington
Total 59,007 50,684 that brings all of our initiatives empty space was reinvented to bring Factory replaced  traditional
together Lo ensure they deliver three unique immersive experiences gratio, This magical immersive
) ee uniq P adventure saw Elves tinkering to
Carbonintensity 2018 2020 unit atan optimum fevel. to life under the themes cf ‘educate’, make all things Christmas, before
- “excite’ and ‘experience’ to appeal o " N L
Reference 1: Area 8,3n 8,311 Square metres (office area for Group) The ventilation system 1ecovers to our three target audience groups. visitors discovered the way to visit
% at extrac| he big man himself. FREE trail
Reference 2: Employee 40 38 Employees (FTE) 80'.°r the heal extracied from - ! i .
within the office space. O Educate (under 12's) maps for every visitor guided them
CO,e by area 710° 6.10 Kg CO,e per m? July-September: Leeds first to Santa before posting maps
€O,e by employee 1,475 1,334 Kg CO,e per employee (FTE) Hot water produced by local interactive history experience, for entry into a prize draw.
pmn! ol use electric heaters Professor Humboldt's Chamber
* Scopo 1 omissions are y from 1 o incithar buildings or Company lessed/owned vehiclas. Emissians from parsons! to minimise energy wastage. of Time, was a 45-minute totally
of pany theG h ineludad in the : . .
doptad by TCS (sea ay and scope’). A new cycle facility including immersive and action-packed
1 Scope? 1G5 ollcess nd by th owt, shower 10om, cycle racks and educational encounte: where you
\ alowing N a cyole repair stand. could experience history first hand
throughout the ages during
the school summer heliday.
Methodology and scope
Carbon Dioxide equivalence (CO,g) Reporting 2020 (DEFRA agency) - this disclosures. Energy consumption
emission data has been collected, represents the annual average CO¢ values for offices, and their
calculated, consolidated and analysed issions of the UK's icity grid. ing GHG emissi
following the GHG Protacol (Corporate  The boundary for reporting includes are based on values provided by
Accounting & Reporting Standard) assets (in the case of TCS these are utility suppliers, e.g. electricity or
following the ‘operational control’ offices and Company owned/leased natural gas bills. Company vehicle
approach. Emission factors of supplied  vehicles) that are operated by the mileage is estimated and is used
electricity for locations and vehicle Group and does not include the energy  as the basis for calculating energy
charging (both GHG emissions and and emissions of building tenants who consumption and emissions from
energy use based on vehicle mileage) lease property from TCS; tenants are fuet and electric charging.
were sourced from the UK Government  responsible for reporting their GHG
GHG Conversion Factors for Company emissions under their own Scope 2
38 )
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Corporate responsibility

continued

Engaged and

committed employees

We have a relatively small
team at our Head Office
and pride ourselves on how
we treat our employees.

We pride ourselves on being
a business that has a family feel to
it, building a clear culture over our
60 years in business of being a small
company that cares for and looks
after its employees, creating

ity and giving
Expectations of staff are high and
at times demanding. However we
endeavour to always support staff,
and go above and beyond any written
down HR policy. We like all staff
to know that if they have a problem,
work-based or personal, that they
can talk with the Directors and senior

workforce. Whenever in the office

lan meets with staff members and
during the COVID-19 crisis we have
ensured that staff are aware of his role
and that he is available to them. lan's
responsibility in this regard enables us
to assess the culture and engagement
within the business and challenge
management where necessary

in this regard.

TCS runs a Share Incentive Plan (SiP)
scheme available to all staff. Under
the HMRC guidelines it is an appealing
benefit and helps engage colleagues
in the wider success of the business.

Human rights

Although we do not have a separate
Human Rights Policy, a respect

for human rights is implicit in our
practices and our

inthe that
the Company will do everything it
can to support them. We believe
in the concept of opportunity for all,
and are intolerant towards any form
of discrimination.

Our Non-Executive Director lan Marcus
has taken on responsibifity as our
Board representative for the wider

engagement with third parties.

Work environment

We continually look for opportunities
to improve the work environment for
our staff. We have renovated our Leeds
head office to create a more modern
and comfortable work environment.

In addition, we have improved
henefits in recent years for head
office staff, improving Company
pension contributions above statutory
requirements, and introducing

a health insurance policy.

We are committed to learning and
development and are supporting
colleagues through Chartered
Surveyor and Chartered Accountant
qualifications. We have also given
work experience opportunities

to local students.

Diversity is important in our business
with 8 70/30 male to female split
across the whole business.

Making a positive contribution
to the communities we operate in

We contribute to a broad range
of local causes, with charities
focused on children and young
adults particularly close to

our hearts. We

O Young people - LEAP
We continued to support young
entrepreneurs by being host to
not-for-profit organisation The
Leeds Enterprise Advisory

our support for longstanding
partners with standalone
initiatives. We also seek to
improve and create a sense of
wider community in our areas
of operation, using our assets
and resources to work with
other community partners:

O Young people - Ahead Partnership
During the year we continued
our well established relationship
with the Ahead Partnership social

F (LEAP) which runs an
enterprise programme for students
aged 14-19. Each academic year,
teams of students set up their own
companies, raise share capital,
write a business plan, and select,
source and market a product or
service which is then sold at one
of two events within the Merrion
Centre throughout the year.

O cCongratutating LUFC banners’
Following Leeds United Football
Club’s recent promotion to
the Premier League during the
COVID-19 pandemic, Town Centre

by hosting a )
for local school children. The
children were asked to “Create an
Easter themed product/prototype
made of recyclable items ‘and/or*
generate a marketing/social media
campaign to discourage the use
of single use plastic items”.

CitiPark and the Merrion
Centre congratulated the team

in their own, unigue way. Banners
were erected on Town Centre House
and the Merrion Centre which soon
appeared on social media as fans
posted about the statement pieces
that adorned two of our large assets
within the heart of Leeds.

O Recognition for contribution
toward regeneration
Burlington House was awarded
‘Apartment Development of the
Year’ (fewer than 100 homes)
at the prestigious Insider North
West Residential Property Awards
2019. The judges recognised that
the development has served as
one of the catalysts for further
regeneration and development
across Piccadilly Basin. TCS has
also worked closely with CityCo,
the Manchester city centre
management company, along with
the Mayor’s office and the local
police to improve security and
safety in the Basin. Furthermore
TCS has commissioned a street
art project to further enhance
and improve the area.

O Award: British Property Federation
Futures Community Engagement
- highly commended for
the work of our head of CSR
Charlotte-Daisy Ziff.
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Always do
the right thing

ties

TCS takes its responsil
as a listed UK business
extremely seriously, and

is committed to upholding
high standards of corporate
governance. Whilst we spend
considerable time ensuring
we review our compliance
against rules, laws and codes,
we also spend much time
ensuring we abide by the spirit
of such requirements and
instilling a culture within the
orgnanisation of ‘doing the
right thing’.

42

Key areas of focus include:

O Implementing the new Corporate
Governance Code - As detailed
on page 64, TCS has worked
closely as a Board to review the
requirements of the Code and be
clear where we believe compliance
is necessary and right, and where
itis appropriate to explain why
we take a different approach.

u] holders,

those - such as the Merrion Centre
- where we maintain an on-site
management function. We have
an established Group health and
safety policy, which is approved
by the Board annually, and we
review health and safety issues
and incidents at every Board
meeting. The Property Director
oversees its implementation, and
chairs a quarterly internal meeting

-TCS has in place a long-term
debenture where most of our

day to day contact is with the
debenture trustee. Given the nature
of the challenges and pressures of
COVID-19 on the business Edward
2iff and Mark Dilley presented
individually to the majority of

bond holders to ensure they fully
understood the status of TCS and

all aspects of H&S across
the business as a whole from our
offices to our properties, car parks
and hotel. We have implemented

a new reporting and monitoring
system in the past year to facilitste
this. Our operational teams have
clear health and safety objectives
and review procedures regularly,
taking action where necessary.

-Wehavea

the security of their i

a

Health and Safety (H&S)

- We are committed to providing
a safe and secure working
environment, in our own offices
and in our properties, particularly

whistleblowing policy in place
that is reviewed at least annually.
We see this policy as an important
feature to encourage and enable
all staff members to 'do the

right thing".

Annual Report & Accounts 2020

Sticking to our ESG principles
during COVID-19

COVID-19 has allowed TCS to
prove its commitment to ESG.
The table above lists the main
examples, but we set out a few
highlights here.

Minimise our

environmental impact

As many of our tenants had 10 shut
during the COVID-19 distuption. our
property team reviewed lighting times
and levels, waste services, and healing
and air-conditioning usage to ensure we
minimised the environmental footprint
of our buildings and car parks, This not
only had an environmental benefit but
also reduced servi harge cosis for
our tenants.

Engage with our

external stakeholders
Touch-free technology at 123

The £5m comprehensive
refurbishment of 123 Albion Street in
Leeds (formally The Cube) continued
throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.
This gave TCS a unique oppaortunity
to ensure it met the needs of potential
occupiers looking for space in a new,
post-COVID-19 business environment.

By using the latest in touch-free
technology, the development of

the Grade A offices, floorplates and
communal areas including showers
and storage facilities, cycling storage
and EV CitiCharge chaiging points,
will feature a virtually touch-free
journey through common areas lor
occupiers and visitors to the building
By installing the latest PIR lighting,
contactless lifis, automated doors into
the building and offering soap and
water dispensers operable on infrared
zones, TCS were able to respond
swiftly to research showing that
occupiers are looking for a touch-free
experience and design the building

1o minimise contact through the main
communal areas.

Engaged and

committed employees

As well as issuing regular Chairman’s
updates to staff members, the Board
approved a granting of three additional
days holiday for those members of
staff working through the disruption
period, giving them a chance to rest
and recuperate following a tough and
stressful period.

Contributing to the
communities we operate in
TCS supports NHS/key workers

At the outset of the COVID-19
pandemic, TCS iesponded by
launching a series of initiatives to
support the NHS, This included free
parking with CitiPark and concessionary
hotel accommodation at the ibis Styles
Leeds City Centie Arena hotel (located
close to the LGI) which was one of the
only hotels in Leeds to remain open
throughout the pandemic.

In addition, TCS also championed
schemes set up by our extensive
tenant base which included exclusive
shopping slots for key workers, the
elderly and vulnerable. iceland,
Morrisons, Boots Pharmacy, Heron
Foocls, Home Bargains, Holland &
Barrett, Sing-Kee Supermarkets,

the NHS Sexual Health Clinic and

01. Strategic Report

s all remained open, with TCS
advocating specific tenant projects
including the award winning My Thai
who operated a 'soup kitchen' service
that served focd to key workers and
the vulnerable that were unable
to leave their homes.

Always do the right thing

TCS made use of the government
furlough scheme, furloughing

53 individuals and topping up salaries
1o ensure all members of stafl received
100% of their salary. In addition

the Board of TCS also agreed 10

a20% reduction in salaries and

fees for six months.
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Financial review

111
COVID-19 has materially impacted financial

performance in FY20 and uncertainty
remains. However, the strength of our -
portfolio has delivered good levels of rent

receipts allowing TCS to think strategically

about the future.

Mark Dilley
Group Finance Director

EPRA earnings in the year were

£2.1m. This is the first year that the
financial statements are presented in
accordance with IFRS 16 which affects
how we account for leases that we have
entered into. For a full explanation of
the effect and implications see page
48. As a result of the changes refating
to this standard we are introducing an
additional income statement measure
of Adjusted EPRA earnings which
removes the effect of IFRS 16 making
the results directly comparable with the
prior year's financial statements which
have not been restated. Adjusted EPRA
earnings in the year were £2.6m, down
£3.7m on the prior year.

COVID-19 has had a material impact
on our financial performance, and we
estimate a total impact to earnings in
the year of £3.6m. We estimate that
our Investment Property business has
been impacted by £1.2m, primarily as a
result of bad debt isi i

With adjusted EPRA earnings in the
year 59% lower than last year, and with
pressure on cash flow and headroom
we have had to make the very difficult
decision to reduce our dividend

for the first time in our history. The
unprecedented impact of COVID-19
and the level of uncertainty that has
arisen means we believe this is the
only responsible action to take for the
sake of the long-term prosperity of the
Company. The final dividend for the
year will be 1.75p per share, giving a
full year dividend of 5.00p per share.

The impact of COVID-19 disruption has
prompted the Company to revisit its
strategy, and agree to an acceleration
of the retail and leisure disposal
programme, albeit only at sensible
values. Whilst the Board has yet to
finalise plans for the use of the disposal
proceeds, it is anticipated that TCS will
look to reduce borrowing levels further.
This, ined with the inevi

with non-payment of rental income
and service charges. The impact to
our CitiPark business is £2.0m due to

a significant reduction in car parking
income with many fixed costs, such as
rent and rates. Our ibis Styles hotel has
been impacted by £0.4m in the year.

gap between asset sales and any

asset purchases, will lead to a longer
period of reduced earnings which

will inevitably lead to a lower level of
dividend payment than in recent years.

Income statement

EPRA Earnings for the year ended 30 June 2020 were £2.1m. Adjusted EPRA earnings (removing the effect
of IFRS 16) were £2.6m down on the prior year profit of £6.4m.

FY20 FY20
£000s inc IFRS 16 - oxcIFRS16 FY19 YOY
Gross Revenue 26,702 26,702 31189 (14.4%)
Property Expenses (10,643) (1149) (1,600) (3.9%)
Net Revenue 16,059 15,553 19,589 (20.6%)
Other Income / JV Profit 2,018 2,018 1649 22.4%
Other Expenses (777) (777) [} -
Administrative Expenses (6.197) (6.197) (6,857) (9.6%)
Operating Profit 1,103 10,597 14,381 (26.3%)
Finance Costs (9,009) (7,975) (8.025) (0.6%)
EPRA Earnings 2,094 2,622 6,356 (58.7%)

FY20
Segmental oxc IFRS 16 FY1g Yoy
KN Property
Net Revenue 1,676 13,970 (16.4%)
Operating Profit 7.830 9,725 19.5%)
B citipark
Net Revenue 3740 5,388 (30.6%)
Operating Profit 2,630 4,425 (40.6%)
[ 1bis Styles Hotel
Net Revenue 137 231 (40.7%)
Operating Profit 137 231 (40.7%)

Excluding the estimated impact of

[l Property (£0.7m) down year

COVID-19 on our results,
Adjusted EPRA earnings would have
been circa £0.1m down year on year
with the key drivers being:

onyear

O TCS took the decision not to
continue with the planned George
Street aparthotel joint venture with
Leeds City Council and the income
statement reflects a £0.8m provision
against the capital expenditure.

We are looking for opportunities
to recover some of this cost.

a

As reported at the half year,

TCS benefited from a one-off
£0.5m dilapidations payment

in respect of 123 Albion Street.

As expected, the benefit of this
increase in Other Income has been
offset as a result of the reduction
in rental income year on year from
the building as it was redeveloped
and significantly vacant.

CitiPark £0.2m up year
on year underlying:

O This underlying improvement
was seen in the first half of the
year reflective of the previously
strang run rate.

ibis Styles Hotel £0.3m up year
on year underlying:

O One-off costs associated with the
change in the restaurant in FY19
meant an expected and significant
increase in profitability year on year
in FY20, and this was indeed being
achieved in the first eight months
of the year.

Inaddition, interest costs were
£0.05m lower year on year.

*|
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Statutory profit

On a statutory basis the reported loss
for the year, on an IFRS 16 basis, was
£24.2m, £11.7m worse year on year.

The statutory profit reflects the EPRA
earnings of £2.09m less £26.42m of
non-cash valuation and impairment
movements plus a £0.177m profit

on disposal from Brownsfield Mill,
Manchester and two properties

in Scotland.

The year an year worsening of £11.7m
is due to the valuation write down
being £8.31m worse, underlying

EPRA earnings being £3.73m worse,
disposals improving the result by £0.88
year on year and the introduction of
IFRS 16 impacting FY20 by £0.53m
(see following IFRS 16 section).

Gross revenue

Gross revenue was down £4.5m
or 14.4% year on year, with key
drivers being:

O Property rents impacted by
COVID-19 with £1.3m of net
i bad debt

Property expense

Ata Company level, property
expenses excluding the effect of
IFRS 16 were down 3.9% or £0.45m
year on year. Key drivers of this
underlying decrease were:

O Property: operating expenses
were £0.47m higher year on year
predominantly due to a one-off
write-off of historic service charges
now deemed to be irrecoverable.

DO citiPark: operating expenses were
£0.31m lower year on year primarily
as a result of savings initiated as
a result of COVID-19 including
furlough savings, reduced rates
costs where branches were closed,
and operational cost savings due
to the significantly reduced level
of transactions.

O ibis Hotel: operating expenses
were £0.62m lower year on year,
driven primarily by the response
to the COVID-19 crisis. Whilst
the hotel operated at all times,
supporting key workers, the

where no agreement has been
reached on payment of outstanding
rent or where payments have
agreed to be deferred but doubt
remains over the likelihood of
receipt and therefore the income
has not been recognised.

O CitiPark revenues were materially
reduced due to COVID-19 from
March through to the end of
the year. Whilst some monthly
subscription income kept being
received, daily receipts were down
over 90% with half of the branches
being closed for the period.

The estimated impact to revenue
is £2.3m.

[u]

Income for the ibis Styles hotel
was impacted by COVID-19 by
an estimated £1.0m

O Underlying improvements in
income, particularly in CitiPark
and the Hotel marginally offset
the impact of COVID-19.

¢l

was able to reduce
variable operating costs including
the furloughing of some staff.

O In addition, the implementation of
IFRS 16 reduced property expenses
by a further £0.51m with the
removal of certain rental expenses
partly offset by depreciation of the
newly created ‘right-of-use’ assets.

Other / JVincome

Total Other / JV income was up 22.4%
or £0.4m year on year. This is explained
by two key items:

O Dilapidations income of £0.6m
was £0.6m up year on year mainly
as a result of the dilapidations
payment in respect of 123 Albion
Street, Leeds.

O Income from joint ventures was
down £0.3m year on year driven
by the annualisation of the
financing agreement in respect
of Merrion House, where our
share of income is reduced by
the effective interest cost.

Other expenses

This cost is due to a one-off provision
against capitalised costs associated
with the proposed George Street
aparthotel joint venture with Leeds
City Council. TCS incurred £0.8m

of cost associated with getting the
building designed and through
planning approval. Qur intention was
to be a long-term partner in the joint
venture. However, given the current
climate, we have been unable to
secure a commitment to use our share
in the joint venture as security for debt.
Without being able to leverage the
asset and with a need for the project
to proceed, we have taken the decision
to end our involvement and provide
against the spend to date. We are
working with partners involved in the
project to look to hand over the output
of our work in return for a financial
contribution towards our costs, albeit
nothing yet has been agreed.

Administrative expenses
Administrative costs were £0.7m lower
year on year. This includes £0.1m for
the last quarter as a result of all the
Directors agreeing 1o a 20% salary

and fees cut. There is a further £0.2m
saving year on year in bonuses. Further
savings arose as a result of significantly
reduced spend on advertising, travel,
entertaining and other expenditure as
a result of our response to COVID-19.

Finance costs

Excluding the effect of IFRS 16,
Finance costs were 0.6% or £0.05m
tower year on year. This is due to lower
tevels of LIBOR year on year.

Balance sheet

The below table shows the year end balance sheet as reported including the IFRS 16 implementation. In addition
itis shown excluding IFRS 16 to allow for a like for like comparison with the prior year.

Excluding IFRS 16 NAV is £156.0m, down £32.3m or 17.1% year on year. IFRS 16 has the effect of reducing NAV by £0.5m
but more significantly materially increases both assets and liabilities reflecting the creation of the ‘right-of-use’ assets

and the corresponding lease liabilities.

FY20inc FY20 exc 18 vsFY19

£m IFRS 16 IFRS 16
Investment properties* 266.4 265.8 288.0 (7.7%)
Development properties 37.8 37.8 36.5 3.4%
Car parks 56.8 31.0 307 0.8%
361.0 3346 355.2 (5.8%)
Jaint ventures 13.8 13.8 13.4 2.6%
Other non-current assets 11 11 16 (30.9%)
I for sale 375.3 3494 3702 (5.6%)
Net barrowings (214.2) (186.9) (182.0) 2.7%
Other assets/{liabilities) 61 (6.5) ©.0) -
EPRA NAV 155.5 156.0 188.3 (17.1%)
EPRA NAV per share 292p 293p 354p (17.1%)

*includes assets held for sale

All the following commentary in relation
to the balance sheet is on a comparable
basis to prior year excluding the effect
of IFRS 16. See page 48 for detail on
the effect of the new standard on the
statutory accounts. In additian, in

the reported balance sheet we have
classified our two Waitrose stares in
Scotland as available for sale with a
value of £23.2m. At the 30 June 2020,
heads of terms for the sale of these
properties has been agreed hence
their change in categorisation. These
stores were subsequently sold after the
year end. For comparability purposes,
the numbers in the table above

and described below include these
properties in non-current assets.

©Our total non-current assets (including
Jvs) of £349.4m (2019: £370.2m)
include E317.4m of investment
properties {2019: £337.9m) and £31.0m
of non-current car parking assets (2019:
£30.7m). The Merrion Centre car park
isincluded in the investment property
asset value. The car parking assets
include £4m (2019: £4m) of goodwill
arising on business combinations.

The most significant driver of the
decrease in non-current assets year
on year is the £26.3m of non-cash
valuation movements reflecting a 6.9%
like for like reduction. The majority of
this reduction has come in the second
half of the year, and is significantly
affected by the uncertainty due to
COVID-19, particutarly in relation

to retail and leisure assets. At the
December 2019 valuation TCS
experienced only a 1.2% like for like
reduction in value from June 2019.

Although we paused the vast
majority of our capital expenditure
from March onwards in order to
preserve cash during the initial
uncertainty of the COVID-19 crisis,
across the year we invested a total
of £6.0m of capital expenditure in
our properties. This included £3.3m
as part of the refurbishment of

123 Albion Street, £1.0m as part

of the Ducie House refurbishment
and £0.6m of improvements in the
Merrion Centre. Capital recycling
comprised £2.5m of sales and
£1.7m of purchases.

Borrowings (excluding IFRS 16)

As in previous years we have total
borrowing facilities of £214m. These
facilities comprise three revolving
bank facilities and a £106m long-term
debenture at  fixed rate of 5.375%
which expires in 2031.

Two of the three bank facilities expire
within twelve months of the year end
and are therefore classed as current
liabilities in the balance sheet. Since
the year end we have already extended
our £33m facility with NatWest for

a further year on the same terms and
margin, and this facility now expires

in April 2022.

Our Lloyds Bank facility's initial
three-year term expires in June 2021.
However the facility allows for two
one-year extensions and this is
currently in the process of being
requested. The Lloyds facility is a £35m
revolving credit facility with a further
£5m overdraft facility.

Finally, our £35m Handelsbanken
facility does not expire untit fune 2023.

47



Town Centre Securities PLC

Annual Report & Accounts 2020

01. Strategic Report

Financial review

continued

Borrowings (excluding IFRS 16)
{continued)

Net borrowing {excluding finance
leases) as at 30 June 2020 was
£183.6m. This is £5.8m higher than

a year ago driven effectively by the
£6.0m capex investment with earnings
impacted by the COVID-19 crisis.

Loan to value on this basis is 53.2%
up from 48.8% a year ago and 48.5%
in December 2019. The driver of the
increase being the £26.3m reduction

Balance sheet

A net reduction in net assets

of £0.53m, comprising a £26.40m
increase in non-current assets, offset
by a £25.62m increase in financial
liabilities and a £1.31m increase

in current liabilities.

As a result of these changes we are
introducing an additional income
statement measure of Adjusted EPRA
Earnings which removes the effect

of IFRS 16 making the result directly

in value of the i portfolio.
On a proforma basis, the addition

of the £35.2m'of sales since 30 June
2020 improves LTV to 47.9%.

IFRS 16

As stated above, these financial
statements are presented in
accordance with IFRS 16. Under

IFRS 16, while total lease related
charges over the life of a lease remain
unchanged, the lease charges are
now characterised as depreciation
and financing expenses with higher
total expense in the early periods of

a lease and lower total expenses in the
later periods of the lease. In addition,
on the balance sheet, the accounting
treatment has the effect of creating
new assets on the balance sheet for
these right-of-use’ leased assets, partly
offset by a liability reflecting the future
obligation to make lease payments.
On the balance sheet, as with the
income statement, the effect is neutral
over the life of the lease but lowers
net asset value in the early periods,
reversing over time.

The leases effected by the change

in accounting treatment reside
primarily within the CitiPark segment
of our financial results, flowing into
the consolidated results.

Inthe twetve months ended
30 June 2020 the effect of IFRS 16
isas follows:

Income statement

A net reduction in statutory profit {and
EPRA Earnings) of £0.53m, comprising
a £1.14m increase in depreciation and
a3 £1.03m increase in interest costs,
partly offset by a £1.65m reduction

in rental expenses.

48

ble with the prior year's
financial statements which have not
been restated.

Given the effect on the balance sheet
is minimal, accounting for only 0.34%
of the total net assets we shall only
report on net assets including the
IFRS 16 adjustment. However, both
non-current assets and liabilities

are materially affected, and we shall
highlight pre and post IFRS 16 values
for clarity and comparison purposes.

Future financial considerations
Future P&L pressure

As highlighted elsewhere in this report,
we have not escaped the impact of
COVID-19 and changing shopping
habits, particularly affecting retail and
leisure tenants, and, given the current
climate, itis prudent to assume that
this risk wifl continue. We are prudently
assuming that over the coming two
quarters that rent receipts will continue
to be challenged.

As already described, we have made
the decision to accelerate our retail
disposal programme, and this is likely
to put future earnings under pressure.
The Board is reviewing options for
how the proceeds of such sales could
be utilised including debt repayment,
asset purchases and share buybacks.

Whilst the reduction in the dividend

in the current year is due to the impact
of COVID-19, the combination of likely
shortfalls in rent receipts over the
coming quarters and loss of income
due to disposals are likely to tead

to continued pressure on our ability

to pay a higher covered dividend.

Future balance sheet

and covenant pressure

As described in the valuation report,
the circumstances relating to COVID-19
have led to our valuers CBRE and JLL
including uncertainty clauses as part
of their valuations in relation to the
majority of our assets. As identified

in the Risk Report, we have highlighted
the continued pressure on retail and
leisure assets to be a significant risk

to the business. Whilst we comfortably
met all of our banking and debenture
covenants as at 30 June 2020, the
revaluation process in December
2020 presents a further risk to loan

to value covenants.

Our expectation is that continued asset
sales and debt repayments, combined
with the strength of our underlying
asset base, the Merrion Estate in
particular, will ensure we are able to
successfully navigate these challenges.
The risk however remains significant.

Going concern and headroom

One of the most critical judgements
for the Board is the headroom in

the Group's debt facilities. This is
calculated as the maximum amount
that could be borrowed, taking into
account the properties secured to
the funders and the facilities in place.

The total headroom at 30 June 2020
was £14.8m (2019: £26.1m), which was
considered to be sufficient to suppart
our going concern conclusion.

Total shareholder return
and total property return

Total shareholder returns % (CAGR)

N Total sharehalder returns 1Year 10 Years 20 Years
Total shareholder return of minus
50.4% (2019: minus 25.0%) was Town Centre Securities (50.4%) 0.8% 5.0%
calculated as the total of dividends FTSE All Share REIT index (10.1%) 81% 2.3%
paid during the financial year of 11.75p
(2019: 11.75p) and the movement in
the share price between 30 June
2019 (205p) and 30 June 2020 (95p),
assuming reinvestment of dividends. Total property returns
This compares with the FTSE All Share
REIT index at minus 10.1% (2019: minus TCS  Quarterly Index
5.2%) for the same period. Retail (7.8%) (12.7%)
Disappointingly TCS has seen its Retail Warehouses (4.3%) (14.9%)
share price come under significant Shopping Centres (5.5%) (22.8%)
pressure despite the dividend
per over the Offices 3.4% 1.4%
timescales. The Company’s share AllProperty (2.1%) (2.9%)

price continues to trade at a significant
discount to its NAV, impacting totat
sharehotder return, The long-term
twenty-year measure remains positive.

Total property return is calculated
as the net operating profit and gains
/ losses from property sales and
valuations as a percentage of the
opening investment properties.

Total property return for the business
for the reported 12 months was

-2.1% (2019: 1.3%). This compared

to the MSCI/IPD market return of
-2.9% (2019: 3.1%).

A key driver of the All Property MSC1
index being higher than TCS is due
t0 the strong market performance
of industrial property of which TCS
has only a small amount.

Mark Dilley
Group Finance Director

12 months ending June 2020)
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Risk Report

Protecting value
by identifying
and managing
our principal and
emerging risks

is an integral part
of our operations.

Risk management

We take risk management very
seriously, such that reference to, and
consideration of, key risks form part

of the day to day workings of the
Company. Whilst we recognise that

a level of risk taking is inherent within
the running of a commercial enterprise,
we work o ensure that risk assessment
and mitigation is central to business
planning and decision-making.

The business has a number of formal
meetings during the year where risk
assessment is a core element of the

lude butare not i

Annual Strategy Review -
Begins with a review of key risks
facing the business and a review
of how the strategy will best
mitigate those risks.

Bi-annual Audit Committee -
Undertakes a formal review

of the risk register and mitigating
action plans.

Quarterly IT & Data

Governance Committee -

Chaired by the Group Finance
Director, this committee of senior
management reviews IT and data
specific risks and ensures that key
risks are understood and managed.
This includes a review of adherence
to the GDPR regulations.

Monthly Board Meetings -
Each meeting includes a review
of financial performance, debt
levels and banking covenants,
an IT update, and a review

of the papers and actions from
the Property Review Group.

O Monthly Property Review Group -
A meeting of the Executive Board
and senior Property and Finance
management, tasked at undertaking
areview of the property portfolio.
This includes occupancy fevels,
tenancy changes, adherence
to payment terms and bad debt
levels, and Health and Safety
and IT related matters.

O Monthly CitiPark Board Meeting -
A meeting of the Executive Board
and senior CitiPark, Property, and
Finance management, tasked at
reviewing the performance of the
CitiPark business, including key risks
and areas such as IT and Health
and Safety.

O Joint Venture Board Meetings -
Formal Board structures and
quarterly Board meetings are
in place for the Company’s two
main joint venture companies;
Merrion House LLP and Belgravia
Living Group Ltd.

COovVID-19

Whilst the above meeting structure
has and will continue to form a key
part of our risk management process,
the impact of COVID-19 has been

O weekly Non-Executive Board video
calls with the Chairman to follow
up on actions agreed at the Board
meeting, to review wider market
activity, and to ensure the Non-

ives are fully engaged in the

and
Consequently we have significantly
increased our risk management activity
to take account of this. That activity
has included:

O weekly full Board video calls
1o review the impact of COVID-19
on the business and to agree
on key actions.

actions of the business.

O Twice or three times weekly
senior management video calls
- operational meetings to review
all aspects of the business including
staff matters and wellbeing, rent
collections, car parking volumes,
tenant discussion, cost saving
initiatives, and IT considerations.

O Areview of the strategy and the
decision to speed up the disposals
of predominantly retail assets.

O Formal presentations to our
debenture holders by Edward
Ziff and Mark Dilley, to ensure
they understood the impact of
COVID-19 on TCS and the security
of their investment.

O Regular updates with our three
banks updating them on rent receipt
levels and car parking performance
and in the case of NatWest and
Uloyds discussion facility extensions.

Viability statement

h

Board considers the risk: "

Intaking this |
in this Risk

In with the
of the UK Corporate Governance
Code, the Board have assessed

the prospects of the Company and
future viability over a period longer
than the 12 months required by the
Going Concern provisian. In previous
years this review has been as part of
alonger-term three-year strategic
planning exercise. In the current year,
as a result of the COVID-19 di: i

O The potentially lasting effect of
COVID-19 on our assets, tenants,
hotel operation, car parking
operations, and the wider economy.

O Further changes in the macro-
economic environment affecting
rental income levels and
property values.

review. In particular the key risks identified are:

O Changes in the level of tenants
and sector risk affecting
accupancy levels and lettings.

O Changes in availability of capital,

affecting committed expenditure
and investment transactions.

the Board have undertaken an even
more rigorous scenario-based review
of potential outcomes but over a
slightly shorter two-year period. The
opinion of the Board being that if we
are comfortable with our viability
assumption over that period with the
additional COVID-19 related scenario
considerations that longer-term
viability beyond the two-year period
could reasonably be assumed.

The Board's review considered
cash flows, profitability, borrowing
headroom and other key financial
ratios, and required the business to
have clarity on its approach to bank
financing over a fonger periad.

The review

. These ios inct

O Arange of levels of rent receipts
affecting quarterly income up to
the end of June 2021.

O Arange of levels of car parking
income affecting profitability up
to the end of June 2021.

O The potential of a longer-term,
more permanent impact to rental
levels particularly with respect
to retail assets.

O The effect on cash, borrowing
levels, and headroom following a

Aligned to our Going Concern
statement the greatest uncertainty
and risk fies in relation to our asset
valuations and the possibility of
breaching bank and debenture
covenants. Given the current
circumstances this uncertainty will
continue beyond the shorter-term
future covered by the Going
Concern statement.

Based on the results of their review
whilst taking into account the level
of uncertainty, the Directors have
a l ion that the

signifi asset sale

O Cost savings assumptions were
deliberately restricted to the current
year for prudence although longer-
term savings would be envisaged
given the downside scenarios.

Company will be able to continue in
operation and meet its liabilities as they
fall due over the longer-term period

of their assessment.

agenda. We pay particular attention O YourParkingSpace.co.uk ('YPS') -
to new and emerging risks, in order to Following investment in YPS, TCS
ensure we put in place actions which Board Directors sit on the Board
attempt to remove or reduce risk before of YPS, which meets formally on
it occurs. We use our formal meeting abi-monthly basis.
structures to identify emerging risks,
as well as highlighting existing risks.
Our Principal Risk Register is summarised as follows:
Risk Uikelihood Impact Chango from HYZ0
Macro Economic  Economic & Political Outlook High Medium No Change
Corporate Strategy Medium High Worsening
People tow High No Change
Systems, Process & Financial Management Medium High No Change
GDPR . Medium High No Change
Regulatory & Tax Framework Low High No Change
Major Incident & Business Disruption High High Worsening
Property Investment Risk Medium Low No Change
Development Risk High High Worsening
Valuation Risk High Medium Worsening
Tenant & Sector Risk High High Worsening
Financing Capital & Financial Risk Medium High Worsening
Cast of Debt High Medium No Change

Going
The accounts for the year ended

30 June 2020 have been prepared
on a going concern basis. In light of
the current COVID-19 pandemic the
Directors have considered various
downside scenarios in assessing

the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Despite the potential
negative economic impacts and the

ur inty in respect of the timeline
for recovery, the scenarios reviewed
confirm the appropriateness of
preparing the financial statements

on a going concern basis. The most
material risk concerns the impact

of the COVID-13 pandemic on the
valuation of the property portfolio and
our ability to meet gearing covenants.
Whilst a significant risk, the Group

does have potential mitigants at its
disposal to address these uncertainties
which include, but are not limited to,
further disposals of assets, pledging as

dditional security properti
currently valued at £4.8m million as.
30 June 2020 and seeking lender
consent to an extension of financial
covenant waivers 1o cover extended
periods of disruption.
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Risk Report

continued

Macroeconomic risks

Risk Likehood  Impact Mitigation Trend
Economic and E E An o point In the cycle Is inevitable, E]
"l risk f
political outtook with the risk a ;;-;:w e tty oround the
] P X P
Abraad ecanomic downtur, the longer-term ecanomy resulting from COVID-19 has to be

potentially as a result of the
conclusion of Brexit, or broader
cyclical reasons could resuft in tenant
failures, falling asset values, rising
debt costs, or less debt availability.
n addition the ongoing potentially
lasting impact of COVID-19 and the
longer-term effects of the actions
taken by Goverament to manage the
disruption will in all likelihood have
lasting economic effect.

Corporate risks

Risk Utelhood _tmpact

Tes woutd the impact
downturn, however specific mitigating factors for T€S Include:

Rents paid in advance.

Market leading fevel of occupancy and a long history of ensuring

on-time payment by tenants pre-COVID-13.

A reduced and reducing level of retail exposure, with much of the
remaining portfolio focused on discount and convenience retailing

Avoidance of speculative developments.

Concentrated portfolio of car parks in highly sought-after loca-
tions.

Bank agreements ranging from one to three years in length, and
the long-term debenture accounting for . 60% of our debt.

Mitigation

Trend

Strategy E] E}

The Company's strategy could

be inappropriate for the current
stage of the property cycle and the
economic climate, resulting in lower
profits and therefare a pressure on
dividend and shareholder return.
This risk has been exacerbated

by COVID-1G due to increased
debt levels and the subsequently
changed attitudes towards
property usage.

the following help mitigate risk:

All key decisions are reviewed and approved at Board level.
The strategy of developing diverse multi-use sites and lowering
exposure to retail remains appropriate.

following COVID-19.

The experience and expertise of the team, particularly in relation

ta the property markets of Leeds and Manchester.

- The presence of the Ziff Concert Party ensures a strong allgnment

of management and sharehalder sims.

The strategy to sefl retail and leisure assets has been accelerated

People I al

The inability to attract and retain
high calibre staff, affecting the
oongoing success of the Company.

52

The Company benefits from the long service of a number
of key including family f Party,
which helps guarantee stability. In addition:

Base salary packeges are kept competitive within the market.
The Remuneration Committee reviews succession plans and
pay levels annually.

New recent i the

of the business to new recruits at all levels.

A history of conservative financlal management combined
with the development opportunities of the business make
the Campany attractive to new recruits.

Corporate risks toninued)

Likellhood

(oo [t

- (o [o]wesm
ChangefromHY20 Improving Eﬂn Chango

Risk Likefihoed  Impact Mitigation Trand

Systems, processes and E] m he Company hasa culturs of sssots, being E
it and using

financial management riek levels are lows

Weak contrals putting at risk the

protection of the Company's assets
and ability to deliver on its strategy,
resulting In financial loss, fraud, and
suboptimal returns. Risk to data and
systems as a result of cyber-attacks.

IT systems are supported in house, with key services having been
moved to the cloud.

Horizon is our combined property and accounting IT solution
ensuring we remain well controlled in this respect. This has been
upgraded and moved onto the cloud, further safeguarding business
continuity.

Financial processes refating to cash are tight, robust, and reviewed
regularly. Clear and separated authorisation processes are in place
and robustly adhered to.

Insurance policies are fully in place to safeguard assets.

Staff are trained in all aspects of cyber security and penetration,
and phishing tests are carried out to test for weaknesses.

A summary of the Internal financial control review processes

can be found in the Audit Committee report of the Annual Report.

GDPR E]

Financial and reputational risk
arising from @ breach of GDPR
regulations, potentially resulting in
fines and damage 10 customer trust.

Glven the nature of the busii

we do not hols

amount:

of customer data, with the CitiPark business our highest risk area.
That said, the the f the
legislation and has implemented a detalled action plan that has been
reviewed at Board level. Key aspects include:

Updated all Privacy related statements and policies.

Tralned all staff on theirs and the Company’s responsibilities.
IT & Data Governance Committee in place, meeting quarterly,
to oversee all aspects of GOPR and wider cyber security.

=

Regulatory and

tax framework
Nen-compliance with tax, legal, or
regulatory obligations could result
in financial penatties, reputational
damage. and higher levels of cost.

‘The Company takes its legal responsibilities seriously. Matters are
reviewed regularly at Board and Audit Committee level, and the

Company mak

f third-party toensure

compllance. Actlons include:

Link Company Matters engaged as formal Company Secretary
to provide advice and recommendations to the Company and
attend Board meetings.

PWC sre engaged as the Company's tax advisors and are
tasked with ensuring we remain compliant in all aspects of Tax.
The Corporate and Criminal Offences lagislation (CCO) is a key
consideration and 8 workshop has been held to ensure risks
and mitigating actions are clearly understood.

=

Maijor incident/ ¥
business disruption
Costand business down-time

as 2 result of a major incident.
This risk is primarily associated
with the Merrion Centre, due to
its importance to the portfolio
and as the focation of Company's
head office. This risk has been
exacerbated as a result of the
COVID-18 disruption.

&

The pravision of insurance acrass the portfolio is the maln mitigation
to this rlsk, with policies In place to protect income as a result of
disruption. In terms of disruption to the head office the following
actions are in place, all of which have ensured our ability to function
tully during the COVID-19 disruption:

All personnel either have laptops or have technology at home

which enables remote working.
ur ical focus in Leeds and enables

2 hands on approzch with the majority of our praperties and

tenants is possible.

Back up procedures are in place to ensure minimal loss of data

in the event of damage to IT hardware.

Horizon and email (Microsoft 365) have been moved to a cloud-

based technology significantly improving business continuity.
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Risk Report

continued

Property risks

Riak Utelhood Impact  Mhlgation

Trend

The Company has clear plans in place to minimise the impact

nt risk
Investment ris| EI of this risk, Including:

New investment
opportunities cannot be sourced
at economic prices.

The Company typically targets assets of higher value than

sought by individual investors, but lower than many larger property
or averseas investors.

The Company looks to build strong relationships with partners

to generate opportunities that can be exploited together.

For example, our Belgravia Living PRS venture.

The existing portfolio has enough development potential to provide
growth oppartunities even if asset purchase prices rise.

Development risk
Development projects may
exceed cost estimates and/or
newly developed properties may fail
to rent. The scale of such projects
means they are of material size to
the Company. With the property
market in a state of flux in the
current climate any long-term
investment with significant capital
required represents a heightened

T r
™ such risks including:

Build projects are generally contracted with third parties

on a fixed cost 3

Where possible, the Company seeks 1o undertake a development
where there s a signi level of pre-let i

Where that is not possible (e.g. PRS residential investments),

a detailed market analysis will be undertaken, and the Company
will ensure that locations are in high demand and that target rental
tevels are achievable.

When in Joint Venture, formal Board structures are created with at

leve! of risk.

evelotrs least quarterly meetings to review progress and performance, and to
ensure that all development risks are being managed appropriately.

Valuation risk E‘ E‘ The key mitigation to this risk isensuring there Isenoun.h headrcom

A material devaluation in assets. ::e!:;l:‘x::nl.ul:a::;zed assets of undrawn, charged facilities.

This is particularly high in relation
1o retaif assets due to the changing
nature of shopping habits that has
been accelerated by COVID-19.

Our Handelshanken facility doesn't expire until June 2023,

we have recently extended cur Natwest facility until April 2022,
and our Lloyds Bank facility has the ability to extend for a further
two years beyond its initial June 2021 maturity date.

All three facilities now allowing charging of development and car
park assets, maximising our drawdown ability. In addition, Lioyds
facility has removed any cap on such assets.

Asset cover in the long-term debenture can drop to 1.5x without
triggering a cavenant break.

The Company recycles assets believed to be at greatest risk

of ion, and has an ion in its dit

of retail assets.

There have been an increasing number of CVAs and administrations
within the retail sector. Furthermore due to the requirement for many
retail and leisure tenants to close for an extended period during the
COVID-19 crisis, their ability to pay rent and to remain a going concern
remain a concern, TCS are taking a number of actions:

Tenant and sector risk ]
Individual tenant failures,

or exposure to a specilic sector.

This risk has been heightened by

the impact of COVIDAS particularly

on retail and leisure tenants.

Since 2016 the Company has significantly reduced its exposure

to retail from 70% to 47% of value at June 2020.

Now a mixed-use asset, the Merrion Centre now depends upon
mall retail for less than 25% of its income.

We have a diversified tenant base, and limited exposure

to individual tenants. Our top tenants are Leeds City Council,
Waitrose and Morrisons.

In normal times, CitiPark income helps further mitigate the reliance
on specific property tenants.

We have granted many of our tenants rent-free periods or other
concessions during the COVID-19 crisis with the aim of hefping
ensure they are able to continue trading and remain valuable tenants
post COVID-19. The arrangements finalised after the year end.

¢

Financing risks

Risk

[Juwr [ wesm

LUkelihood
o [ow [a]win
enamge om0 I -

Likeihood  Impact

Mitigation

Capital and financial risk
The Company has Insufficient
funds/lines of credit. With debt
levels increasing and property
valuations decreasing as & result
of COVID9 this area of risk *

has increased.

M ™

The majority of mitigating actions are contained within the
Valuation risk category abave. In addition:

The Board reviews cash balances, forecast cash flow,
borrowing levels and headroom on a monthly basis.
The Company demonstrated during the last downturn the
strength of its conservetive spproach and langstanding
relationships with its banks.

- The Company has extended its NatWes! facility by one year
and is in the process of extending the Lloyds Bank facility.

- The Companys policy of accelerating asset sales will enable

a reduction in absolute debt fevels. R

Cost of debt

Rising debt costs.

The following actit the risk to

More than 50% of debt is in the form of fixed, long-term
debenture barrowing in place to 2031

- The recent extension of the NatWest facility has been agreed
with no change to terms or cost.

- The Company has a significant amount of income
tointerest headraom.

- The Board takes moving Libor rates into account when
considering three-year budgets and affordability.
The business is in the process of discussing with our banks
the process of replacing LIBOR as it ceases to be used in
banking facilities.

This Strategic Report and the information referred to herein was approved on behalf of the Board on 22 September 2020.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBEDL
Chairman & Chief Execigjve

(o
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02. Corporate governance
tntroduction from Chairman

Introduction from Chairman
Board of Directors
Normination Cornmitice Report

: The Board has taken
e steps over the last eighteen
— months to implement

the new 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code

(the ‘Code’) in a way

that is appropriate for

Town Centre Secuirities.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive
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02. Corporate Governance

This year we have produced

a section 172 statement
demonstrating how Directors
have discharged their duties

to the Company's stakeholders.
This statement can be found

on pages 32-33.

Wherever possible, the Board seeks
to comply with the Principles set out
in the 2018 UK Carporate Governance
Code (the ‘Code’). However, the
Board takes a pragmatic approach
and, because ofithe size and nature
of the Company, makes a carefully
considered judgement about how

it should apply the Code. The Board
keeps this under regular review and
decisions on these matters are made
by the Board taking into account the
best interests of all stakeholders.

The Board currently consists of

three independent Non-Executive
Directors who, as well as contributing
invaluable support and guidance, offer
significant challenge to me and the
other Executive Directors. The Board's

We report below in more detail

why the Board continues to believe
that itis appropriate for the roles of
Chairman and Chief E: tive to be

the Non-Executive Directors to

have greater access to those parts

of the business. This provides more
ity for a robust

combined. Clearly, the Board is aware
that this is not in compliance with the
Code and recognises that a number
of shareholders will have concerns
about this. It is a matter which the
independent Non-Executives keep
under continual review and will
continue to keep under review to
ensure that is in the best interests

of the Company’s stakeholders.

The presence on the Board of key
executive management provides the
Non-Executive Directors with direct
access to these major functions rather
than through the Chief Executive.

In addition, the three i

of the Company at a level aside from
the CEQ. This level of representation

of management and increased access
for robust chaltenge by Non-Executive
Directors is highly unusual at Board level
and without this wider representation,
the Board would meet the requirement
of at least half the Board being
independent. Again, this is a matter
which the independent Directors

have reviewed and concluded that
given the size of the Company, three
independent Directors is appropriate
and that to change the composition

of the Board would at this point be
disrupti d add

Non-Executives are extremely rigorous
in their review of my performance

as Chairman focusing on ensuring
the Chairman:

O demoanstrates objective judgement
and promotes a culture of
openness and debate; and

focus this year had been on long
strategy but in recent months this
has moved to the difficult i

O facili
Board relations and the
ffecti ibution of all

environment resulting from the
COVID-19 pandemic. Whilst this has
led the Board to consider some short-
term issues, it is of critical importance
that the Board now considers the
medium and long-term strategy.

The independent Non-Executive
Directors have provided robust
challenge and this has been
particularly important over the recent
months. In addition to aur regular
scheduled Board meetings, | have
held weekly meetings with the Non-
Executive Directors which has béen
of invaluable help. | am grateful to
each of them for the additional time
they have given to the Company whilst
accepting a temporary 20% reduction
in their fees.

We are sorry that Lynda Shillaw left

the business at the end of August 2020,
and we wish her well for the future.

We are not replacing Lynda directly

but have made two new appointments

Non-Executive Directors.

The independent Directors are firmly
of the view that my holding the
combined role of Chairman and Chief
Executive continues to be in the best
interests of the Company. Whilst the
combined role remains appropriate
for the time being, with me being in
a unique position - my father having
founded the Company and the Ziff
family being the largest shareholder
overall - the Board will continue to
review the situation on a regular basis.

1also wanted to take the opportunity
to directly address the issue concerning
the number of independent Non-
Executive Directors. Currently less than
at least half the Board are independent
(as required by the Code). However,
given my combined role as Chair/
CEO, the Board agreed that including
wider management representation
on the Board, for example the CitiPark
Director and i

which are detailed in the
Committee report on page 66.

the Property Director, would allow

Yy cost.
This is a matter that will be kept under
review and is covered specifically in the
Board evaluation exercise. The Board
will however consider increasing the
number of independent directors over
a period of time and as opportunities.
arise. This will be a key part of the
succession plan that the nomination
Committee will be focused on over
the next 12 months.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive
22 September 2020
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Corporate governance

Board of Directors

Dr. Edward Ziff
osEDL
Chairman &
Chief Executive

Mark Dilley
ACMA

Group Finance Director

Ben Ziff

Managing Director CitiPark
& TCS Energy

Appointed _ 08/1985 0772017 09/2015
Independent No No No
Committee
Membership ﬂ
skills& Edward 2if joined the Company in 1981 Mark's chantared accounting qualification  Ber's lang and close involvement with
Experiance  before being appointed to the Bosrd clearly underpins his sbility to deliver the business ensures he is slways able to
=== in 1985, becoming Managing Director in his role as. Grenp Finance Director. In take the wider, cross business fong-term
in1983, Chief Executive in 2001 and addition, his previous roles s a senior view, In gddition, his wide knowledge
succeeded his Father and Founder of commercial finance business partner of the rapidly changing effects of
the Company es Chairman in 2004. ensure he s able to guide and sdd velue technology ensures that we are ble to
Edward 0 fe-long supporterof Leeds  in the operational aspecis of the business  take f new ways of doing
the city and ploys an active role in the 8 well a5 inputting in to th gi the property and
commuriy.A assioate family man, direction the business takes. car parking parts of the Company.
Edward brings a strong pastoral care ol i
sspect to the business, encouraging Senioined TCSin 2008 becoming
individus! leadership and an active role iPark Managing Director 9.
inthe community through local charities. In September 2015, Ben was appointed
v throud o the Board of Directors.
Edward’s position a5 san of the founder,
and his lifelong experience working in
the business make him uniquely qualified
to lead the Company. The wider ol
he plays in the Leeds community, in
particular, support leading this proudly
Leeds-based business.
Extornal He is Chair and Trustee of Leeds None None
Appaintments  Cares. @ member of Councilof the
———— University of Leeds, o Trustee of the
United Hebrew Cangregation. Leeds,
‘and a Deputy Lisutenant for the
County of West Yorkshire.
Previous n 2013 he was awarded an Honorary Mark joined the Bosrdin July 2017tom  Ben successfully led the 2013
Experlence  Doctorate of Business Administrstion Asda Stores Limited (part of Walmart) redevelopment of the Merrion Centre
== by Leeds Becker University. Edward where he held @ number of senior mulii-storey car park, which turned o
was awarded an OBE for services to the finance roles over fourteen years, 1960s structure into a state-of-the-art
Leeds community and economy in the  including latterly as Vice President, facilty featuring cutting-edge systems.
2017 Queen’s birthday honours list Retail and Property Finance where he Since 2014, Ben has led the acquisitions
was responsible for all Asda stores programme which has doubled the
and distribution centres s well as the size of the car park division. Ben's
new store acquisitions. Prior to Asda, personal interest in combining tech,
Mark held senior finance positions at renewable energy and €V Charging
1P Mozgan in London for six years, and led to the development of TCS Energy
began his career at Unilever. Mark is in 2012 which pursues renewable
o graduate of the University of Oxford energy production and storage. Ben
and s a quaified b dth ;
edge technology to revolutionise and
maximise its operations, including
guiding the Board's financial Investment
of YourParkingSpace.co.uk.
58

Michaet Ziff
Hon DUy (Brad)

Non-Executive Director

07/2004

Cammittoe

[ [

O

fan Marcus
OBEFRICS

Non-Executive Director

01/2015

Paul Huberman
FCACTA

Non-Executive Director

01/2015

Jeremy Collins

Non-Executive Director

02/2018

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

™

Michas'slielong invovement
with the Company ant
experience puts hlm ina

MED

lon's significant experlance
in the property and corparate
finance worlds give himan

o) - jo

Paul Huberman wes appointed
& Director in January 2015.
He brings over 33 years®

unique position to
TCS and give counsel based on
the founding principtes of the

business and the importance of

taking @ long-term strategic view.

Michael was appointed to the
Board in July 2004.

d a network
that can valuably inform,
guide and support TCS both in
making dsy to day operational
decisions, and in setting the
long-term strategic direction
of the business. He has broad
Remuneration experience which
supports his role as Chair of
the Remuneration Commitiee.
lan Marcus was appointed to
the Board in January 2015.

the property

and finance sector.

Paul's previous experience as
Finance Director at three quoted
companies, and his ongoing work
in the real estate arena mean

that he can robustly challenge
and scrutinise the financial

affalrs of the buslness, leading
the Audit Committee, as well s

HMEE

Jeremy wes appointed to the
Board in February 2018 and
has over 35 years’ experience
in retail property development
and management.

Jeremy’s wide experience base
as @ property prafessional,
particularly in the retail field,
puts him in a strong position

1 help TCS really understand
the challenges of owning retail
property during a period of such
s-gmllcam change. His guidance
fsce of retail

creullngmvxedmse communities
plays sn important role in the
Company's strategic planning.

Heis a Oirector of W Barcatt
&Co Lid, Transworld Business
Advisors UK Ltd and London
Business Franchise & Brokerage
Lid. He s President and a trustee
of Maccebi GB and International
Vice President of Maccabi

‘World Union. He is also Hon
President of UK Israel Business
and Member of Council at the
University of Bradford.

tan s Trustee of The Princes
Foundation and a member of
Redevco's Advisory Board.
He s Senior Advisor to Eastdil
Secured, the Senior Independent
Director for Secure Income REIT,
the Senior Independent Director
for Shurgard Self Storage

. Senior Advisor to Elysisn
Residences, Advisor to Work.Life,
and a senior advisor to Anschutz
Entertainment Group. lan is
also President of Cambridge
University Land Society.

He is currently a Non-Executive
Director of Galliard Homes
Limited, a Non-Executive Director
st LIFE At Ltd, 8 Non-Executive
Oirectar at GetBusy plc, a Non-
Executive Director at a privately-
owned property group, and a
Non-Executive Director at The
Industrial Dwellings Society
(1885) Ltd. He also sits on the.
advisory board for London Resort
Company Holdings td.

Jeremy is Property Director
and Executive Bosrd member
at Fenwick.

lan spent over 32 yesrs as an
investment banker latterly at
Credit Suisse. 1an was previously
& Crown Estate Commissioner, a5
is 8 former chairman of the Bank
of England Commercial Property
Forum and a Past President of the
British Property Federation.

Paul was previously Finance
Director at three quot
companies. Previously Paul was
& Non-Executive Director at GRIT
Real Estate Income Group Ltd,

a listed pan African property
investment company and
Non-Executive Director at JCRA
Group Ltd, the holding company
of JC Rathbone Associstes Ltd,
the independent advisors on

Jeremy spent 15 years at lohn
Lewis including s Property
Director until 2018. Previous
experience includes warking for
Lend Lease, MEPC and Grosvenor
Square Properties, Jeremy’s first
job was at Wirral Metropolitan
Boraugh Council, which gave
him an insight into the workings
of loca! autherities and began his
passion for urben regeneration.

" ation.

interest rate risk
debt finance and foreign
exchange exposure.

of Reading, qualified as a
chartered surveyor, and is a Past
President of the British Council
of Shopping Centres.
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Corporate governance

continued

Board 6f Directors

Details of the Board of Directors are given on pages 58-59

of this report. At the end of the year the Board comprised four
Non-Executive Directors, three of whom are independent and four
Executive Directors, including the Chairman & Chief Executive.

The key roles and responsibilities are as follows:

Dr. Edward Ziff
oseoL
Chairman & Chief Executive

O Ensure a robust decision-making
process is in place and all
appropriate information is provided
to the Board in a timely manner.

[m]

Setting the Board agenda, focusing
on strategic matters and giving
adequate time to other key issues
as required.

O Managing the 8oard to allow
time for discussion of complex
or contentious issues.

Mark Dilley
ACMA
Group Finance Director

DO Provide advice and guidance
on financial strategy.

O Ensure the Group's financial
commitments, targets and
obligations are met.

o

Budget setting and performance
management.

[w]

Ensure compliance with
statutory regulations.

[w]

Assist with shareholder

=]

Ensuring the Board
its responsibilities with respect to
Risk Management and Governance,
promoting high standards of
Corporate Governance.

O Effective communication
with shareholders and other
stakeholders.

O Leadership of the Board
and the Company.

O Successful achievement
of objectives and execution
of strategy.

=]

Responsible for identifying
and recruiting Board members.

[w]

Ensure long-term business
sustainability.

O Ensure implementation
of Board decisions.

[=]

Oversee all banking
and debt facilities.

O Board responsibility
for IT and data security.

Ben Ziff
Managing Director

lan Marcus
OBEFRICS
Senior Independent Director

O Supporting the Chairman and
CEO's defivery of objectives.

O Leading the Non-Executive
Directors in the oversight and
evaluation of the Chairman
and CEO.

O Being available to shareholders to
express concerns that the normal
channels have failed to resolve or
which would be inappropriate.

o

Taking responsibility for an orderly
succession process for the
Chairman were it to be required.

Our four Non-Executive Directors
bring considerable experience and
expertise to the work of the Board
and provide a significant independent
view to our deliberations.

They regularly challenge and question
the ions of the i

O Provide advice and
on car parking strategy.

D Implement agreed business
plan for CitiPark.

[m]

Identify and recruit CitiPark
senior management team.

o

Identify and propose car park
acquisitions and/or disposals.

Identify and lead relationship
with property and car park related
technology investments.

[m]

and have a particular focus on the
interests of all shareholders, including
non-family shareholders.

tn with the UK C
Governance Code the Board
considers Jeremy Collins, Paul
Huberman, and lan Marcus to be
independent and confirm that they:

[ have not been an employee of
the Company or Group during
the prior five years;

o

have not had any material
business relationship with the
Company or been a Director or

a senior employee of a body which
has had such a relationship with
the Company;

o

have not received or receive
remuneration from the Company
other than Directors’ fees, nor do
they participate in any Company
Share Plan, nor are they a member
of the Company'’s pension scheme;

O do not have close family ties with
the Company's advisors, Directors,
or senior employees;

O have no cross Directors or
significant links with other Directors
through involvement in other
companies and bodies;

O do not represent a significant
shareholder;

D have not been a Directar of the
Company for more than nine years
since their first appointment.

One of the Non-Executive Directors,
Michael Ziff, is not considered to

be independent, due mainly to his
shareholding in the Company and his
close family ties. The Board considers
that he brings extensive experience
and expertise and provides an
invaluable contribution to the work
of the Board. The remaining three
Non-Executive Directors are
considered to be independent.

Additionally, under the Code, the
Company is required to identify a Senior
Independent Non-Executive Director.
lan Marcus and Paul Huberman were
appointed on the same day and,

while they have different skills and
experience, neither is senior to the
other. Consequently, for the purpose

of comptiance with the Code, the

position will alternate on an annual
basis. Over the past year Paul
Huberman has stood as our Senior
Independent Director and therefore,
from the date of this report until the
next, the position will be rotated to
lan Marcus.

Prior to the introduction of the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code, fan
Marcus was i asa

The Group maintains liabitity
insurance on behalf of Directors
and Officers of the Company.

On appointment, the Directors are
provided with information about

the Group's operations, the role of

the Board, the Group's corporate
governance policies and the latest
financial information. Additionally, upon

representative. His role has been key
in ensuring workforce representation
in the di ions and decisions of the

Directors are provided
with induction including training in
respect of all their responsibilities in

Board, useful in enabling all Directors
to perform their duties under Section
172 Companies Act 2006.

The full Board met eight times in the
year and the record of Directors”
attendance at the Board meetings is
set out overleaf. Additionally the Board
met every week from April as a result
of the COVID-19 crisis, although those
meetings are not included in the formal
reporting on page 63. This year the
Board met twice specifically to review
the strategic direction of the Group.
The Board manages overall contral of
the Group’s affairs in accordance with
the schedule of matters reserved for its
decision. These include the approval
of financial statements, business plans,
all major acquisitions and disposals,
risk management strategy and treasury
decisions.

The Board has established two
divisional Boards, the Property Review
Board (seven meetings in the year)
and CitiPark Board (nine meetings in
the year), which comprise Executive
Directors and senior management.
The Board has delegated responsibility
to the divisional Boards for assisting
the Executive Directors on measures
relating to the Board's strategies and
policies, operational management
and the implementation of the
systems of internal control, within
agreed parameters.

There is an agreed procedure for
Directors to take independent
professional advice at the Company’s
expense, if necessary, in the
performance of their duties. This is

in addition to the access which every
Director has to the Company Secretary.

with the UK regulatory
regime. Subsequent training is also
undertaken as appropriate.

The appointment and remaval

of Directors is governed by the
Company’s Articles of Association,
the UK Corporate Governance Code
and the Companies Act 2006 and
other related legislation. The Articles
are available on application to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office.

The Independent Non-Executive
Directors meet at least once a year
without the other Executive Directors
present to discuss the performance of
the Board and to appraise the Chairman
and Chief Executive’s performance.

2018 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the ‘Code’)
As part of the Company’s commitment
ta good corporate governance a review
of compliance with the 2018 code
was undertaken and areas of non-
compliance identified. The Board has
undertaken several changes to comply
with the 2018 code and several other
actions remain ongoing. Detail on
compliance with the Code is provided
on page 64.
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continued

Listing rules

Inaccordance with listing rule 9.8.4 R the following information

has been disclosed as set out below.

Listing rule requirement

A statement of the amount of
interest capitalised during the period
under review and details of any
related tax relief.

Information required in refation

to the publication of unaudited
financial information.

Details of any long-term

incentive schemes.

Details of any arrangements
under which a Director has waived
emoluments, or agreed to waive
any future emoluments, from

the Company.

Details of any non pre-emptive issues
of equity for cash.

Details of any non pre-emptive issues
of equity for cash by any unlisted
major subsidiary undertaking.
Details of parent participation in

a placing by a listed subsidiary.
Details of any contract of
significance in which a Director

is or was materially interested.
Details of any contract of
significance between the Company
(or one of its subsidiaries) and

a controlling shareholder.

Details of waiver of dividends

by a shareholder.

Board statement in respect

of telationship agreement with

the contiolling shareholder.

Location

Not applicable

Not applicable

No such long-term
incentive plans

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
from April 2020 until Seplember
2020 the Non-Executive
Directors accepted a 20%
reduction in fees. The salaries
of the Execulive Directors were
also reduced by 20% for the
same period.

No such share allotments

No such share allotments

Not applicable

No such contract

No such contract

No such waiver

Directors’ Report, page 80
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Performance of the Board

The effectiveness of the Board, its
committees and Directors was reviewed
as part of Board proceedings. Given
the size of the Board and nature of the
business the Directors performed an
internal Board evaluation. The Board
recognises the requirement to consider
the use of an external evaluator at

least every three years and during the
next financial year will consider the
appropriateness of this measure for
Town Centre Securities.

The evaluation of the Board and its
committees, which did not highlight
any areas of concern, considered:

O the Directors’ understanding
of the roles and responsibilities of
the Board and of its committees;

o

the structure of the Group,
including succession planning
in keys areas of the business;

ja]

the Board's understanding
of the Group’s activities and
the appropriateness of its
strategic plan;

o

whether Board meetings effectively
monitor and evaluate progress
towards strategic goals;

o

Board composition and the
involvement of each Director
in the business of the Group;

o

the overall effectiveness of the
Board in the provision of the
_necessary experience required to
direct the business efficiently; and

D

the effectiveness of the Board
committees in performing
their roles.

The evaluation of the performance

of individual Directors was undertaken
by the Chairman and Chief Executive
and the performance of the Chairman
and Chief Executive was evaluated

by the Non-Executive Directors led

by the Senior Non-Executive Director,
taking into account the views of the
Executive Directors.

The independent Non-Executive
Directors met at least once during
the year without the Chairman and
non-independent Directors.

Committees of the Board

Edward Ziff (Chair)

lan Marcus

Paul Huberman

Jeremy Collins

Michael Ziff

Audit Committee

Paul Huberman (Chair}

lan Marcus

Jeremy Collins

ion Ct

lan Marcus (Chair)

Paul Huberman

Jeremy Collins

Attendance at
Board Meetings {of 8)
Edward Ziff

Mark Dilley

Lynda Shillaw

Ben Ziff

Michael Ziff

lan Marcus

Paul Huberman

Jeremy Collins

olo|leo|lo|lalo|ew|e

Attendance at Audit
Committee Meetings (of 2)
Pau!l Huberman

lan Marcus

Jeremy Collins

?|
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Corporate governance

continued
of li Provislon Explanatlon of departure from the Code
with the UK Corporate Qovemance Code
Provisi The rales of the chai The Board that the appoir
Governance Code 9 and chief executive should  of Edward Ziff as Chairman and CEO and his
g‘edu'(( ‘:\0'80;9‘? 50"2'“'@"‘-‘2 not be exercised by the  tenure depart from the UK Code.
ode ('the Code’) can be foun same individual.
an the FRC's website: frc.org.uk. Edward Ziff became Chief Executive in 2001
Under the Code, the Board is required and succeeded his Father and Founder of the
to make a number of statements. Company “‘s c;‘“e'ga"r";"‘ ﬁ)’o:;\zh":‘"’"d
X unanimausly agre , mber of
These statements are set out below: reasons, including cost efficlency, that taking
on bath rofes would be in the Company's
1. Compliance with the Code: best interests. The Board is focused on the
As a Company listed on the commercial success of the Company and
believes that continuing the combined
London Stock Exchange T°g‘.‘" position of Chairman and Chief Executive
Centre Securities PLC is subject is the best way to achieve this. Furthermore,
to the requirements of the Code. the Board nated the contributions which have
The Board is required to comply been made by Edward Ziff in delivering the
with the Code and, where it strategy of the Company, whilst utilising his
does not, explain the reasons for position to act as an ambassador for
non-compliance. The Board now the Company.
reports against the 2018 Corporate As mentioned previously, the Company
Governance Code and has also took the step to include wider management
produced a Section 172 Statement representation at Board level as a measure
demonstrating how Directors to give the Non-Executive Directars greater
have performed their duties in access and further avenues to scrutinise the
compliance with Section 172 business. This ensures an appropriate level
N of robust challenge and is an ongoing focus
of the Campanies Act 2006. for the Non-Executive Directors.
: The Independent Directors meet at least
Statement of compliance annually in a private session chaired by the
with the Code Senior Independent Director to consider the
The Board has considered the governance of the Company including the
principles and provisions of the :::dlsggoal responsibilities for the Chairman
Code, published by the Financial .
Reporting Council (FRC'). The Board Edward Ziff willstand for re-clection at sl
of Directors has complied with the future Annual General Meetings in accordance
Code throughout the year except with the 2018 Code requirements.
for the following matters: Provision  Chair not ta remain in post _ Edward Ziff was appointed Chairman and CEG
19 for mare than nine years.  in 2004, which the Board feels continues to be
in the best interest of the Company. Due to this
combined role Edward Ziff is not considered
to be independent. The Board believes that the
valuable experience provided by Edward Ziff
continues to benefit the Company.
Provision Notice or contract periods  The Chairman and Chief Executive has a
39 should be set st one year  service contract with a notice period greater
or less. than one year.
Given the role and experience of the Chairman
and Chief Executive, and his deep knowledge
of the Company, the Board believes the longer
notice period continues to be appropriate
Provision  Atleast half the Board, The Board noted that less than half of the
1 excluding the Chairman Board is considered to be independent. The

10 be independent.

composition of the Board s regularly reviewed
ta ensure that there is n approptiate balance
of skills and experience. The Board currently
comprises four Non-Executive Directors.

Again, without the unusual wider
management representation on the Board,
the Company would meet the required ratio
of Independent Directors.

N

w

a

. Goingconcern:

The Board is required to confirm
that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operation
for at least 12 months.

The Directors are satisfied that
the Group has adequate resources
to continue to be operational as a

5. Risk managementand
internal control:
The Board is required to monitor
the Company’s risk it

Relations with shareholders
The Board is committed to
maintaining good communications

and internal control systems and,
at least annually, carry out a review
of their effectiveness.

The Board conducted a review
of the i of the systems.

going concern for the
future and therefore have adopted
the going concern basis in
preparing the Group's 2020
financial statements. More details
can be found in the Risk Report on
page 51 and the Director’s Report
on page 80.

. Viability statement:

The Board is required to assess
the viability of the Company taking
into account the current pasition
and the potential impact of the
principal risks and uncertainties
facing the business.

The Directors have a

of risk management and internal
control during the year, and
considers that there is a sound
system in place. More detail can
be found in the Audit Committee
Report on page 68.

*

Fair, balanced

and understandable:

The Board is required to confirm
that it considers the Annual
Report, taken as a whole, to be
fair, balanced and understandable
and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to
assess the Company's position
and , business model

expectation that the Group will
be able to continue in operation
and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the next two years. Our
Viability Statement can be found
in the Risk Report on page 51.

Principal risks facing the Group:
The Board is required to confirm
that a robust assessment of the
principal and emerging risks facing
the Company has been carried out
and should describe those risks
and explain how they are being
managed or mitigated.

A robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Company
was undertaken during the

year, including those that would
threaten its business mode!, future
performance, solvency or liquidity.
These risks and how they are being
managed or mitigated can be
found in the Risk Report starting
on page 50.

and strategy.

The Directors consider, to the
best of each person’s knowledge
and belief that, the Annual
Report, taken as a whole is fair,
balanced and understandable
and provides the information
necessary for to

with shareholders. The Chairman and
Chief Executive and Group Finance
Director maintain a dialogue with
institutional shareholders and analysts
immediately after the announcement
of the half year and full year results.
Their views are reported to the Board
as appropriate. The Company also
encourages communications with
private shareholders throughout the
year and welcomes their participation
at shareholder meetings.

The principal communication with
private shareholders is through the
Annual Report and Accounts, the Half
Year release and the Annual General
Meeting (AGM). The Notice of AGM and
related papers are communicated to
shareholders at least 20 working days
before the meeting to give shareholders
sufficient time to consider the business
of the meeting. All Directors attend

the AGM and shareholders are given
the opportunity to ask questions of

the Board and meet all the Directors
informally after the meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed
for each item of business and the
proxy votes for, against and withheld
are announced. An announcement

assess the Company's position and
performance, business model and
strategy. This is considered in the
Audit Committee Report on page
68 and the Statement of Director’s
Responsibilities an page 82.

g f ions passed at the
AGM is made through the London
Stock Exchange immediately after
the meeting. The Senior Independent
Director is available to shareholders
at all times if they have concerns they
wish to raise.

The Group has a comprehensive
website on which up to date
information is available to all
shareholders and potential investors
(tcs-plc.co.uk).

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive
22 September 2020

@ma\i@_
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Dear Shareholder,

I am pleased to continue to act as
Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The other members of the Committee are
Jeremy Collins, 1an Marcus, Paul Huberman
and Michael Ziff. The Committee therefore
comprises a majority of Independent
Directors. The Committee formally met

once during the year.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman & Chief Executive

Responsibilities of

the Nomination Committee
The Committee is responsible for

the regular review of the structure,
size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, independence and
experience) of the Board and it makes
recommendations to the Board with
regard 10 any changes.

The Committee also considers
succession planning for the Executive
Board in the course of its work, taking
into account the challenges and
opportunities being faced and the
skills and expertise required.
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Work of the Committee

during the year

The effectiveness of the Board, its
committees and Directors was reviewed
as part of the September Board
proceedings. More detail can be found
in the Directors’ Report on page 80.

As a result of this exercise, the
Committee will be focusing on
continuing 1o develop its succession
plan for the Board.

A central part of this plan will be to seek
to make the Board more diverse. The

Instead we are creating two new
positions, whilst not Executive Board
positions both will be invited to

attend Board meetings continuing our
commitment to giving the full Board
the ability to receive updates from the
wider management team. | am pleased
that Helen Green, our former Associate
Property Director is taking the role of
Property Director. In addition Craig
Burrow, formally at Bruntwood is
joining TCS as Development Director.
Both will formally be in role by the
beginning of October 2020.

The C: i ises that the

Company will face new in

the future, some of which existed prior

to the COVID-19 pandemic, but these
have now been

The C ittee will b

Chair of the Board has remained

in post beyond nine years and the
reasons for this are continuously

and rigorously reviewed by the

i N ive Directors

the Board's skill set to ensure it is able
to lead the Company post COVID-19
and a diverse Board will be key to the
Board's effectiveness. The Company's
approach to diversity is set out later
in this report.

As previously announced, Lynda
Shillaw, the Group Property Director,
left the business with effect from

31 August 2020. We initially engaged
Thomas Cole Kinder to undertake a
search for a replacement. As part of
that process a decision was made to
change our organisational structure.
As a result we will not be appainting
a new Executive Property Director.

to ensure this remains in the best
interests of the Company and its
stakeholders. This exercise by the
independent Non-Executive Directors
also incorporates review of the
combined role of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer. Further information
can be found on page S7.

Following the introduction of the new
UK Corporate Governance Code,

all Directors will be put forward for
re-election at each Annual General
Meeting every year. Biographies of
the Board members can be found

on pages 58-59.

02. Corporate Governance

Diversity

The Board embraces the supporting
principles on diversity in its bioadest
sense: diversity of skills, background,
experience, knowledge, outlook,
approach, gender and ethnicity. in
addition, the Company has regard

for diversity in recruitment at all

levels. At the Company’s head office

in Leeds, 20 of the Company’s 36
employees, are female. The Company
drives diversity through its universitv
placements, adding to its core strategy
on enhancing diversity via a strong and
diverse pipeline of talent throughou:
the Group at all levels,

The Board is committed 1o ensuring
it has an appropriate balance of skills,
knowledge and esperience. Diversity
is a vital part of the continued
assessment and enhancement of
Board composition, and the Board
recognises the benelits of diversity
amongst its members, and the senics
team. As mentioned earlier in this
report, the Board recognises that its
composition should enable it to meet
future challenges and assist it

in discharging iis responsibilities

to all of its stakeholders.

All Board appointments are made

on merit and whilst the Nomination
Committee has decided not to employ
specific diversity targets, it continues
to actively support diversity in all
forms. The Board is committed to
furthering its diversity and is looking
to address the issue wherever the
opportunity arises 1o do so. The
Commiltee is committed 10 ensuring
that reciuiting a female independent
Non-Executive Director is a priority
when futwe vacancies arise. The Board
currently consists of seven men and

at the senior management level with.n
the business, below the Board, there
are five men and one woman.

Edward Ziff
Chairman of Nomination Commitiee
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Dear Shareholder,

As Chairman of the Audit Committee
(‘the Committee’) | am pleased to present
the report of the Committee for the year
ended 30 June 2020.

The Audit Committee consists

of the Board's three Independent

Non-Executive Directors. | am

a qualified Chartered Accountant and
i senior fi i

Responsibilities

The Committee’s role includes
assisting the Board to discharge

its responsibilities and duties for
financial reporting, internal control,
management of risk and the
appointment, reappointment and
remuneration of an independent
external Auditor. The Committee is
responsible for reviewing the scope,
terms of engagement, and results of
the audit work and the effectiveness
of the Auditor. The Committee is
responsible for monitoring the
integrity of the financial statements,
announcements and judgements,
as well as reviewing the Company’s

having been Finance Director of three
different listed companies, and more
recently as a Non-Executive Director
at Galliard Homes and Grit Real Estate
Income Group. lan Marcus has a

internal financial controls. The
Commi I isfies itself of
the Auditor’s independence and
obijectivity, reviews and approves
the level of non-audit services,
and the Group's arrangements on
whi ing. Any matter the

breadth of i in

Banking, and as a Non-Executive
Director with past Audit Committee
responsibilities. Jeremy Collins is also
amember of the Committee, bringing
valuabte experience from his prior
roles, including as Property Director
at John Lewis. The Board is therefore
satisfied that at least one member

of the Audit Committee has recent
and relevant financial experience.
The Committee as a whole has
relevant sector experience.

Paul Huberman
Chairman of Audit Committee

Executive Directors, including

Edward Ziff and Mark Dilley, join
Committee meetings by invitation but
are not members of the Committee.
The Committee meets alone with the
external Auditor without i

Committee considers needs action or
improvement is reported to the Board.
In addition, the Committee continues
to review annually whether an internal
audit function is required.

Report on the Committee’s
activities during the year
During the year, the Committee
met two times and discharged
its responsibilities by:

O Reviewing the Group's draft annual
report and financial statements
and its interim results statement
prior to discussion and approval
by the Board.

O Reviewing the continuing

present at least twice a year.

The Audit Committee carries out an

Last year the Terms of Reference
were amended to reflect a number

annual review of its Terms of Reference.

appropriat of the Group's
accounting policies.

O Reviewing BDO's plan for the
2020 Group audit and approving
their terms of engagement and
proposed fees.

of changes required to ensure the

Ci ittee’s role is fully pliant with
the 2018 UK Corporate Governance
Code which it recommended to the
Board for adoption. The Terms of
Reference were amended in order to
reflect best practice. This is available
to view on the Company’s website.

o iewing reports prepared by
management on internal contro!
issues as necessary.

O Considering the effectiveness,
objectivity and independence
of BDO as external Auditor and
recommending to the Board
their reappointment.

Reviewing management’s
biannual risk review report and
the effectiveness of the material
financial, operational and
compliance controls that help
mitigate the key risks.

Reviewing the effectiveness of
the Group's whistleblowing policy.

Monitored the level of non-audit
fees and the scope of non-audit
services provided in the year by
the Auditor.

Reviewing progress against the
(T infrastructure and security
action plan.

Considering management's
approach to the viability statement
in the 2020 Annual Report.

Reviewing the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee.

Carrying out an annual
performance evaluation exercise
and noting the satisfactory
operation of the Committee.

Reviewing the Group’s Non-Audit
Services Policy.

Reviewing the Group’s compliance
with the requirements necessary
to qualify as a REIT.

Reviewing and considering

the impact of IFRS 16 which
came into force for the first time
for the interim period ended

31 December 2019.

Reviewing the impact of COVID-19
on the Company both for the year
ended 30 June 2020 and also i
respect of the longer-term viability
of the business and its going
concern status.

Significant issues

considered in relation to

the financial statements

During the year, the Committee
considered key accounting matters
and judgements in respect of the
financial statements. The Committee
received detailed reporting from

the Finance Director and BDO in
respects of key areas of management
judgement and reporting. Using BDO's
assessment of risk and the Committee’s
own independent knowledge of the
Company, estimates and judgements
of management in relation to the
preparation of the financial statements
were reviewed and The

a

[u]

Going concern and covenant
compliance - The Committee
reviewed and approved the
going concern analysis.

Viability Statement and
appropriateness of period of

the statement - The Committee
reviewed and agreed the
longer-term viability analysis

and recommended timeframe.
As part of this process a number
of stress scenarios were provided
to the Committee. The assumptions
behind those scenarios were
robustly examined.

of

significant accounting matters and
judgements related to:

O Investment property valuation -
The Committee reviewed the
reports of the independent valuers
JLL and CBRE, and the Chair and
other members of the Committee
attended the valuation review
meetings with management,
BDO and CBRE and then JLL.

The Committee noted the
uncertainty clauses that the
valuations included as a result
of COVID-19.

o

Treatment of property sales
and acquisitions in the year.

O The further investment in
YourParkingSpace.co.uk (YPS), and
the accounting treatment required
to meet fair value requirements -
The Committee agreed that the
current carrying value still reflects
tair value, althaugh this needs to
be kept under regular review.

O The future accounting treatment
of YPS, and the fact that when the
Company'’s share exceeds 20%,
it would be possible that the P&L
and balance sheet of YPS would
have to be equity accounted into
the financial statements of TCS.
The Committee agreed with the
judgement that the Company did
not hold significant influence over
YPS given the 19.9% shareholding
at the balance sheet date, and
the nature of the operation of the
business and Board structure.

rental income due from tenants

as at the year-end - Given the
unprecedented impact of COVID-19
and the uncertainty with regard to
the ongoing viability of tenants who
had not been able to pay their rent
and service charges, the Committee
agreed that it was appropriate

to provide for non-payment of the
amounts due.

Accounting for costs incurred

by the Company in relation to the
potential George Street, Leeds joint
venture investment with Leeds City
Council - Following the Board’s
decision not to proceed with this
wventure it was deemed appropriate
1o fully provide for the £0.7m of
capitalised expenditure in relation
to this project. We are seeking

to mitigate these costs.

Accounting for IFRS 16 -

The Company’s accounts for
the half year and full year now
incorporate the application of
IFRS 16 Accounting for Leases

- The Committee reviewed and
approved the proposed application
of IFRS 16 within the accounts,
reviewing the effects of the new
standard and agreeing to also
report on an Adjusted EPRA
earnings measure alongside
the statutory measures.
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COvVID-19

The Committee and the wider Board
have spent significant time since March
2020 reviewing and stress testing the
financial robustness of the Company.
This is detailed in the Risk Review on
page 50, but in summary key Audit
Committee activities included:

O Weekly full Board video calls
to review the impact of COVID-19
on the business and to agree on
key actions.

O Weekly Non-Executive Board
video calls with the Chairman to
follow up on actions agreed at the
Board meeting, to review wider
market activity, and to ensure the
Non-Executives are fully engaged
in the actions of the business.

O Areview of the strategy and the
decision to speed up the disposals
of predaminantly retail assets.

O Detailed reviews of predicted cash
flow forecasts under different
scenarios, and review of predicted
bank and debenture covenant tests.

O Detailed

Risk management

and internal controls

The UK Corporate Governance

Code provides that the Directors.
should manitor the Company's risk
management and internal control
systems and, at least annually, carry
out a review of their effectiveness
and should report to shareholders in
the Annual Report. The monitoring
and review should cover all material
controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls.
The Board recognises that effective
risk management is critical to the
achievement of the Group'’s strategic
objectives, and the Audit Committee
plays a key role in reviewing identified
risks and assessing the effectiveness
of mitigation plans.

The principal risks and uncertainties
identified by the Board and the
processes in place to manage and
mitigate such risks are summarised

in the risk management section.

it will be noted in the risk management
section that a number of areas have
warsened in likelihood or impact in
the past six months. All the changes

the Viability Statement and Going
Concern Statement included within
this Report and Accounts.

Fair, balanced and
understandable

Inits review the Audit Committee

has determined that the 2020

Annual Report, taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced and understandable
and provides shareholders with the
necessary information to assess the
Company's position and performance,
business model and strategy.
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are ively driven by the impact
of COVID-19, and in a number of
places particularly in relation to our
retail tenants reflect an acceleration
of the challenging environment facing
that sector. Whilst the Company has
demonstrated mitigating actions
regarding these risks, including
speeding up the sale of retail assets
within the portfolio, there is no doubt

that the risk enviranment has worsened.

The risk management system is.
designed to give the Board confidence
that the risks are being managed or
mitigated as far as possible. However,
it should be noted that no system can
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
the Group’s objectives entirely and
can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The key elements of the internal
contral framework are as follows:

O Acomprehensive system '
of financial budgeting and
forecasting based on an annual
budget in line with strategic
abijectives. Performance is
monitored and action is taken
throughout the year based on
variances to budget and forecast.

[n]

Rolling 18-month cash flow
forecasting that is reviewed by
the Board on a monthly basis.

O An organisational structure with
clearly defined roles, separation
of duties, and authority limits.

O Close involvement of the
Executive Directors in day to day
operations, and regular formal
meetings with senior management
to review the business.

[=]

Monthly meetings of the
Executive, the Property Review
Group, the CitiPark Board, and
quarterly meetings of the IT and
Data Governance Committee.

O Adocumented appraisal and
approval process for all significant
capital expenditure.

O Approval by the Board for all
material acquisitions, disposals
and capital expenditure.

O The maintenance of a risk register,
and a formal review of significant
business risks twice a year.

O A formal whistleblowing policy
and anti-bribery policy.

The Board has delegated responsibility
for reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management framework and

internal control to the Audit Committee.

Oversight of

the external auditor

BDO were appointed as the Company’s
auditors following a formal tender
process in 2015/16.

Current UK regulations require rotation
of the lead audit partner every five
years, a formal tender of the auditor
every ten years and a change of
auditor every twenty years. The 2020
audit was the fifth audit by Russell Field
and therefore, the lead audit partner
for 2021 will be Richard Levy.

BDO presented their audit plan for the
year end to the Board, where the key
audit risks and areas of judgement
were highlighted and the level of audit
materiality agreed. BDO presented
detailed reports of their findings to
the Committee before the Interim

and Full Year results. The Committee
questioned and challenged the work
undertaken and the key assumptions
made in reaching their i

Audit fees for the year are broken down as follows:

000y
Audit of year end consolidated financial statements 85
Audit of Company subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 10
Other Audit related services 15
Total Audit services 110
Other non-audit services 2
Total Auditor’s remuneration 12

The Committee ensures it is able

to assess the quality of BDO's audit
in three key ways: it ensures there
is a comprehensive engagement
agreement in place, secondly the
Comnmittee reviews the detailed
audit planning document provided
by BDO, and thirdly BDO produces a
detailed audit report that is thoroughly
reviewed by the Committee with
follow up iterations as necessary.

In addition, by meeting the auditor
without management present, the
Committee are able to stress test

Auditor independence
and objectivity
The Committee recognises the

the ind de and quality of
the review.

The review described above allows
the Committee to determine and
the degree to which the

Pt of auditor obj
and independence and understands
that this can be compromised by
the provision of non-audit work.
All taxation advice is provided
separately by PwC. However, there
may be certain circumstances where,
due to BDO's expertise and knowledge
of the Company, it's appropriate for
them to undertake non-audit work.
The Company has put in place a
formal process for agreeing and
approving non-gudit work by the
Audit Committee alongside a Non-
Audit Services Policy as mentioned
previously. BDO have confirmed to
the Audit Committee that they remain
i and have maintail

auditor has challenged management
and if necessary require the auditor

to review particular aspects in more
detail. in this past year the attendance
of Committee members at the
Valuation Review meetings has allowed
the Committee to witness first-hand
the level of scrutiny and challenge
given by the auditors to management
and CBRE and JLL.

In the year ended 30 June 2020 the
Committee has not asked the auditors
to look at any specific areas not already
covered by the audit ptan.

Auditor reappointment

The Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the external audit
process and the performance of the
Auditor and for the reasons stated
above, believe that BDO remain
independent and recommend that BDO
be reappointed as external auditor for
the Company. The Committee notes
the requirements for the external
auditor position to undergo tender
and propose for this to be undertaken
prior to 2025/2026.

Internal audit

The Group does not have a dedicated
stand-alone internal audit function.
This decision is made taking into
account the size and complexity of
the Group. Where appropriate reviews
are either carried out by staff member.
or where appropriate by third party
experts. The need for an internal audit
function is considered by the Audit
Committee annually.

Whistleblowing

The Group has in place a whistleblowing
policy which encourages employees

to report any malpractice or illegal

acts or omissions or matters of similar
concern by other employees or former
employees, contractors, suppliers

or advisors. The policy provides

a mechanism to report any ethical

During FY20 the C i also

internal safeguards to ensure the
obijectivity of the engagement partner
and audit staff is not impaired.

d the findings of the FRC's
Audit Quality Review inspection

of BDO's audit of TCS for the year
ended 30 June 2018. In particular, the
Committee reviewed how BDO had
addressed the points raised, and how
these had been incorporated into the
audit approach for the year ended-
30 June 2020.

or ice or suspicion
thereof. The Committee reviews this
policy annually.

Committee evaluation

As part of the Board and Committee
self-evaluation process it was felt that
the Committee continued to operate at
a high standard and was effective in its
support to the Baard during the year.

Paul Huberman
Chairman of Audit Committee

|



Town Centre Securities PLC

Annual Report & Accounts 2020

02. Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report

(14
Dear Shareholder,

into three sections:

lan Marcus OBE
Chairman of Remuneration Committee
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On behalf of the Board | am pleased

to present the Directors’ Remuneration

Report of the Remuneration Committee
(the ‘Committee’). The report is divided

O This annual statement for the
year ended 30 June 2020, which
summarises remuneration outcomes
and how the Remuneration Policy
will operate for the year ending
30 June 2021.

O The Remuneration Policy Report.
The Directors’ Remuneration
Policy (Policy) was approved by
shareholders at the Company's
AGM in 2017 and the Company
is therefore again required to
seek approval of the Policy at
the forthcoming AGM.

O The Annual Report on
Remuneration which explains
how the Remuneration Palicy
was implemented in the year
ended 30 June 2020, and how the
Remuneration Policy, if approved,
will be implemented for the year
ended 30 June 2021.

The Committee has decided that it
would not be appropriate at present to
put forward a Remuneration Policy that
looked forward three years or indeed
to engage a remuneration consultant
due to the uncertainties that prevail at
this time. Accordingly, the Committee is

ing that at the AGM
approve the current Policy for a further
year. The Policy is set out on page 73.

ing the Company’s long
financial condition is more certain as
we enter 2021, the Committee intend
to seek shareholder approval of a new
Remuneration Policy at the 2021 AGM.
In 2019, Willis Towers Watson undertaok
an independent market benchmarking
exercise which is referred to later in this
report. The Committee will consider
the extent to which the result of that
exercise can be used to inform any
new policy that might be proposed
next year.

Annual statement
Pay and performance during 2020

Following a review of earnings, NAV,
dividends, and other financial metrics
the Committee agreed that no bonuses
were to be paid in respect of the year
ended 30 June 2020. The salaries of
Executive Directors were reduced by
20% for the period from April to June,
and continued to remain reduced from
July to September. Non-Executive
Directors also waived 20% of their

fees for the same period.

Other activities
We met twice during the year.

In accordance with its terms of
reference, the Committee continues
to review the Remuneration Policy
periodically to seek to ensure a clear
linkage between Executive Directors’
pay and Group performance. In
reviewing the Policy, the Committee
not only assesses the alignment
between policy, strategy and
shareholder interests, but also the
extent to which remuneration is
sufficiently competitive to recruit,
motivate and retain key talent. Last
year, foliowing market benchmarking
exercise undertaken by Willis Towers
Watson, the Committee came to

a number of conclusions which
were reported in the 2013 Report
and Accounts:

O Overall Maximum Potential
Remuneration (‘MPR’) for Executive
Directors is low in comparison to
the Company’s property sector
peers. Whilst base salaries are
competitive, maximum bonus
opportunity is significantly lower
than that of peers.

O Actual remuneration is also low
relative to peers, with an average
bonus pay-out of 14% of base salary
over the last five years.

0O The lack of @ Long-Term Incentive
Plan ('LTIP’) contributes to lower
overall pay fevels and means that
remuneration does not actively
assist to align all Executives to
longer-term shareholder interests.

As a result, the Committee
concluded s more detailed review of
the Remuneration Policy was required.
As stated above the Committee stilt
believe that this is required, however
given the disruption created by
COVID-19 and the decision not

to pay Board bonuses to Executive
Directors in the year, it was decided
that this review should be delayed
and proposed that the current Policy
be extended for a further year. It is
our intention to put forward a new
Remuneration Policy for approval

at the 2021 AGM.

of the

Policy in 2021

O There will be no October pay
review for Edward Ziff, Mark Dilley
or Ben Ziff.

O The annual Bonus opportunity
will remain at a maximum of
60% of salary. The bonus will

Remuneration Policy
The Remuneration Committee
implements the Group’s Policy, which

Variable remuneration

The Group operates an annual
bonus plan under which awards are

is to provide
with fixed and variable elements that
fairly reward the Executive Directors
for their contribution to the business.

It seeks to ensure that the packages
are sufficiently competitive to attract,
retain and motivate the Directors

to manage the Group successfully,
without making excessive payments.
The Policy seeks to achieve the Group's
strategic and financial abjectives by
aligning the interests of the Directors
and shareholders.

Fixed remuneration

The fixed element of Directors’
d ises Base Salary,

y and the C
considers the performance of each
individual Director and of the Group
in assessing the level of payments
under the plan. In particular profit and
growth in shareholder value (measured
by the increase in net asset value per
share and dividends paid as well as any
increase in share value) are carefully
considered by the Remuneration
Committee in awarding the bonuses
when such increases were the result
of Directors’ input. The maximum
award is up to 60% of salary. This
bonus is not pensionable. Itis Group
policy to reward exceptional growth or

Benefits and Pension. This element
seeks to ensure that the Group attracts
and retains appropriately talented
individuals and provides a framework
for them to save for retirement.

The C: i iders the overall

be based on similar to
previous years. The weightings,
measures and targets will be
disclosed retrospectively in our
subsequent report, owing to
commercial sensitivity.

O Pension and benefits will operate
as per 2020.

Edward Ziff and Mark Dilley continue
to engage with shareholders, both
family and where possible larger
independent shareholders on all topics
including remuneration. In addition,

| am available to any who

balance between the elements.
Salaries are determined with regard to
individual and Group performance and
to market rates and comparable roles
at comparable companies. Benefits
principally comprise company cars

or a salary alternative, although this

is being phased out, permanent health
and medical insurance premiums,
The Chairman and Chief Executive
receives reimbursement of the

costs of maintaining a flat in London
which is regularly used for Company
meetings. The value of the benefits is

would like to discuss their concerns
on remuneration throughout the year,
not only at the AGM.

Building on work carried out in 2019,
we are continuing to improve the level
of disclosure provided in the Directors
Remuneration Report for the benefit
of our shareholders.

not The Company makes
no pension contributions in respect
of Edward Ziff. The Group makes
payments to a defined contribution
scheme for both Mark Dilley and

Ben Ziff of 13% of salary.

The Committee recognises the
guidance of the 2018 Corporate
Governance Code in relation to the
alignment of executive pensions
with the wider staff pool. This will be
considered as part of the discussions
regarding the replacement of Lynda
Shillaw. Further changes will be
considered over the longer term and
as part of the wider Remuneration
Policy review.

per . The Directors participate
annually in the Share Incentive Plan
(All Employee Incentive Plan), which
was approved by shareholders

in December 2003. The current
investment limit is £1,800 per annum
with a share matching element equal to
100% of the investment made subject
to forfeiture should the individual
cease to be employed during the first
three years of the plan.

Service agreements and
external appointments

Edward Ziff has a service contract

that is subject to not less than two
years notice. Mark Dilley and Ben

Ziff have service contracts with one
years’ notice. The contracts provide
for retirement at 65. The Group can
discharge any obligation in relation to
the unexpired portion of their notice
period or any notice required to be
given under their service contracts by
making a payment in lieu thereof. If the
Group terminates the contract without
giving notice and/or makes a payment
in lieu of any damages to which the
executive may be entitled the payment
is to be calculated in accordance with
common law principles, including
those relating to mitigation of loss

and accelerated receipt. Directors are
permitted to accept Non-Executive
appointments by prior arrangement
and provided there is no conflict with
the Group’s objectives. .
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Remuneration Policy (continued)

Director

The Non-Executive Directors do not
have service contracts. They are
appointed for an initial three-year period
and this may be renewed on expiry

of that period. The Non-Executive
Directors are not entitled to participate
in bonus, or share-based payment
schemes and any other benefits.

Remuneration of other employees

Remuneration of other employees

is set at a level to attract, motivate
and retain talented individuals.
This may include a company car

or car allowance as appropriate.

ion levels are

by the Executive Directors and noted
by the Remuneration Committee.

Board remuneration including theoretical

Employees are eligible to participate

in the Group bonus scheme and the
SIP scheme. The Group makes pension
contributions for eligible employees

at rates which vary depending on
seniority. tn 2019 the Company
improved pension contributions for
more junior staff and also introduced

a Westfield Health policy for a large
number of staff members.

f views

of votes against resolution 5 refated
to concerns around remuneration,

in particular given my responsibility
as Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. Issues raised by ISS in
their Proxy Analysis report highlighted
concerns in respect of Ben Ziff's third
significant salary increase in as many
years. The Committee unanimously
stands by its decisions in that regard,
however, they have taken that concern

At the 2019 AGM the Board noted

the fact, when excluding controlling
shareholder votes, that the proportion
of non-controlling shareholders

voting to pass resolution 5, my
reappointment as a Non-Executive
Director, was 79.0%. Upon review of
the voting details and consideration by
the Board, it is believed that the level

h

Year ended 30 June 2020 (E000s}

Edward Ziff

Mark Dilley

Lynda Shillaw

Ben Ziff

@ Salary @ Benefiis

Nate:
The unpaid

< Bonus (paid)

74

800 1,000

9 Bonus (unpaid)

into i ion this year. The
Committee has discussed my position
and experience as a Non-Executive
including remuneration responsibilities
elsewhere, and | continue to have

the full support of the wider Board

and importantly the majority of
shareholders.

the yesr.

Annual report on remuneration
Single total figure of remuneration for each Director

The following table sets out the total single figure of remuneration for each Director for the years ended
30 June 2020 and 30 June 2019.

Sataries and fees Bonuses Taxablobanefits! SIPsharew’ Pansion contributions® Totat
2020 201 2000 201 2000 201 200 2018 2000 20w 2020 2010
£000' €000 £00O0' €000 €000’ €000 €000  £0O0's - €000 £000 _ £000's _ £000%
Executive :
Chalrman and
Chief Executive
Edward Ziff €00 610 72 72 2 2 674 6884
Executive .
Directors
Mark Dilley 328 332 3 3 2 2 45 43 378 380
Ben Ziff 24 194 27 il 2 2 28 25 m 242
Lynda Shillaw 380 261 5 o 52 34 437 295
Richard Lewis* 137 29 0 [ 166
1520 1534 o 0 107 125 8 6 125 102 1758 1767
Non-Executive
Directors
Michael Ziff a7 a8 a7 48
Paul Huberman 51 52 51 52
lan Marcus s 52 s1 52
leremy Collins 47 48 a7 48
197 200 o o o [ 0 0 o o 187 200
A7 1,734 [ 0 107 125 6 6 125 102 1,955 1967
Notas:
' s includs cash and h banell y comp: h permanent health
Edward Zif receh the casts of maintaining o l i y maatings.
are not ponsionabl.
2 ive p i ion hough pany SIP.
3 Edward Zif cocoh i i Mark Dilloy.

Lynda Shillaw and Ban Zifl (afl a1 13% of hasa salary).

Richard Lowis loft tho Board in November 2018,

Notes to the single figure table - Annual bonus targets and outcomes for 2020
The current AGM approved bonus scheme allows for a maximum pay-out of 60% of base salary.

For the year ended 30 June 2020, the Executive Directors did not receive a bonus pay-out.
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Town Centre Securities PLC does not
currently operate a long-term incentive
plan. It does operate an All Employee
Share Incentive Plan, approved by
shareholders in December 2003.

The investment limit is £1,800 per
annum with a share matching element
equal to 100% of the investment
made subject to forfeiture should the
individual cease to be employed during
the first three years of the plan.

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued}
Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

In May 2020 Edward Ziff, Ben Ziff

and Mark Dilley accepted the annual
invitation to participate in this All
Employee Share Incentive Plan by each
agreeing to purchase shares to the
value of £1,800, paid between June
2020 and November 2020. They will
be eligible to receive ‘matching’ shares
on a one for ane basis. The number

of shares will be determined at the
end of November 2020.

Holding of Partnership
2nd Matching SIP Sharea

For illustration, based on the share
price as at 30 June 2019, this would
equate to each Director receiving 1,894
partnership shares and 1,894 matching
shares. in November 2019 Edward 2iff,
Mark Dilley, Lynda Shillaw and Ben Ziff
received 869 partnership shares and
869 matching shares in respect of the
2019 Share Incentive Plan. The total
number of partnership and matching
SIP shares beneficially held at 30 June
2020 is shown below.

the financial year.

Directors’ shareholdings

Executive {30 June 2020)

Edward Ziff 6866

Mark Dilley 3218

Lynda Shillaw 1738

Ben Ziff 6866
y to past Directors/pay loss of office

There were no payments to past Directors or payments for loss of office during

The table below sets out the shares held by the Directors as at 30 June 2020:

Benaficlal Non-boneficial
Edward Ziff 5,483,898 15,806,569
Mark Dilley 3,218 o]
Lynda Shillaw 1738 o
Ben Ziff 335877 [
Michael Ziff 2,619,081 7,685,121

The non-beneficial interest disclosures
include the 649,278 Ordinary Shares
over which a power of attorney has
been granted by Mrs ME Ziff jointly

to Edward and Michael Ziff for personal
estate management reasons and
6,404,665 Ordinary Shares over which
a power of attorney has been granted
by AL Manning to Edward Ziff for
personal estate management reasons.

76

Non-beneficial holdings include
shares held in trust and under powers
of attorney.

Edward Ziff, Lynda Shillaw and Mark
Dilley are Directors of TCS Trustees
Limited, Trustee for the shares that are
required for the All Employee Share
Incentive Plan. At 30 June 2019,

TCS Trustees Limited held 81,488

Ordinary Shares (2019: 89,532)

on behalf of all participants including
those share awards of Executive
Directors shown above.

There were no changes in Directors’
shareholdings from 30 June 2020 and
22 September 2020 being the latest
practicable date before this report
was published.

Performance graph and table

The following graph shows the
Company's Total Shareholder Return
('TSR') performance compared to
the FTSE All Share REIT Index, over
the ten years ended 30 June 2020.
This index has been chosen because
the Directors consider it the most
appropriate comparison and TCS is
a constituent of this list. This chart
illustrates the movement in value of
a hypothetical investment of £100 in

TCS and the FTSE All Share REIT index.

Over the long term TCS has
outperformed FTSE All Share REIT

0
Jun0  Junil Juna2  fund3  Jund4 Jund5  JundB  Jund7  Jund8  Jund9  Jun-20
TCS == FTSEUKRE(Ts

Source: DataStream

Singla total figuraof AnnusiBonus pay-out

companies. On a 20-year basis TCS 2019/20 674 0%
TSR was 5.0% versus the FTSE All 201819 684 0%
Share REIT at 2.3%. On a 10-year basis
TCS TSR was 0.8% behind the FTSE 2017/18 914 40%
All Share REIT at 8.1%. 2016/17 809 20%
The adjacent table sets out the total 2015/16 8 10%
remuneration and incentive plan pay- 2014/15 782 30%
outs for the Executive qhairman and 2013014 784 23%
CEO over a ten-year period.
201273 604 0%
20m/12 672 13%
2010/ 669 23%
Percentage change in remuneration Sxacutive Chalrm
of Executive Chairman and Chief Shlof Exacutive Offcor ) *)
Executive Officer Salary % change (1.6%) 5.5%
The adjacent table sets out a Taxable Benefits % change 0.0% 21.9%
comparison of the percentage change Annual Bonus % change 0.0% 0.0%

in base salary, benefits and bonus
of the Executive Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer versus the
total employee population from
2018 to 2020.

1 Average pay for amployces is calcutated on o ike for like basis for comparison purposes.
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Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
Relative importance of spend on pay

) 2018 (£000) 2020(£000) % change
The adjacent table shows haw Staff remuneration costs 5,704 5,216 (8.6%)
expenditure on total pay compares =

to other financial i Dividends to shareholders 6,247 6,247 0%

External appointments

and a member of the Leeds University Council.

None of the Exacutive Directors have other externa! appointments for which
they are paid. Edward Ziff is the unpaid Chair and Trustee of Leeds Cares,

i the N - Componam

Policy for 2021 "Basesalary

The following table outlinea how
TCS intends to implement the

The Committee usually agrees base salary increases effective
from October. This year the Committee has agreed that there
will be no such increase for Board Directors. The 20% COVID-19
reduction will be removed from October 2020,

Remuneration Policy in the year ending
30 June 202, Benefits

Benefits provisions will be as per 2020, to include cash

and non-cash benefits, principally company cars or a cash
alternative, permanent health and medical insurance premiums.
The Chairman and Chief Executive receive reimbursement

of the costs of maintaining 3 flat in Landon which is regularly
used for Company meetings.

Pension

Edward Ziff does not receive a contribution. The Group
makes payments to 3 Defined Contribution schere for
Mark Dilley (13% base salary) and Ben Ziff (13% base salary).

Annual bonus

Maximum opportunity 60% base salery (unchanged).

The measures and weightings applying to the 2020
bonus will be disclosed in next year’s report owing
to commercial sensitivity.

Sip

Executive Directors will continue to participate in the SIP.

NED fees

There will be no change in NED fees. The 20% COVID-19
reduction will be removed from October 2020.

Consideration by the
Directors of matters refating
to Directors’ remuneration

The Remuneratian Committee
formally met twice during the year

and following Directors were members
of the Committee during 2020:

O 1anMarcus
O Paul Huberman
B Jeremy Collins

The key activities of the Committee
during the year were:

O Approving the bonus outcome
for 2019 (no payment).

O Approving the salary increases
for 2019,

o

Setting the bonus targets for 2020.

a

Reviewing Service Contracts
for continued appropriateness.

o

Discussing structures for any
potentisl future LTIP scheme.

O Reviewing and agreeing the
approach to extend the previous
Remuneration Policy for another
year due to the disruption caused
by COVID-19.

=]

Reviewing the Terms of Reference.

=}

Reviewing changes to Corporate
Governance and the Committee’s
spproach to these changes.

‘Statement of voting in relation

tothe 2019 AGM
AntuatReport
on Remuneretion
Votes For 96.05%
Votes Against 3.95%

This report was approved by the
Board on 22 September 2020 and
signed on its behalf by

lanMarcus OBE
Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

|
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Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group
during the financial year remained
those of property investment,
development and trading and the
provision of & hotel and car parking.

Company status

Town Centre Securlties PLC is a public
limited liability company incorporated
under the laws of £ngland and Wales.
It has premium listing on the London
Stock Exchange main market for fisted
securities (LON: TOWN),

Results for the year

and dividends

The results for the year are set out

in the Consolidated income statement
on page 80.

An interim dividend of 3.25p per
share was paid on 26 June 2020

as a PID,.The Directors now propose
a payment of 3 final dividend of
1.75p per share all payable as an
ordinary dividend for approval of
the shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Mesting (AGM’).
The proposed final dividend will

be paid on 5 January 2021 to Ordinary
Shareholders an the register

at the close of business on

4 December 2020.

Non-current assets

Details of movements in non-current
assets are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties are held at fair
vaiue and were revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle and CBRE as at 30 June 2020,
on the basis of open market value, or
were revalued by the Directors. The key
assumptions are set outin note 12 to
the consolidsted financial statements.
In arriving at the valuation, each
property has been valued individually.

Financial instruments

The key risks rising from financial
instruments are considered to be
Trade Debiors, Lease Liabilities and
Borrowings, which are set out in further
detail on pages 13-117.

80

Share capital

There were no changes in the
Company's issued share capital during
the year s set out in note 23 to the
Consolidated Accounts. At 30 June
2020, there were 53,161,950 Ordinary
Shares of 25p per share in issue and
fully paid. The Company does not

hold any Ordinaty Shares in treasury.
Further details relating to share capital,
including movements during the year,
are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements.

Purchase of own shares

The Company did not repurchase
any of its own shares during the year.
The Company currently ho!ds no
treasury shares.

At the forthcoming AGM the Company
will be seeking to renew its authority
to purchase up to 15% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue, assuming the
remaining authority is fully utilised.
Shares will only be purchased if the
Board believes it can take advantage
of stock market conditions to enhance

Political donations

The Group made 1o politicel
contributions in the financial year
{2019: nil).

Taxation
The Company is not a close company.

Directors and

Directors’ interests

The Directors o* t1e Company and
their biographica' details are shown
on pages 58-59. None of the Directo:s
have any contrzc:s of significance wizh
the Company. Details of the Executive
Directors’ service contracts are given
in the Directors Remuneration Report
onpage 73.

Lynda Shillaw was a Director of the
Company throLgnout the year ended
30 June 2020. Ly~da resigned from t1e
Board on 7 August 2020.

Beneficial and non-beneficial
interests of the Directors in the
shares of the Company as at 30 Jure
2020 are disclcsed in the Directors
Peport on page 76.

returns for thy

Shareholder voting rights

The Campany has only one type of
Ordinary Share class in issue and all
shares have equal entitlement to voting
rights and dividend distributions.

The Company has no share option
schemes in current operation and
there are no unexercised aptions
outstanding at 30 June 2020.

Town Centre Securities confirms that

Details of the interests of the Directors
in share options end awards of shares
can be found within the same report.

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Cods all Directors will
retire at the Comodany’s AGM on 17
November 2022 and offer themselves
for re-election.

Service agreements of Executive
Directors and terms of cenditions

of Non-Executive Directors availablz
&t Zompany's

there are no

the transfer of securities in the

Campany; na special rights to control
ities: 0 b

for i i
registered office,

attached to
on voting rights; no egreements
between holders of securities

regarding their transfer known to

lan Marcus, No1-Executive Director,
agreed to be workforce champion
for the Company Further details or
are included

the Company; and no to
which the Company is g party that
might affect its control or trigger any
compensatory payments for Directors
following a successful takeover bid.

on page 40.

Power of Directors

The Directors manage the business
of the Company under the powers
setout in the Company’s Articles
of Association {the ‘Articles’} and
those contained within relevant

UK legislation.

Directors’ indemnity insurance
In accordance with the Company's
Articles of Association, the Company
has provided ta all the Directors gn
indemaity (to the extent permitted by
the Companies Act 2006) in respect
of liabilities incurred es a result of their
office and the Company has taken out
en insurance policy in respect of those
liabilities. Neither the indemnity nor
insurance provide cover in the event
that the Director is proven to have
acted dishonestly or fraudulently.

The Company has i

2020 Annual General Meeting
A Notice of Meeting can be found on

Under the terms of the relationship
agreement, the Principal Concert Party
{Mr E Ziff and Mr M Ziff)

pages 134-142 explaining the business
to be considered at the AGM on 17

November 2020 at Town Centre House,

Leeds. This will include renewsl of the
Company's authority to purchase, in
the market, its own shares and allot
shares for cash other than on a pre-
emptive basis to existing shareholders.

Going concern
Further detail is set out on page 51
of the Strategic Report.

Independent auditors
The suditars, BDO LLP, have

have agreed to procure the compliance
of other individual members of the
Ziff family cancert party who are
treated as controlling shareholders
with independence obligations in

the relationship agreement. The Zitf
family concert party, as controlling
shareholders of the Company, have

a combined aggregate holding of
appraximately 51.3% of the Company's
voting rights.

The Board confirns that, since the
entry into the relationship agreement
until 22 2020, being the

indicated their
in office. and a resolution that they
be re-appointed will be proposed
at the AGM.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability
insurance cover in respect of potential
tegal actions against the Directors.

9
In accordance with the UK Listing
Rules, the Company has entered

into an agreement with the Ziff Family
Concert Party which, as it controls
more than 30% of the Graup's total
issued share capital, is deemed

a controlling sharehofder. The
relationship agreement is intended

to ensure the controlling shareholder
complies with the independence
provisions in Listing Rule 9.2.2A.

latest practicable date prior to the
publication of this Annual Report
and Accounts:

O the Company has complied with the
independence provisions included
in the relationship agreement;

O so far as the Company is aware, the
independence provisions included
in the relationship agreement
have been complied with by the
Ziff family concert party and theic
associates; and

Q sofar as the Company is aware, the
procurement obligation included
in the relationship agreement has
been complied with by the Principal
Concert Party shareholders.

Substantial shareholdings

As at 22 September 2020, being the last practicable date, the Company had
been notified, in accordance with the UK Listing Autharity’s Disclosure Guidance

and Ruies, that in the table below held, or were
beneficially interested in, 3% or more of the voting rights in the Company’s issued
share capital.

Mumber of shares X of haued Cusa!
Ziff Concert Party 27285170 513%
New Fortress Finance Holdings Limited 430817 81%

Post-balance sheet events

Post-balance sheet events since 30 June 2020 are detailed in note 27.

By order of the Board

Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary
22 September 2020

MOC
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible

for preparing the Annual Report,
the Directors’ Remuneration Report
and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law
and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group
financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting
Standards {IFRS) as adopted by the
European Union, and the Parent
Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable taw). Under
company law the Directors must not
approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give
atrue and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Company
and of the profit or loss of the Group
for that period. In preparing these
financial statements, the Directors
are required to:

O select suitable accounting policies
and then apply them consistently;

O make judgements and accounting
i that are

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Company’s transactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy

at any time the financial position

of the Company and the Group

and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the Directors’
Remuneration Report comply with the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article
4 of the IAS Regulation. The Directors
are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the
Group and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable laws and regulations,
the Directors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Directors’ Remuneration Report
and Corporate Governance Statement
that complies with that law and

those regulations.

The Directors are responsible for

the maintenance and integrity of the
Company'’s website: tcs-plc.co.uk
Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legislation in other

and prudent;

O state whether IFRS as adopted by
the Eurapean Union and applicable
UK Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and
explained in the Group and Parent
Company financial statements
respectively; and

0O prepare the financial statements
on a going concern basis unless it
isinappropriate to assume that the
Company will continue in business.

Each of the Directors, whose
names and functions are listed on
pages 58-59, confirms that. to the
best of their knowledge:

O the financial statements, prepared
in accordance with the applicable
set of accounting standards, are
a true and fair view of the assets,
liabilities, financial position and
profit or loss of the Company taken
as a whole; and

o

the Strategic Report includes a fair
review of the development and
performance of the business and
position of the Company, together
with a description of the principal
risks and uncertainties that it faces.

The Directors consider the Annual
Report and Accounts, taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable
and the information provided to the
sharehalders is sufficient to allow them
to assess the Company’s performance,
business model and strategy.

This responsibility statement for the
year ended 30 June 2020 was approved
by the Board on 22 September 2020.

Disclosure of information

to the auditors

The Directors who held office at

the date of approval of this Directors’
Report confirm that, so far as they are
each aware, there is no refevant audit
information of which the Company's
auditors are unaware. Each Director
has taken all the reasonable steps
that they ought to have taken as

@ Director to make themselves aware
of any refevant audit information

and to establish that the Company’s
auditors are made aware of that
information.

For and on behalf of the Board
Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL

Chairman & Chief Executive
22 September 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Town Centre Securities Plc

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Town Centre
Securities Plc {the ‘Parent Company‘} and its subsidiaries
(the ‘Group’) for the year ended 30 June 2020 which

ise the C i income . the
[of i of ive income,
the Consolidated and Company balance sheets, the

lidated and Company of changes in
equity, the Consolidated cash flow statement and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in the preparation of the Group
financial is applicable law and i
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company
financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable
in the UK and Republic of treland (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:

O give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's
and of the Parent Campany’s affairs as at 30 June 2020
and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

o

the Group financial statements have been praperly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union;

=]

the Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

[u}

the financial statements have been prepared in
d with the i 1ts of the Ci

Act 2006; and, as regards the Group financiat

statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

Basis for opinion

We d our audit in with
Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our ibilities under those are further

described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit

of the financial statements section of our report. We are

independent of the Group and the Parent Company in

accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant

10 our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including

the FRC'’s Ethical Standard as apptied to listed public

interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
ibilities in with these i

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

¢

Material uncertainty refated to going concern
We draw attention to note 1of the financial statements,
which indicates the Directors’ consideration over going
concern, including the potential impact of the current
COVID-19 autbreak on the Group and its future compliance
with debit facility covenants. As stated in note 1, these events
or conditions, along with other matters as set out in note 1
indicate that a materiaf uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group and Parent Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

We have highlighted going concern as a key audit matter
based on our assessment of the significance of the risk
and the effect on our audit strategy.

In respect of the work completed in this area
we completed the following:

O acomparison of the best estimate forecasts prepared
by management to the actual results in the financial
period being audited along with an assessment of the
assumptions used to substantiate the potential impact
of COVID-19 through use of sensitivity analysis on these
key assumptions and an overall comparison to actual
post year end results;

o

confirmed the accuracy of the management forward
looking covenant calculations on the banking facilities
based on the forecast figures:

o

challenged management on the banking relationships
and anticipated renewals of these facilities including
discussion with the board and examination of
correspondence with the bank; and

O anassessment of the assumptions within the longer
term cash flow forecast used in the preparation of the
viability inctuding a of

decisions to use a two-year viability statement to allow
greater short term accuracy in light of the immediate
potential impact of COVID-19.

Conclusi lating t ipal risks,

going concern and viability statement

Other than the matters referred to in the Material
uncertainty related to going concern section we have
nothing to reportin respect of the following information
inthe Annual Report, in relation to which the ISAs (UK)
require us to report to you whether we have anything
material to add or draw attention to:

O the Directors’ confirmation set out on page 50 in
the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust
assessment of the Group's emerging and principal risks
and the disclosures in the Annual Report that describe
the principal risks and the procedures in place to identify
emerging risks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated;

O whether the Directors' statements relating to going
concern and their assessment of the prospects of the
Group required under the Listing Rules in accordance
with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent
with our knowledge obtained in the audit; or

D the Directors’ explanation set out on page 51in the
Annual Report as to how they have assessed the
prospects of the Group, over what period they have
done so and why they consider that period to be
appropriate, and their statement as to whether they
have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be
able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the period of their assessment,
including any related disclosures drawing attention
1o any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement
(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy,
the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were addressed

in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Material uncertainty related to going concern
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Valuation of the Group’s property interests:

Key audit matter

The valuation of the Group's property interests
(pages 108-110) is the key driver of the Group's net
asset value and underpins the results for the vear.
See page 96 for accounting policies.

These interests, totalling £370.2m (2019: £384.7m)
consist of investment and development properties,
car park fixed assets, and interests in joint ventures;
being the Group’s share of the fair value of investment
and development properties within these joint ventures.,

Allinterests in property as listed above are subject to
independent revatuation to open market value at each
reporting date by management's third party valuation
experts, with the exception of two properties totalling
£151k {2019: £151k) which are subject to internal
Director valuation.

The valuation of the Group’s property interests, including
those held in joint ventures, depends on the individual
nature of each property, including its location, and the
rental income it generates. The assumptions on which
the valuations are based are further influenced by quality
of tenant, prevailing market yields and comparable
market transactions.

Assets held as development properties are valued using

a comparable sale approach or income based approach

if being utilised as car parks. Where assets are undergoing
development, these are generally valued using the residual
appraisal method, which estimates the fair value of the
completed project, including a suitable developers profit
and deductions for expected costs to complete.

All of these valuation methods can require significant
judgement and estimation to be applied by management
and the external valuation experts, increasing the inherent
risk in this area.

Note 12 to the financial statements also explains that

as a result of the impact of the outbreak of the Novel
Coronavirus (COVID-19) on the market, the Company’s
property valuer has advised that less certainty, and 2
higher degree of caution, should be attached to certain
property valuations within the Group’s portfolio than
would narmally be the case.

In light of the above, along with the materiality of the
balances, we consider this to be a significant risk area as
small h: in each key ion could
materially affect the carrying value of the assets concerned.
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Key audit matters (continued)

How the scope of our audit responded

to the matter

Our audit approach to this area included an assessment
ol management’s external valuauon expevts objectivity,

We held meetings with both management’s external
valuation experts in which we confirmed directly with these
experts that the valuations had been performed on bases
consistent with practices approved by the Roval Institute

of Chartered yors (‘RICS’) and the

and qualifi to the valuation.

and challenge them on any key assumptions made. In
doing this, we considered movements in yield that were
outside of a tolerable range based on our own and wider
market expectations.

For development properties valued on a residual basis,
we obtained the development appraisal and assessed the
costs and sssumpnons included against our knowledge

of IFRS as adopted by the European Union and United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice.

We tested a sample of the key inputs used in the valuation
calculations by agreeing underlying data used to internal
tenancy schedules, capital expenditure details and lease
terms, which were agreed back to appropriate supporting
documentation.

We attended meetings with management’s valuation
experts to further understand the methodology applied

and For 1t properties valued
on a comparable basis, we have obtained details of the
comparable sites and checked the appropriateness of
using this information with the valuation calcutation.

Key observation:

Based on procedures performed, we consider the
applied and the ions made

in the valuation of the Group's property interests

to be appropriate.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of mateiality both in planning

and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements. For planning, we consider malerlallty m

be the i by which mi id

or in aggregate and including omissions, could influence
the economic decisions of reasonable users that are

taken on the basis of the financial statements. In arder to
reduce to an low level the ility that any
misstatements exceed materiality we use a lower materiality
level, performance materiality, to determine the extent of
testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below these
levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we
also take account of the nature of identified misstatements,

for which misstatements of lesser amounts than materiality
for the financial statements as a whole could reasonably

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements. In this context,
we set specific materiality for the Group of £260,000 (2019:
£320,000) to apply to all classes of transactions and balances
excluding non-current assets, any property revaluation
movements, gains or losses on disposal of properties and
changes in the fair value of financial instruments. For the
Parent Company financial statements this was set at £150,000
(2019: £210,000). This was set wnh reference to a benchmark
of profit after taxation excludi and d

property revaluaticns, gains/iosses on investing and trading
property disposals and changes in the fair value of financial

ts, averaged over three years.

and the particular ci of their when

The materiality for the Group financial statements as a
whole was set at £3,500,000 (2019: £3,700,000). This
was with toa of total
non-current assets (of which it represents 1 per cent (2019:
1 per cent)), which we consider to be one of the principal
considerations for members of the Parent Company in
ing the financial of a property it

group. The materiality for the Parent Company financial
statements was set at £1,200,000 (2019: £3,700,000)
with relerence to a benchmark of total non-current assets

ludi in idiaries, of which it
1% (2019: 1% of total non-current assets).

International Standards on Auditing (UK) also allow the
auditor to set a lower materiality, specific materiality, for
particular classes of transactions, balances or disclosures

evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Performance malenahlv was set at 70% (2019: 65%)

of the above levels. is set
with regard to the number and size of historic adjustments,
management's attitude towards proposed adjustments and
the number of accounts subject to estimation.

Component materiality was set at levels between £140,000
and £1,470,000 (2019: £140,000 and £1,560.000) with
specific materiality for components being set between
£34,000 and £170,000 (2019: £100,000 and £210,000).

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report
to the Committee all individual audit differences in excess
of £18,000 (2019: £16,000). We also agreed to report
differences below this threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding
of the Group and its environment, including the Group’s
system of internal control, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements. We slso addressed
the risk of management override of internal controls,
including assessing whether there was evidence of bias

by the Directors that may have represented a risk of material
misstatement due to fraud.

The Group operates solely in the United Kingdom
through a number of legal entities, which form reporting
s, Significant ts were defined as
those reporting components contributing more than 15%
towards Group assets, turnover or profits, or if judgementatly
considered to be signiticant by nature. The financial
information refating to the Parent Company and all other
significant components of the Group were subject to full
scope audits by the Group audit team. We also perform
fult scope statutory audits on the trading non-significant
components, however the extent of this work completed
for the Group accounts is limited to those areas deemed
material to the Group accounts on either an individual or
basis across al!

The extent to which the audit was capable
of detecting irregularity including fraud
The extent to which the audit is capable of detecting
lrregulamles is affected by the |nhevem difficulty in

ities, the of the entity’s
controls, and the nature, timing and extent of the audit
procedures performed.

As part of the audit we gained an understanding of the
legal and regulatory framework applicable to the Group
and the industry in which it operates, and considered the
risk of acts by the Group that were contrary to applicable
laws and regulations, including fraud. We considered the
Group’s i with laws and ions that have a
direct impact on the financial statements including, but not
limited to, UK company law, UK tax legislation (including the
REIT regime requirements) and the UK Listing Rules, and we
considered the extent to which non-compliance might have
a material effect on the Group financial statements.

We designed audit procedures to respond to the risk,
recognising that the risk of not detecting a material
misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not
detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion.

Based on our understanding we designed our audit

to identify i of li with
such laws and regulations. Our procedures included
iewi !he financial and agreeing

to supporting d ion where Y.
We made enquiries of management and of the Directors
as to the risks of non-compliance and any instances thereof,

and made similar enquiries of advisers to the Group,

where information from that adviser has been used in the
preparation of the Group financial statements. We also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including testing journal entries processed during
and subsequent to the year and evaluating whether there
was evidence of bias by the Directors that represented

a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

QOwing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an
unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some

material mi in the financial even
though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in with the auditing For example the

further removed with laws and

is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures
required by the auditing standards would identify it.

Other information

The Directors are for the other i

The other i d ises the i ion included
in the Annual Report and Accounts, other than the financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. Qur opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in our report, we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements,
we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or 8 material

of the other i If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material mi of the other ir ion we are
required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing to report in regard

to our responsibility to specifically address the following
items in the other information and to report as uncorrected
material mi: of the other i ion where we
conclude that those items meet the following conditions:

O Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 65
- the statement given by the Directors that they consider
the annual report and financial statements taken as a
whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides

the i ion necessary for to assess
the Group’s position, periolmance‘ buslness model and
strategy, is i with our k

obtained in the audit; or

°|
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O Audit Committee reporting set out on page 68
- the section describing the work of the Audit Committee
does not i address matters icated
by us to the Audit Committee; or

[n]

Directors’ statement of compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance Code set out on page 64

- the parts of the Directors’ statement required under
the Listing Rules relating to the Company’s compliance
with the UK Corporate Governance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the auditor in
accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2) do not properly
disclose a departure from a relevant provision of the UK
Corporate Governance Code.

Opinions on other matters prescribed

by the Companies Act 2006

In our apinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Report to be audited has been properly prepared

in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

In our opinion; based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audit:

O the information given in the Strategic Report
and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is
consistent with the financial statements and those
reports have been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal requirements;

O theinformation about internal contro! and risk
management systems in relation to financial reporting
processes and about share capital structures, given
in comptiance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 in the Disclosure

i an Rules k made
by the Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA Rules),
is consistent with the financial statements and has

Matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Inthe light of the knowledge and understanding

of the Group and Parent Company and its environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not
identified material misstatements:

O the Strategic Report or the Directors’ Report; ar

O the information abaut internal control and risk
management systems in relation to financial reporting
processes and about share capital structures, given in
compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
in relation to which the

Companies Act 2006 requires us ta report to you if,
in our opinion:

O adequste accounting records have not been kept
by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not
visited by us; or

O the Parent Company financial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited
are not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns; or

=]

certain dis of Directors’ specified

by law are not made; or

D we have not received al! the information and explanations.
we require for our audit; or

O acorporate governance statement has not been
prepared by the Parent Company.

R ibilities of Di s

- been prepared in with icable legal
requirements; and

O information about the Company’s corporate
governance code and practices and about its
administrative, management and supervisory
bodies and their committees complies with
rules 7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the FCA Rules.

As explained more fully in the statement of Directors’
responsibilities set out on page 82, the Directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine

is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit

of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain

about whether the financial statements as a whole are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
is a high leve! of but

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with ISAs (UK) will always detect & material misstatement

when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or

error and are considered material if, individually or in the

they could be d to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: frc.org.uk/

i ibilities. This iption forms part
of our auditor's report.

Other matters which we are required to address
Following the dation of the Audit C: i

we were reappointed by the members at the Annual
General Meeting on 25 November 2019 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020.

The period of total uninterrupted engagement is 5 years,
covering the years ending 30 June 2016 to 30 June 2020.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent
Company and we remain independent of the Group and
the Parent Company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report
to the Audit Committee.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3

of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent
Company's members those matters we are required to state
to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.
To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body,
for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions

we have formed.

L

Russell Field
Senior Statutory Auditor

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom
22 September 2020

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in
England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Consolidated balance sheet
as at 30 June 2020

i 2020 2019 N I 2020 I 2019
Notes £000 £000 Notes £000 £000

%0

Gross revenue 3 27,989 31,418 Non-current assets
Provision for impairment of debtors 3 (1,478) (229) Property rental
Property expenses 3 (10,452) (1,600} tavestment properties 12 280,914 324,500
Net revenue 16,059 19,589 Investments in joint ventures 4 13,751 13,387
Administrative expenses 4 (6,197)} (6.857) | 294,665 | 337,887
Other income 7 1,218 574 Car park activities
Other expenses 7 () - Freehold and leasehold properties 12 50,159 24,194
Valuation movement on investment properties (26,324) (18,308) Goodwill 13 4,024 4,024
Reversal of impairment of car parking assets 250 200 Investments 5] 2,656 2,510
Profit/(loss) on disposal of investment properties 168 (709) i . 56,839 | 30,728
Share of post tax profiis from joint ventures 1 450 1,087 Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles 12 1M31 1,609
Operating loss (15,153)) (4,444) Total non-current assets 1 352,617 ) 370,224
Finance costs 8 | (9,009)] (8,025) Current assets
Loss before taxation (24,062)} 12,469) Investments 15 3,508 587
Taxation 9 i .i - Assets held for sale 2] - 23199 -
Lass for the year attributable to owners of the Parent I (24,162)] (12,469) Trade and other receivables wi o 3,468 5,354
Earnings per ahare Cash and cash equivalents 12,643 23,692
Basic and diluted n (45.5)91 (23.4)p Total current assets i 42,818 34,917
EPRA (non-GAAP measure) n 3.9p 120p Total assets { 395435 | 405141
Adjusted EPRA {non-GAAP measure) 49p 12.0p Current llabliities '
Dividends por share Trade and other payables 7 (23,382) ! (34,739)
Paid during the year 10 n75p n75p Financial latliles 8 (61.984) =
Proposed 10 1750 850 Total current liabllities _ (85,366)] (34,739)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities 18 | (154,591)! (182,152)
Total lisbilities. [} (239,957)' (216,891)
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income Netassets I 1554781 188250
for the year ended 30 June 2020 . Equity attributable to the owners of the Parent
Called up share capital 23 13,290 13,290
Share premium account 200 200
Capital redemption reserve . 559 559
I 2020 2018
£000 £000 Revaluation reserve 750 250
Loss for the year (24,162)§ (12,469) Retained earnings 140,679 173,951
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss Total equity ] 155,478 | 188,250
Revaluation movement on cer parking assets - 500 Net asset value per share 2 292p | 354p
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss . Company number: 00623364
i other i (2,363): 2,341
Total ather comprehensive {loss) income i (2,363)) 2,841 ;’:g :uir;r::aol:(if;e;:::'('s:yn pages 94-120 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 September 2020
Total comprehensive lass for the year f (26.525) (9.628)

Al profit and total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to owners of the Parent.

The notes on pages 94-120 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman and Chief Executive
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Called Share Capital
upshare  premlum redemption Revaluation Retalned Total

capital  account reserve reserve  earnings equity

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 30 June 2018 13,280 200 559 250 189,826 204325
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (2,469)  (12,469)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 2,841 2,841
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (9.628) (9.628)
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Final dividend relating to the year ended 30 June 2018 - - - - (4,519) (4,519)
Interim dividend relating to the year ended 30 June 2013 - - - - (1,728) (1,728)
Balance 5t 30 June 2019 13,290 200 559 250 173,951 188,250
Comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year - - - - (24,162) (24,62)
Other comprehensive income - - - - (2,363) (2,363),
Transfer - - - 500 (500) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - 500 (27,025  (26,525)
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Final dividend relating to the year ended 30 June 2019 - - - - (4,519) (4,519)
Interim dividend relating to the year ended
30 June 2020 - - - - (1,728) (1,728),
Balance at 30 June 2020 13,280 200 559 750 140,679 155,478

Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 30 June 2020

—————

2020

2019
Notes £000 £000 | £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 24 14,433 ! 1,090
Interest paid (7.648) )
Net cash generated from operating activities 6,785 | 3,412
Cash flows from Investing activities i
Purchase and canstruction of investment properties (1,610) ' (25517)
Refurbishment of investment properties (5,442) : (3,740)
Payments for leasehold property improvements - (25) (255)
Purchases of fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles (93) ! (814)
Proceeds from sale of investment properties 2,494 17,089
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets - 23
Payments for acquisition of non-listed investments (146) . (385)
Repayment of foans from/(investments in) joint ventures. 86 (723)
Distributions received from joint ventures - 28,145
Net cash (used in)/generated from investing activities (4,736) 13,823
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds of) 8,000 (16,233)
Movement in lease liabilities (1.650) (19)
Dividends paid to shareholders (6,247) (6,247)
Nt cash generated fromy(used in) financing activitles 103 {22,499)
Net d cash 2152 ) (5.264)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 209 Q 5,473
Cash and cash equlvalents at end of the year 2,361 209
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end are comprised of the following:
Cash balances 12643’ 23,692
Overdrawn balances (10,262)] (23,483)
2,361 | 208

The Consolidated cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with note 24.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adapted in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Town Centre Securities PLC (the ‘Company'} is a public limited company domiciled in the United Kingdom, Its shares
are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). The address of its
registered office is Town Centre House, The Merrion Centre, Leeds, LS2 8LY.

Basis of preparation

Sratement of compliance

The financial of Town Centre
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as adopted by the
and the Companies Act 2006.

PLC have been prepared in accordance
Union, IFRIC Inter

Income and cash flow statements

The Group presents its Income Statement by nature of expense. The Grcup reports cash flows from operating
activities using the indirect method. The isitions of i are ! as cash flows from
investing activities because this most appropriately reflects the Group's business activities. Cash flows from
investing and financing activities are determined using the direct methad.

of the lidated fi ial
The consolidated financial statements have been d under the hist | cost ion as modified
by the revaluation of the Group's property interests and other investments.

The ian of financial in
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.
Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the finangial statements in the period the assumptions are
changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 2.

Changes in ing policy and
(a) 3 to i and it ions effective for the period ended 30 June 2020

IFRS 16 Leases - Details of the impact this standard has had are given in note 26 below. Other new and amended
standards and Interpretations issued by the IASB that will apply for the first time in the next annual financial statements
are not expected to impact the Group as they are either not relevant to the Group's activities or require accounting
which is consistent with the Group’s current accounting policies.

(b} New d: dr to published and i issued but not effective for the period
ended 30 June 2020 and not early adopted
There are a number of standards, to and inter which have been issued by the

IASB that are effective in future accounting periods that the Group has decided not to adopt early. The following
amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 July 2020:

-1AS1 ion of Financial and IAS 8 A
and Errors (Amendment - Definition of Material)

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations (Amendment - Definition of Business)
- Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

In January 2020, the IASB issued amendments to [AS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine whether liabilities
are ified as current or . These clarify that current or non-current classification is based
on whether an entity has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
maonths after the reporting period. The amendments also clarify that ‘settlement’ includes the transfer of cash, goods,
services, or equity instruments unless the obligation to transfer equity instruments arises from a conversion feature
classified as an equity instrument separately from the liability component of a compound financial instrument.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of these new ting and

24

with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.

Going concern
In making their assessment of the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern the Directors have considered
the impact of COVID-19 on both the liquidity and compliance with bank loan covenants of the Group as a whole.

The Group owns a portiolio of multi-let regional property assets located throughout the UK, and operates a car parking
business. The business is funded in part by a £106m debenture which is due for repayment in 2031. In addition the
business has three bilateral RCF facilities totalling £103m which are due for repayment or renewal between April 2022
and June 2023. (n order to assess the potential impact of COVID-19 on the Group and its ability to continue as a going
concern, management have analysed the portfolio’s tenant base and car parking operation and produced forecasts

t0 310 ber 2021. These reflect mar ‘s view of a worst case scenario including assumptions that
rent receipts are materially lower than normally experienced and that the car park and hotel businesses recovers over
the forecast period to a materially lower level than would normally be expected.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient resources to continue to operate as a going concern for at least
the next 12 months. Based on the forecasts, including the mitigating options utilised such as the government approved
furlough scheme and VAT and PAYE pay deferral available to the Group the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare
these financial statements on the going concern basis.

However, the debi facilities include an interest cover covenant and a loan to value covenant. The Group is currently

in compliance with all of its covenants. Were there to be a deterioration in rent collection or sentiment towards the
value of these assets as a result of COVID-19 there is a ibility that these could be d. Whilst these
forecasts provide robust support, in light of the uncertainty in respect of the adverse impacts of COVID-13, its duration,
the ability of the Group to obtain loan covenant waivers if required and the current bank facility renewal, a material
uncertainty exists which may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore
its ability to realise its assets and settle its liabilities within the ordinary course of business.

These financial statements do not include the adjustments that would be necessary should the gaing concern basis
of preparation no longer be appropriate.

Consolidation

(a) Subsidiaries

Where the Company has control over an investee, it is classified as a subsidiary. The Company controls an investee
if all three of the following elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable raturns from the
investee, and the ability of the investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever
facts and circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

The consolidated financial statements present the resuits of the Company and its subsidiaries (‘the Group’) as if they
formed a single entity. Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore eliminated
in full.

The lidated financisl the results of business combinations using the acqui
method. In the statement of financial position, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
are initially recogmsed at their fair values at the acquisition date. The resuits of acquired operations are included

in the Ci lid: of ive income from the date on which contro! is obtained. They are
deconsolidated from the date on whu:h cantrol ceases.

{b) Joint Arrangements
A joint arrangement is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control.

Investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised
at cost.

The Group’s share of its joint ventures post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the Income Statement.
Investments in joint ventures are carried in the balance sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of net assets of the joint ventures less any impairment in the value of the investment.

Any impairment is initially recognised against the equity value, or if nil, against any outstanding loan balances.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interest in the joint venture. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(continued)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments.

The Group operates in three business segments comprising property rental, car park operations and hotel operations.
The Group's operations are performed wholly in the United Kingdom.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board. The Board revlews the Group s internal reporting
in order to assess performance and allocate it has di the gl based
on these reports.

Non-current assets

(a) Investment properties

Investment property comprises freehold land and b and long: itdi This comprises mainly

retail units, offices and operational car parks, and is initially at cost, including related ion costs.
These are held as investments to earn rental income and for capital appreciation and are stated at fair value at the
balance sheet date,

at the point of unconditional exchange.

The isition or disposal of i property is
After initial recognition investment property is carried at fair value, based on market values. It is then determined twice
annually by independent external valuers or held at Directors’ valuation if appropriate. The gains or losses arising from
these valuations are included in the Consolidated income statement. When an existing investment property is redeveloped
for d future use as an i property, it remains an investment property whilst in development.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is added to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs

and maintenance costs are charged to the Consolidated income statement during the financial period in which they
areincurred.

g costs iated with direct di on properties major refurbish are
The amount is calculated using the Group's weighted average cost of borrowing.

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as an investment property is also classified as investment
property under the sub-heading development property and is stated at fair value.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of investment properties is determined as the difference between the net

sale proceeds and the carrying value of the asset at the beginning of the penod and is recognised in the Consolldsted

income statement of the period during which the sale b In where the |
of and the ion of the disposal fall on either side of the balance sheet date, the asset

is re-classified as a current asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

(b) Freehold and leasehold properties

Freehold and leasehold properties are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently carried at fair value, based

on periodic valuations by a professionally qualified valuer. These revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are ised in other ive income and lated in
the revaluation reserve except to the extent that any decrease in value in excess of the credit balance on the revaluation
reserve, or reversal of such a transaction, is recognised in profit or loss. Freehold land is not depreciated. Properties
held under finance leases are initially valued at the present value of minimum lease payments payable over the term of
the lease. Depreciation on assets under ion does not until they are lete and available for use.
Depreciation is provided on all other items within this category so as to write off their carrying value over their expected
useful economic lives.

At the date of ion, the ) on the revalued freehold property is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. On disposal
of the asset the balance of the revaiuation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

(c) Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles

Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles are shown at historical cost less depreciation and provision for

nmpalrmer\l H»stonc cost mcludes iture that is directly attri to the isition of the items.
ight-line basis at rates appropriate to write off individual assets over

(helr esnmated useful ||ves ol between three and ten years.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each batance sheet date.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the disposal proceeds with the carrying amount
and are included in the Consalidated income statement.

Fair value

Fair value estimation under IFRS 13 requires the Group to classify for disclosure purposes fair value
measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making
the measurements on its financial assets. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

+ Level (1) quoted prices (unadijusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

« Level (2) inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices); and

« Level (3) inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservabte inputs).

The fair value of assets held for sale, other financial assets and investment property are determined by using valuation

techniques. See note 2 for further details of the judgements and assumptions made in relation to investment properties.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the Group's interest in the fair value

of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired. Cost comprises the faw value of assets given,
liabilities assumed and equity instruments issued. Direct costs of isition are ¥ asan
expense. Goodwill is capitalised as an intangible asset with any impairment in carrying value being charged to the

C d of hensive income. Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid, the excess is credited in full to the Consolidated statement

of comprehensive income on the acquisition date.

Investments
Other than where the Group has taken an ir election to as fair value through
other comprehensive income, the Group treats all investments as far value through profit and loss.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date, which i is the date the Group commits to pur:hase
ar sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus costs. are
when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Equity instruments are valued at fair value at each reporting
date. The fair values of listed investments are based on current bid prices. Any fair value gains and losses arising on
equity instruments classi!ied as fair vslue through profit and loss are ised in the income However, an
for each individual equity not held for trading is considered, to establish whether an irrevocable
election under IFRS 9 should be made to classify the instrument at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Where this election has been made, fair value gains are recognised through other comprehensive income.

Dividends on equity instruments are ised in the C i income when the Group’s right

to receive payment is established.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective ewdence that a financial asset

or a group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities, a or prol decline

in the fair value of the security below its cost is i in i whether the are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for equity instruments, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the Consolidated income statement.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED Leased assets

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted price in an active market and whose fair All leases are d for by ising a right-of- asset and a lease liability except for:

value cannot be reliably measured due to the range of fair value obtained
being significant are measured at cost, being the most reliable estimate of fair value at the period end.

Trade and related party receivables

Trade and related party receivables (such as loans to joint ventures or loans to investments) are recognised
initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment.

The amount of the ision is ised in the Ci i income

Impairment provisions for current and trade i are i based on the si

approach within IFRS 9 using a provision matrix in the determination of the lifetime expected credit losses.
During this process the probability of the non-payment of the trade receivables is assessed. This probability

is then multiplied by the amount of the expected loss arising from default to determine the lifetime expected
credit loss for the trade receivables. For trade receivables, which are reported net, such provisions are recorded
in a separate provision account with the loss being recognised within cost of sales in the Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. On confirmation that the trade receivable will not be collectable, the gross carrying
value of the asset is written off against the associated provision.

Impairment provisions for receivables from related parties and loans to related parties are recognised based

on a forward looking expected credit loss model. The methodology used to determine the amount of the provision
is based on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition of the financial
asset. For those where the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition of the financial asset,
twelve-month expected credit losses along with gross interest income are recognised. For those for which credit
risk has i ignificanth
For those that are determined to be credit impaired, lifetime expected credit losses along with interest income
on a net basis are recognised.

From time to time, the Group elects to renegotiate the terms of trade receivables due from customers with
which it has previously had a good trading history. Such renegotiations will lead to changes in the timing
of payments rather than changes to the amounts owed and, in consequence, the new expected cash flows
are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value

ist i in the C i statement of hensive income ing profit).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the Consolidated balance sheet are held at amortised cost.
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts.

Bank overdrafts are included within borrowings in current liabilities on the Consolidated balance sheet.

Share capital
Ordinary Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Borrowings

arer d net of ion costs incurred. Debt finance costs are amortised based
on the effective interest rate. .

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

lifetime credit losses along with the gross interest income are recognised.

« leases of low value assets; and
« leases with a duration of 12 months or less.

IFRS 16 was adopted 1 July 2019 without of ive figures. For an ion of the
transitional requirements that were applied as at 1 January 2019, see note 26. The following policies apply
subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 July 2019. Lease liabilities are measured at the present value

of the contractual payments due to the lessor over the lease term, with the discount rate determined by
reference to the rate inherent in the lease unless (as is typically the case) this is not readily determinable,

in which case the Group's i | ing rate on of the lease is used. Variable lease
payments are only included in the measurement of the lease liability if they depend on an index or rate.

In such cases, the initial measurement of the lease liability assumes the variable element will remain unchanged
throughout the lease term. Other variable lease payments are expensed in the period to which they relate.

On initial recognition, the carrying value of the lease liability also includes:

amounts expected to be payable under any residual value guarantee;

the exercise price of any purchase aption granted in favour of the Group if it is reasonably certain

to assess that option;

any penalties payable for terminating the lease, if the term of the lease has been estimated on the basis
of termination option being exercised.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at the amount of the lease liability, reduced for any lease incentives
received, and increased for:

lease payments made at or before commencement of the lease;

initial direct costs incurred; and

the amount of any provision recognised where the Group is contractually required to dismantle, remove
or restore the leased asset (typically leasehold dilapidations - see note 30).

Subsequent to initial measurement lease liabilities increase as a result of interest charged at a constant rate
on the balance outstanding and are reduced for lease payments made. Right-of-use assets are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the remaining term of the lease or over the remaining economic life of the asset
if, rarely, this is judged to be shorter than the lease term.

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any lease for example, it the probabili

of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised), it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability

to reflect the payments to make over the revised term, which are discounted using a revised discount rate.

The carrying value of lease liabilities is similarly revised when the variable element of future lease payments
dependent on a rate or index is revised, except the discount rate remains unchanged. In both cases an equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised
over the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero,

any further reduction is recognised in profit or loss.
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease with the lessor, the accounting depends on the nature
of the modification:

« if the renegotiation results in one or more additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate with the
standalone price for the additional rights-of-use obtained, the madification is accounted far as a separate lease
in accordance with the above policy

in all other cases where the renegotiated increases the scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the
lease term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease liability is remeasured using the discount
rate applicable on the modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted by the same amount

if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability
and right-of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect the partial of full termination of the lease with
any difference recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure its carrying amount
reflects the amount of the re iated over the i term, with the modified lease payments

i d at the rate I on the modification date. The right-of. asset is adjusted by the same amount.

The Group sometimes negotiates break clauses in its property leases. On a case-by-case basis, the Group will consider
whether the absence of a break clause would expose the Group to excessive risk.

Typically, factors considered in deciding to negotiate a break clause include:

+ the length of the lease term;
+ the economic stability of the environment in which the property is located; and
a new area of

+ whether the location rep! for the Group.

Prior year comparatives

As IFRS 16 has been adopted during the year using the modified h the prior year
balances have not been restated and therefore been reported in line with the policy set out below.

Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset have been transferred

to the Group (a ‘finance lease’), the asset is treated as if it had been purchased outright. The amount initially recognised
as an asset is the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the minimum fease payments
payable over the term of the lease. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element is charged to the C i of
income over the period of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of the lease liability.
The capital element reduces the balance owed to the lessor. Where substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership are not transferred to the Group (an ‘operating lease’), the total rentals payable under the lease are charged
to the C I of ive income on a i ine basis over the lease term. The aggregate
benefit of lease i ives is ised as a ion of the rental expense over the lease term on 3 straight-line basis.

Operating leases

(a) A Group company is the lessee

Leases where the lessor retains a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are classified

as ing leases. Pay made under ing leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor)
are charged to the Cor d income ona ight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(b) A Group company is the lessor
Properties leased to third parties under operating leases are included in investment property in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. The leases in our portfolio have a wide variety of term and tenures and there is no standard.

Unamortised tenant lease incentives

Leasehold incentives given to tenants on entering property leases are recognised as unamortised lease incentives.
The operating lease incentives are spread over the non-cancellable life of the lease. Where this ends with a clean
break clause the incentives are spread to this date unless management is reasonably certain that the break will

not be exercised.

Taxation
The tax charge in the C i income

tax currently payable.

Town Centre Securities PLC elected for group Real Estate [nvestment Trust (REIT) status with effect from

2 October 2007. As a result the Group no longer pays United Kingdom corporation tax on the profits and gains
from its qualifying rental business in the United Kingdom provided it meets certain conditions. Non-qualifying
profits and gains of the Group continue to be subject to corporation tax as normal. On entering the REIT regime
an entry charge equal to 2% of the aggregate market value of the properties assaciated with the qualifying rental
business was payable. Deferred tax accrued at the date of conversion in respect of the assets and liabilities of the
qualifying rental business was released to the income Statement as the relevant temporary differences are no
langer taxable on reversal.

In respect of non-qualifying activities and related profits, gains and losses:

(a) Deferred income tax i

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, no provision for deferred tax is made for temporary differences arising on the initial recognition

of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is determined using
tax rates {and Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when they relate to income taxes fevied by the same taxation authority and the Group is entitled to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

{b) Current tax
The charge for current tax is based on the results for the period as adjusted for items which are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using rates of tax that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

Employee benefits

The Group operates defined contribution arrangements for all eligible Directors and employees. A defined
contribution plan is a pension ptan under which the Group pays contributions into a private or publicly administered
pension insurance plan. Pension costs are charged to the Consolidated income statement in the period when they
fall due. Pre-paid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future
payments is available.

Revenue recognition

(a) Rental income

Revenue includes the fair value of rental income and management charges from properties (net of Value Added Tax).
Deferred income is only recognised to the extent it is expected to be recovered from tenants.

This income is recognised as it falls due, in accordance with the lease to which it relates. Any lease incentives
are spread evenly across the period of the lease.

This income is recognised as follows:

i) rental income is recognised on an accrual basis on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease;

ii) turnover rents are based on underlying turnover and are recognised in the period to which the turnover relates; and
i) rent reviews are recognised with effect fram the review date.

(b) Car park income

Contract car park income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the relevant period, in accordance with the
contract to which it relates. Daily car park income is recognised when received.

(c) Hotel income
Room revenue is recognised on a daily basis in accordance with the date of the overnight stay. Food and beverage
revenue is recognised at the point of sale. :
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1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED
(d) interest income

Interest income on any short-term deposits is d in the C lid income as it accrues.

(e) Other income
Other income includes dividend income, which is recognised when the right to payment is established and
surrender premiums or lease assignments received from outgoing tenants prior to the termination of their lease.

(f) Service charge income
Service charge incame receivable from tenants relating to fees is
basis over the relevant period.

Dividend distribution
Dividend distributions to the Company’s Iders are ised in the
as follows:

d financial statements

i) interim dividends are recognised in the period they are paid;

i) final dividénds are recognised in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Reserves
Reserves are analysed in the following categories:

Share capital represents the nominal value of issued share capital.

Share premium represents any consideration received in excess of nominal value of the shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the Company’s own shares that have been
repurchased and cancelled.

Revaluation reserve represents the surplus valuation movement upon revaluation of freehold and leasehold
property relating to car park activities.

Retained earnings represents the cumulative profit or lass position less dividend distributions.

Financial risk management
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk, cash flow and fair value
interest rate risk, capital risk and price risk.

(a} Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that rental contracts
are made with customers with an appropriate credit history. The Group has policies that limit the amount of credit
exposure to any financial institution. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk as exposure is spread
over a large number of counterparties and tenants.

(b} Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability

of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.
Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Group treasury policy aims to maintain flexibility in
funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

(c) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Group has no significant interest bearing assets. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest rates
on its financial position and cash flows. Interest costs may increase as a result of such changes. They may
reduce profits or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise.

The Group continually reviews interest rates and interest rate risk and has a policy of menitoring the costs and
benefits of interest rate fixing instruments with a view to hedging exposure to interest rate risk on a regular basis.

At 30 June 2020, 56.8% (2019: 59.4%) of the Group's borrowings were under long-term fixed rate agreements
and therefore were protected against future interest rate volatility.

(d) Capital risk
The Group's objective in managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base to support current operations
and planned growth and to provide for an appropriate level of dividend payments to shareholders.

The Group is not subject to external regulatory capital requirements,

(e) Price risk
Current asset investments are subject to pnce risk as a result of fluctuations in the market. The Group limits
the amount of by continually the perf of these i

(f) Compliance with covenants
The Group's bank facilities and the mortgage debenture stock include a number of covenants principally relating
to income and capital cover. The Directors monitor performance against these covenants on a regular basis.

2. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes esti and ing the future. The resulting accoummg estimates will,

by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The only estil and that have a si

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying value amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are as follows:

i) Group's property investments - the basis of valuation is set out in note 12

i) ing for YPS ir -an
set out within the Audit Committee Report

of the level of influence over this investment has been

iii} IFRS 16 - the incremental borrowing rate has been based on the interest rates of the Group’s Revolving
Credit Facilities, adjusted for individual leases as appropriate

3. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board. The Board vewews (he Group s |nlerna|
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate d the

segments based on these reports.

(A) Segmental assets

2020 | 2018

£000 | £000

Property rental ; 333,307 | 363,375
Car park activities : 53,498 | 31,466
Hotel operations i 8,630 ! 10,300
| 395435 | 405,141
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3. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION CONTINUED
(B) Segmental results

2020 2018
Property  Carpark Hotel Property  Car park Hotel

rental  activitles operations Total rental  activities operations Total

£000 £000 £00 £000 £000 00! £000 £000
Gross revenue 15,875 10,198 1916 27989 ' 16,637 1254 2,627 31,418
Provision for impairment
of debtors. (1,478) - - (1,478) (229) - - (229)
Service charge income 2,803 - - 2,803 2,976 - - 2,976
Service charge expenses [ZXo)) - - @.on (3.990) - - (3,990)
Property expenses (1,495) (5,970) (1,779) (9,244) (1,424) (6.766) (2,396)  (10,586)
Netrevenue 1,694 4,228 137 16,059 13,970 5,388 231 19,589
Administrative expenses (5,086) am) - 6,197} {5,889) (968) - (6,857)
Other income 1,218 - - 1,218 . 569 5 - 574
Other expenses (1 - - am
Shate of post-tax profits
from joint ventures 800 - - 800 1,075 - - 1,075
Operating profit before
valuation movements 7.849 37 137 1,103 9,725 4,425 23 14,381
Valuation movement
on investment properties (26,324) - - (26,324)  (18,308) - - (18,308)
Reversal of impairment .
of car parking assets - 250 - 250 - 200 - 200
Profit/{loss) on disposal
of investment properties 168 - - 68 (709) - - (709)
Valuation movement on
joint venture properties (350) - - (350) (8) - - (8)
Operating (loss)/profit (18,657 3,367 137 (15153) (9,300) 4,625 231 (4,444)
Finance costs (9,009) (8,025)
Loss before taxation (24,162) (12,469)
Taxation - -
Lass for the year (24,162) (12,469)

All results are derived from activities conducted in the United Kingdom.

The results for the car park activities include the car park at the Merrion Centre. As the value of the car park
cannot be separated from the value of the Merrion Centre as a whole, the full value of the Merrion Centre
is included within the assets of the property rental business.

The car park results also include car park income from sites that are held for future development. The value
of these sites has been determined based on their development value and therefore the total value of these
assets has been included within the assets of the property rental business.

The net revenue at the Merrion Centre and development sites for the year ended 30 June 2020, arising from
car park operations, was £3,053,000. After allowing for an all ion of ini i the i

profit at these sites was £2,251,000.

Revenue received within the car park and hotel segments is the only revenue recognised on a contract basis
under IFRS 15. All other revenue within the property segment comes from rental lease agreements.

4. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2020 2018
£000 £000
Employee benefits 3.893 4,240
Depreciation 227° 339
Charitable donations 49 92
Other 2,028 2,186
A 6,197 6,857
5. SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE GROUP'S EXTERNAL AUDITORS
During the year the Group obtained the following services from the Group’s auditors at costs as detailed below:
2020 ' 2019
£000 £000
Audit services: . .
- Feas payable to the Group auditors for the audit of the consolidated financial statements 85 , 85
- Audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legistation 10! 10
- Other sudit relsted services 15 | 15
Total audit services : 110 10
Non-audit services: ;
- Other nan-audit services 2 2
Totafother services ' 2! 2
Total auditors’ remuneratian ! 12 n2
6. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
2020 2018
£000 £000
Wages and salaties (including Directars' emoluments) . 4547 4,969
Social security costs 537 620
Other pension costs 132 15
5,216 1 5,704

Employee benefits detailed above are charged to the Consolidated income statement through administrative
and property These are net of furlough claims received from HMRC under the
Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme.

Discls required by the Ci
pension ibuti and pension
and form part of these consolidated financial statements.

Act 2006 on Directors’ remuneration, including salaries, share options,

The average monthly number of staff employed during the year was 127 (2019: 135).

The Group aperates pension arrangements far the benefit of all eligible Directors and employees,
which are defined contribution arrangements. The assets of the arrangements are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered funds. All of the pension costs in the table above
relate to defined contribution schemes.

are included on pages 72-79 in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
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7. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
Other income

[ 2020 1 2019
£000 £000
Commission received 172 I 172
Dividends received 33 \ 33
Management fees receivable ' 245 207
" Dilapidations receipts and income relating to lease premiums 7ns 85
Other 53 77
i 1,218 | 574
Other expenses :
During the year a provision of £777,000 has been recognised in relation to costs incurred on a project that may
not be recoverable. Costs have been incurred over a number of years on the planned George Street aparthotel
joint venture however there is some doubt over the future viability of the project, therefore a full provision has
been recognised against the costs incurred to date. ,
8.FINANCE COSTS
' 2020 2018
i £000 £000
Interest payable on debenture loan stock 5,698 5,698
Interest payable on bank borrowings 1,950 1,981
Amortisation of arrangement fees 327 346
Interest expense an lease liabilities 1,034 -
Total finance costs { 9,009 1 8,025
9. TAXATION \
There was no current or deferred tax charge for both of the years presented.
Taxation for the year is lower (2019: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom
of 19% (2019: 19%). The differences are explained below:
2020 2018
| £000 | £000
Profit before taxation | (24,062)" (12,469)
Profit on ordinary activities muttiplied by rate of corporation tax in the United Kingdom of 19%
(2019: 19%) (4,591) (2,369)
Effects of:
- United Kingdom REIT tax exemption on net income before revaluations (398); {1,206)
- United Kingdom REIT tax exemption on revaluations 4,989 3,575
Total taxation t -1 -

Factors affecting current and future tax charges

Town Centre Securities PLC elected for group REIT status with effect from 2 October 2007. As a result the
Group no longer pays United Kingdom corporation tax on the profits and gains from its qualifying rental
business in the United Kingdom provided it meets certain conditions. Nan-qualifying profits and gains

of the Group continue to be subject to corporation tax as normal.
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10. DIVIDENDS

r“'ﬁﬂ 2019
£000 £000
2018 final pald: 8.50p per share ~ - 4,519
2019 interim paid: 3.25p per share - 1728
2079 finaf paid: 8.50p per share " 4,513 -
2020 interim paid: 3.25p per share 1,728 -
1 6.247 | 6,247
An interim dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020 of 3.25p per share was paid to shareholders
on 26 June 2020. This dividend was paid entirely as a Property Income Distribution (PID).
A final dividend in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020 of 1.75p per share is proposed. This dividend, based
on the shares in issue at 22 September 2020, amounts to £0.8m which has not been reflected in these accounts
and will be paid on 5 January 2021 to shareholders on the register on 4 December 2020. The entire dividend will
be paid as an ordinary dividend.
11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
The calculation of basic earnings per share has been based on the profit for the vear, divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue. The weighted average number of shares in issue during
the year was 53,161,950 (2019: 5§3,161,950).
| . 2020 - ] 2019
Earnings Eamnings
Earnings  pershare Earnings  per share
£000 .p £000 P
Loss for the year and earninga per share (24,162) 455)]  (12,469) (23.4)
Valuation movement on investment properties 26,324 495 18,308 345
Reversal of impairment of car parking assets (250} (0.5)} (200) (0.9
Valuation movement on properties held in joint ventures 350 07 l 8 0.0
Profit/loss on disposal of Investment and development properties (168) 0.3)! 709 1.3
EPRA earnlngs and earnings per share 2,094 391 6,356 12.0
Impact of IFRS 16 adjustments (note 26) i - s28 1.0} - -
Adjusted EPRA earnings and earnings per shara ! 2,622 491 6,356 120

There is no difference between basic and diluted earnings per share.

There is no difference between basic and diluted EPRA earnings per share.
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
{A) Investment properties

Long Right-to-use
Freehald leagehold Development asset Total
£000 £000 £00 £000 £000
Valuation at 30 lune 2018 277,918 21,692 36,701 - 33631
Additions at cost 16,968 - - - 16,968
Other capital expenditure 3,469 - m - 3,740
Disposals (14,290) - (500) - (14,790}
Deficit on revatuation (17.879) (408) @) - (18,308)
Mavement in tenant lease incentives 579 - - - 579
Valuation at 30 June 2019 266,765 21,284 36,451 - 324,500
Fadditions at cost 1610 - 1,610
{IFRS 16 adjustments - - - 518 518
Other capital expenditure ) 5,630 - 348 - 5.978
Purchase of freehold 14129 (13,594) - - 535
Disposals (2,425) - - - (2,425)]
| Transter to assets held for sale (23,199) - - - (23,199)
{ Deficit on revaluation (25,206) {2,070) 952 - (26,324)
! Movementin tenant lease incentives (279) - - - (279)!
{vatuation at 30 June 2020 237,025 5.620 372751 518 280914 |
(B) Freeho!d and leasehold ﬁvoperties - car park activities
Lang Right-to-use
Freehold leasehold asset Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Valuation at 30 June 2018 3,000 20,423 - 23,423
Additions - 255 - 255
Depreciation - (184) - (184)
Surplus on revaluation 500 - - 500
Reversal of impairment/(impairment) 250 (50) - 200
Valuation at 30 June 2019 3,750 20,444 - 24,194
jAdditions’ - 25 - 25
JIRFS 16 adjustment - {3,300 30,322 27,021 (
1Depreciation - (187) 0,144) (1.331)
|Reversal of impairment - 250 - 250 l
[Valuation at 30 June 2020 3,750 17,231 29,178 50,159 }

The historical cost of freehold and leasehold properties relating to car park activities is £22,425,000
(2019: £22,425,000).

The Company accupies an office suite in part of the Merrion Centre and also at 6 Duke Street in London.
The Directors do not consider this element to be material.

The fair value of the Group’s investment and development properties has been determined principally

by independent, appropriately qualified external vatuers CBRE and Jones Lang LaSalle. The external valuation
reports have explicitly mentioned material valuation inty due to Novel Ct irus (COVID-19) in their
portfolio valuation reports to management for certain properties within the TCS portfolios. The remainder

of the portfolio has been valued by the Property Director.
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are performed bi: lly and are performed consistently across the Group’s whole portfolio
of properties. At each reporting date appropriately qualified employees verify all significant inputs and review
computational outputs. The external valuers submit and present summary reports to the Property Director
and the Board on the outcome of each valuation round.

Valuations take into account tenure, lease terms and structural condition. The inputs underlying the valuations
include market rents or business profitability. incentives offered to tenants, forecast growth rates, market yields
and discount rates and selling costs including stamp duty.

The d properties I ise land in Leeds and Manchester. These have also been valued
by appropriately qualified external valuers Jones Lang LaSalle, taking into account the income from car parking
and an assessment of their realisable value in their existing state and condition based on market evidence

of comparable transactions.

Property income, values and yields have been set cut by category in the table below.

Passing ) Initial Reversionary
rent ERV Value yield i
£000 £000 £000 %

Retail and Leisure 2973 3,455 41,990 6.7% 7.8%
Merrion Centre (excluding offices) 6,993 735 85,725 17% 8%
Offices 2,175 4,529 47,795 4.3% 9.0%
Hotels 1,180 1,630 23,080 4.8% 6.7%
Out of town retail 1,938 1871 25,575 7.2% 6.9%
Distribution m 427 6,010 6.5% 6.7%
Residential 616 639 10,570 5.5% 5.7%
| 16,286 19,902 240,745 6.4% 7.8% |
Development property 37,751
Car parks 22,881
Right to use assets 29,696
f . | - - 331,073 i

The effect on the total valuation (including development property, car parks and right-to-use assets)
of applying a different yield and a different ERV would be as follows:

Valuation in the consolidated financial statements at an initial vield of 7.4% - €298.5m, Valuation at 5.4% - £375.7m.

Valuation in the consolidated financial statements at a reversionary yield of 8.8% - £303.8m, Valuation at 6.8% - £366.4m.

Property valuations can be reconciled to the carrying value of the properties in the balance sheet as follows:

Freehold and

Investment leasehold  Assets held
properties  praperties forsale Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
Externally valued by CBRE 160,265 - 21,540 181,805
Externally valued by Jones Lang LaSalle 119,980 17,250 - 137,230

Investment properties valued by the Property Director - 151 = -
Acquisitions recognised at cost - - 1,659 1,659
IFRS 16 right to use assets 518 29,178 - 29,696
Leasehold improvements - 3,731 - 3,731

{ 280,914 50,159 23198 354272

Leasehold improvements primarily relate to expenditure incurred on the refurbishment of three leasehold
car parks in Watford.
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12. NON-CURRENT ASSETS CONTINUED

All investment properties measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet are categorised as

{evel 3 in the fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 as one or more inputs to the valuation are partly

based on unobservable market data. In arriving at their valuation for each property (as in prior years)

both the independent valuers and the Property Director have used the actual rent passing and have also

formed an opinion as to the two significant unobservable inputs being the market rental for that property '
and the yield (i.e. the discount rate) which a potential purchaser would apply in arriving at the market

value. Both these inputs are arrived at using market comparables for the type, location and condition

of the property.

Assets held for sale

As at 30 June 2020, two properties with a total value of £23,198,000 were in the process of being sold
and therefore have been classified within current assets as Assets held for sale. The valuation deficit
recoginsed through the Income Statement in relation to these properties was £3,471,000.

(C) Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles
Accumulated

Cost  Depreciation
£000
A1 July 2018 3,632 2,088
Additions 814 -
Disposals (56) (42)
Depreciation - 735
At 30 June 2019 4,390 2,781
Net book value at 30 June 2019 1,609
AU July 2019 . 4,390 2781 ]
Additions 93 -
Depreciation - 589 ‘
[t 30 June 2020 4,483 3,370 }
{Net book value at 30 June 2020 113}
13. GOODWILL
!_—_;E;l 2019
£000 £000
At the start and end of the year i 4,024 | 4,024

Goodwill represents the difference between the fair value of the paid on the

of car park businesses and the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired as part of these business
inati These i relate to i that held car parks under operating leases with

a net asset value of £nil. Goodwill P the full i ion of these isiti

A review of the year end carrying value has been performed to identify any potential impairment. This has
been based on the discounted future cash flows that are expected to be generated by the assets acquired,
after taking account of the continuing impact of COVID-19. The cash generating units are the individual car parks
acquired. The key assumptions used in preparing these cash flow forecasts are an underlying revenue growth
rate of 1% (2019: 1%) and a discount rate of 8% {2019: 8%). The assumptions used in the cash flow are based

on historical experience of the sector.

As the discounted future cash flows are in excess of the year end carrying value, no impairment of the carrying
value is required.

14.INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

I 2020 ! 2019
£000 £000

At the start of the year 13,387 39,742

of foans in joint ventures (86) 723
Dividends and ather distributions received in the year - {28,145)
Share of profits after tex 450 1,067
Atthe end of the year | 13,751 | 13,387

Investments in joint ventures are broken down as follows:

I 2020 | 2018
£000 £000

Equity [ 8,452 7792
Loans 5,299 5,585
! 13,7511 13,387

Investments in joint ventures primarily relate to the Group's interest in the partnership capital of Merrion House LLP
and Belgravia Living Group Limited.

Merrion House LLP owns a long leasehold interest over a property that is let to the Group's joint venture partner,

Leeds City Council ('LCC'). The interest in the joint venture for each partner is an equal 50% share, regardless

of the level of overall contributions from each partner. The investment property held within this partnership has .
been externally valued by CBRE at each reporting date. .

The assets and liabilities of Merrion House LLP for the current and previous year are as stated below:

l 2020 2019
- £000 £000

Non-current assets 69,400 69,400
Current assets 689 1178
Current liabilities (2,269)! (2,702)
Non-current liabilities (50.532) (52,080)
Net assets i 17,288 | 15,796

The profits of Merrion House LLP for the current and previous year are as stated below:

I 2020 | 2019

£000 £000

Revenue 3,328 3,328
Expenses. l (5) 33)
Finance costs (1,832)! (1,406)
1,491 1,889

Veluation movement on investment praperties I - I (]
Net profit ] 1,491} 1,872

Belgravia Living Group Limited completed construction of a block of ial apartments in

towards the end of the previous financial year. These apartments have been let to residential tenants during
the year. The Group’s financial interest in this joint venture is primarily in the form of a loan with a value as at
30 June 2020 of £5.3m (2019: £5.5m).

m
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14. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES CONTINUED
The net assets of Belgravia Living Group for the current and previous year are as stated below:

! 2020 i 2019
£000 £000
Non-current assets. 22,923 22,736
Current assets T 3014 540
Current liabilities (1,365) (23.355)
Non-current liabil (14,725) -
Net liabilitles 1 (153)1 (79)
The income and expenses of Belgravia Living Group Limited for the current and previous year are as stated below:
| 2020 } 2018
£000 £000
Revenue 1,215 -
Expenses (538) -
Finance costs (751! (14
Net loss I (7)1 (14)
The Group’s interest in other joint ventures are not considered to be material.
The joint ventures have no significant contingent liabilities to which the Group is exposed nor has the Group
any significant contingent liabilities in relation to its interest in the joint ventures.
A full list of the Group's joint ventures, which are all registered in England and operate in the United Kingdom,
is set out as follows:
Beneficial
interest
% Activity
Merrion House LLP 50 Property investment
Belgravia Living Group Limited 50 Praperty Investment
Bay Sentry Limited 50 Software Development

15. INVESTMENTS
Current asset investments

I 2020 ! 2019

£000 £000
At the start of the year 5,87 3,530
Increase in value of investments l (2.363) 2,341
Atthe end of the year ] 3,508 ) 5,871

Current asset investments relate to an equity shareholding in a company listed on the London Stock Exchange.

This is stated at market value in the table above and has a historic cost of £889,130 (2019: £889,130).
Current asset investments are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet and are categorised
as level 1in the fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 as the inputs to the valuation are based on quoted
market prices.

The maximum risk exposure at the reporting date is the fair value of the current asset investments.

Non-current asset investments

| 2020 i 2019
£000 | £000
Equity investments 1121 | 975
Loans 1,535 1535
i 26561 2,510
Non-current asset investments primarily relate to an equity shareholding and loans advanced
to YourParkingSpace Limited, a privately owned company incorporated in the United Kingdom.
The asset is categorised as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13 as the inputs
to the valuation are based on unobservable inputs.
16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
‘ 2020 ! 2019
£000 £000
Trade receivables ‘ 3,852 ! 2,955
Less: provision for impairment of receivables (1,766) | (an)
2,086 2,544
Other receivables and prepayments . 1,382 2,810
34681 5354
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of net trade receivables approximates their fair value.
The credit risk in respect of trade receivables is not concentrated as the Group has many tenants spread across
a number of industry sectors. In addition, the tenants’ rents are payable in advance. The pravision for impairment
of receivables has been calculated after taking into account the impact of COVID-19 on the economy and the
financial position of tenants.
Due to the nature of income, debts are generally recovered in advance and full provision has been made
for income recognised but not recovered during the year. As such, the credit risk relating to trade and other
receivables is considered to be low and any expected credit loss would be immaterial.
As at 30 June 2020, trade receivables which had not been impaired can be analysed as follows:
Outside credit terms
Withincredit Lessthanone  Onetotwo  Olderthan
Total terms month months  twomonths
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
{2020 2,086 2,086 - - -
2019 2,544 2124 21 10 199
in the Group ision for i of trade bles are as foltows:
2020 2019
£000 £000
At the start of the year an 458
Provision for receivables impairment 1478 229
Receivables written off as uncaollectible - (123)] (218)
Unused amounts reversed ~ ‘ (58)
Atthe end of the year 1,766 | an

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables have been included in administrative
in the Ci i income

n3



Town Centre Securities PLC

Annual Report & Accounts 2020 03. Financial Statements

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

{continued)

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
The ageing of the provision is as follows:

Less than Onetotwo Older than

Total  anemonth months  two months
£000 £000 £01 £000
{2020 1766 - 229 1,537 4
2019 ) an 9 19 383
The only class within trade bles is rent ivable. Other ivables do not cantain impaired
assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of trade receivables
as mentioned above.
The Group does not hotd any material collateral as security.
In ing whether trade recei are impaired, each debt is considered on an individual basis and
provision is made based an specific knowledge of each tenant, together with the consideration of appropriate
economic market indicators.
17. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
‘ 2020 i 2019
£000 | £000
Bank overdraft 10,282 23,483
Trade payables 910 128
Social security and other taxes 1143 529
Other payables and accruals 1,047 10,599
i} 1 23,382 ) 34,739
The Group’s banking facility has an agreement which allows the right of off-set between fellow Group
ies. Interest p and tests are d on a net basis across the accounts within
the banking facility. Whilst management monitors cash on a net basis, the fact that accounts were not
actually swept and netted off at 30 June 2020 has meant that the cash and overdraft balances have been
presented on a gross basis.
18. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
All the Group's borrowings are either at floating or fixed rates of interest. The Group takes on exposure
to fluctuations in interest rates on its financial position and its cash flows. Interest costs may increase
or decrease as a result of such changes.
2020 2018
‘ £000 £000
Current !
Bank borrowings 60,326 -
Lease liabilities 1,658 -
i 61,984 -
Non-current i
Bank borrowings 19,796 71,862
Lease liabilities 28,919 4,425
5.375% First mortgage debenture stock 105,876 105,865
| 154,591 § 182,152
Total barrawings 1 216,575 | 182,152

14

The movement in financial liabilities during the year can be summiarised as follows:

{ 2020 2019
£000 £000
Atthe start of the year 182,152 198,057
Cash items
Borrowings drawn down 8,000 (16,000)
Arrangement fees paid - (233)
Total cash items 8,000 (16,233)
Non-cash items.
Amartisatian of arrangement fees 27 347
Movement in finance leases 26,152 (19)
Total non-cash items { 26,423 | 328
Atthe end of the year { 216,575 | 182,152

The debenture, bank loans and overdrafts are secured by fixed charges on properties, valued at £314,375,000
(2019: £336,825,000) owned by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings.

The gross cash and overdraft balances on the indivi are ised as follows:
t 2020 2018
£000 £000
Cash balances 12,643 23,692
Overdrawn balances (10,282)1 (23,483)
Cash and cash equivalents ] 2,361 209
The Group’s remaining | non-di I for financial liabilities is set out below:
2020 1
Trade and
other Bank  Debenture Lease
creditors  borrowings stock liabilities Total
£000 £00 £000 £0 £000
In one year or less on demand 10,282 61,855 5,698 1,658 79,493
In more than one year but not more than five years - 20,783 22,792 6,716 50,291
In more than five years - - 142,465 48,001 190,466
i 10,282 82,638 170,955 56,375 320,250 |
2019
Trade and
ather Gank  Debenture Lease
creditors  borrowings stock liabitities Total
£000 £00¢ £000 £000 £000
In ane year o less on demand 23,483 1,750 5698 209 31140
In more than one year but not more than five years - 76,690 22,790 818 100,298
In more than five years - - 148,163 17,475 165,638
23,483 78,440 176,651 18,502 297,076

The debenture issue premium is net of issue costs and is amortised over the life of the debt agreement.
The numbers disclosed in the maturity profile above have been calculated to include notional interest payments,

using the interest rates prevaiting at the balance sheet date. The calculation is based on the assumption that the
level of borrowings remains unchanged until maturity.

18
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Bank overdrait facility = 21% 2.75%
Bank borrowings 178% 240"
Debenture loan 5.375% 5.375%
Lease liabilities 3.5% 5.0%
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18. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CONTINUED
The Group had undrawn committed floating rate bank facilities as follows:

| 2020 1 2018
£000 £000

Expiring in one year or less 7,500 -
Expiring in more than one year 15,000 30,500
I 22,500 | 30,500

The avallabllnv of undrawn 1unds is subyec( to compliance with banking covenants. Performance against
are formally prepared at the end of each quarter.
There have been no instances of non- comphan:e during the year.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group finances its operations through a combination of retained cash flows, debentures flnance leases
and bank borrowings. Procedures are in place to monitor interest rate risk as
Numerical financial instruments disclosures are set out below. Additional disclosures are set out in lhs accounting
policies relating to financial risk management. The carrying value of short-term receivables and payables approximate
to their fair values. All financial liabilities are denominated in Sterling.

Interest rate risk
The interest rate risk of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

As a1 30 June 2020 1 Asat 30 une 2019
Welghted  Welghted Weighted  Welghted
Nominal average average Nominal overage average
value . rate period value rate period
£000 % Years £000 % Years
Debenture stock 106,001 5.375 1 106.001 5.375 12
Bank floating rate liabilities 80,500 178 72,500 241 2
Lease liabilities 30,577 3.5 4,425 5.0 18
| 217078 | 182926

Floating rate financial liabilities bear interest at rates for term loans based on LIBOR plus an average margin
of 1.65% and for the overdraft of 2.00% above base rate.

Facilities provided by banks and other investors are a mixture of fixed rates and floating charge funding.
Floating rate borrowings are exposed to the risk of rising interest rates which the Group manages where
necessary by the use of appropriate financial hedging instruments, primarily interest rate swaps.

Anincrease in LIBOR by one percentage point would have reduced profit for the year by approximately
£745,000 {2019: £735,000).

Financial instruments held for trading purposes
Itis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s policy not to trade in financial instruments.

Foreign currency exposure
The Group has no exposure to foreign currency as it has no overseas operations and all sales and purchases
are made in Sterling.

Effective interest rates
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

Fair value of current borrowings
The fair value of bank borrowings and overdrafts approximates to their carrying value.

Fair value of non-current borrowings

’ 2020 l 2018

| T e B " so00
Debenture stock I 105,876 123578 105,865 6518
Non-current bank borrowings 80,122 80122 l 71,862 71,862

The above debenture stock has been valued as at 30 June 2020 by J C Rathbone Associates on the basis
of open market value.

The fair valuation of debenture stock is categorised as level 1in the fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13
as inputs are quoted in active markets.

All financing liabilities are held at amortised cost.

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will each be able to continue to operate
as a going concern while imising the return to through the optimisation of debt and equity.
The capital structure of the Group consists of financial liabilities per note 18 and equity per the Consolidated
statement of changes in equity. The Group's capital structure is reviewed regularly by the Directors.

The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

20. LEASE LIABILITIES
At 30 June 2020 the Group has a long leasehold interest in seven properties that are accounted for under IFRS 16.
Two of these properties were classified as finance leases at 30 June 2019.

Future lease payments are as follows:

L 2020 1 2018
Minimum Minimum
lease Present lease Present
payments ° Interest ' value payments Interest value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
In one year or less on demand 1,658 1012 646 209 209 -
In more than one year but not more
than five years 6,716 3,808 2,908 818 818 -
In more than five years 48,001 20,978 27,023 17,475 13,050 4,425
] 56,375 ' 25,798 30,577} 18,502 14,077 4,425

21. EPRA NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE
The Basic and EPRA net asset values are the same, as set out in the table below.

! 2020 I 2018
£000 £000

Net assets at 30 June [ 155,478 | 188,250
Shares in issue (000) 53,162 ' 53162
Basic and EPRA net asset value per share 292p 354p

"
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22. COMMITMENTS
The Group has no capital commitments (2019: €nil) in respect of capital expenditure contracted
for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred, for investment and development property.

2020 2018
£000 £000

Minimum total future lease payments receivable:

Within one year | 14,174 | 13,821
One to five years | 42,409 | 40,113
1n mote than five years | 85,516 | 83,364

The Group has a wide range of leases in place with tenants across a broad range of properties, sectors,
tenures and rental values.

23. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised

The authorised share capital of the Company is 164,879,000 (2019: 164,879,000) Ordinary Shares of 25p each.
The nominal value of authorised share capital is £41,219,750 (2019: £41,219,750).

Issued and fully paid up

Number Nominal

of shares value

£000

At 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2020 53,162 13,290

The Company has only one type of Ordinary Share class in issue. All shares have equal entitlement to voting rights
and dividend distributions.

24.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2020 2019
£000 £000
Loss for the financial year (24.162) (12,469)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 1920 919
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - [©)]
{Profityloss on disposal of investment properties (168) 709
Finance costs "9,008 8025
Share of post tax profits from joint ventures (450) (1,067)
in valuation of i d properties 26,324 18,308
Movement in lease incentives 279 (579)
Reversal of impairment of car parking assets (250) (200)
Decrease/(increase) in receivables 1,097 (2,074)
Increase/(decrease) in payables 834 (473)
Cash generated from aperations 14,433 | 1,090
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25. REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Executive Directors, who are the key management personnel of the Group,

is set out below i in aggregate for each of (he apphcabIe categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’.
Further information about the Directors is provided in the audited part of the

Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 72-79.
! 2020 2018
£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits T 1830 1,865
Postemployment benefits 125 102
1,955 1,967

26. ADOPTION OF IFRS 16
Effective 1 July 2019, IFRS 16 has replaced IAS 17 Leases and IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease.

IFRS 16 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring the recognition of assets and liabilities for all leases,
together with options to exclude leases where the lease term is 12 months or less, or where the underlying asset
is of low value. IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting in 1AS 17, with the distinction between
operating leases and finance leases being retained.

method and practical di utilised
The Group adopted IFRS 16 using the modified r h, with ition of
on the date of initial application (1 July 2019), without restatement of comparative figures. The Group elected to apply
the practical expedient to not reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application.
Contracts entered into before the transition date that were not identified as leases under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not
reassessed. The definition of a Iease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after
1 July 2019,

IFRS 16 provides for certain optional practical expedients, including those related to the initial adoption of the standard.
The Group applied the following practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating
leases under IAS 17:

(a) Apply a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

(b) Exclude initial direct costs from the measurement of right-of-use assets at the date of initial application for leases
where the right-of-use asset was determined as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date;

(c) Reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous as apposed to preparing an impairment review
under IAS 36 as at the date of initial applica(ion- and

(d} Applied the not to ight-of- assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months
of lease term remaining as of the date of initial application.

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases. However, the Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for some leases of low value assets based on the value of the underlying asset when new
or for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

The discount rate applied in the i i5.3.5% which thei | cost of borrowing.

The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the primarily statements is presented on pages 120-121.
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Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Pre IFRS 16 Rental Depreciation Interest [m
adjustments expense charge expense { adjustments
£000 £000 £000 £000
Gross revenue 26,702 - - 1 26702
Property expenses (1,149) 1,650 (1142) - | no0sa3)
Netrevenue 15,553 1,650 (1142) - eos)
Admiristrative expenses 6197 - - - (6197)
Otherincome 1218 - - - 1218
Other expenses arm - - - 777)
Valuation movement an investment properties (26,324) - - - (26,324)
Reversal of impairment of car parking assets 250 - - - 250
Profit on disposal of investment properties 168 - - - 168
Share of post tax prolits from joint ventures 450 - - - " 450
Operatingloss 15.659) 1,650 (1142) R (5.53)
Finance costs (7,975} - - (1,034) {9,009}
Lass before taxation (23,634) 1,650 (1.144) (1,034) (2462)
Loss for the year (23,634) 1,650 (144 (1.034)1  (24762)]

Consolidated balance sheet

s at 30 June 2020

PreIFRS16  Right-to-use Lease F«;m]
adjustments assets liabilitles | adjustments
£000 £000 £000
Non-current assets
Praperty rental
investment properties 260,396 st -{ 280914
tnvestments in jint ventures 13,751 - - 13,751
294,147 518 - 294,665 )
Car park activities
Freehold and leasehold properties 24,282 25,877 - 50159
Goodwill 4,024 - - 4,024
tnvestments 2,656 - - 2,656
30,962 25,877 -1 56839}
Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles 113 - - 31
Total non-current assets 326,222 26,395 -1 3s26171
Current assets
Investments - 3,508 - - 3,508
Assets held for safe 23199 - - 23,99
Trade and other receivables 3,468 - - 3,468
Cash and cash equivalents 12,643 - - 12,643
Total current assets 42,818 - -1, a288]
Total assets 369,040 26,395 -] 395435§
Current liabllitles ]
Trade and other payables (23.735) 353 - .(23.382)!
Financial liabilties (60,326) - (1658)}  (61,984):
Total current labilitias (84,061) 353 (1.658}]  (85,366)
Non-current liabllities i
Financial labilties (128,973) - (25,6\8)' | (154.591)
Totai liabllities {213,034) 353 (27,276)] (239,957);
Net assets 156,006 26,748 (27.276)f 155,478 |

27. POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Since the year end the Group has extended its £33m facility with NatWest for a further year on the same terms

and margin. This facility now expires in April 2022.

Four retail properties have been sotd since the year end for a total sum of £35.2m.
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Company balance sheet

as at 30 June 2020
l 2020 2019
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assots
Investment properties 4 102,406 102,026
Property, plant and equipment 4 743 872
Investments 5 256,648 256,798
| 359,797 359,696
Current assets
tnvestments 6 3,508 587
Oebtors 7 93,580 96,626
Cash 25 22
| 9713 | 102,519
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Financia liabiliies - borowings 9 3.322) (20,337
Other creditors 8 (147,065) (132,519)
! (150,387)| (152,856)
Net current liabllities { (53,274)} (50,337)
Total assets less current labllities 306,523 309,359
Financial liabllities - borrowings 9 (185,998) ; (177.727)
Net assets 120,525 | 131,632
Equity attributable to the awners of the Parent ¢
Called up share capital 10 13,290 ! 13,290
Share premium account 200 200
Capital redemption reserve 559 559
Other reserves 80,057 80,057
Profit and loss account 26,419 37,526
Total sharehalders’ funds ! 120,525 } 131,632

Company number: 00623364

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Parent Company’s Profit and Loss Account
has not been included in these financial statements. The loss shown in the financial statements of the
Parent Company was £4,859,000 (2019: profit of £5,051,000).

The financial statements on pages 122-133 were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 September 2020
and signed on its behalf by

Dr. Edward Ziff OBE DL
Chairman and Chief Executive

R0 \@;
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Statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 30 June 2020

Share Capltal
Calledup  premium  redemption Other  Retalned Total
share capltal account rese reserve  earnings equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 30 Juno 2018 13,290 200 559 80,057 38,722 132,828
Comprehensive income for the year
Profit - - - - 5,051 5.051
Total comprehenslve income for the year 5,051 5,051
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Final dividend retating 1o the year ended
30 June 2018 - - - - (4.519) (4,519)
interim dividend relating to the year ended
30 fune 2019 - - - - (1.728) (1,728)
Batance at 30 June 2019 13,290 200 559 80,057 37,526 131,632
Comprehensive income for the year N i
Loss - - - - (4.859) (4859
Total comprehensive (loss)fincome . |
for the year - - - - (4,859) (4,859)
Contributions by and distributions to owners
Final dividend relating to the year ended
30 June 2019 - - - - (4,519) (4,519)
Interim dividend refating to the year ended
30 June 2020 - - - - (1,729) (1,729);
| Batance a1 30 June 2020 13,290 200 559 80,057 26,419 120,525 |
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Notes to the Company financial statements

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Preparation

The Company financial have been prep: i with FRS 102, (The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland), the going concern basis, the historical cost
convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties and certain investments and in accordance
with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable law.

In making their assessment of the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern the Directors have
considered the impact of COVID-19 on both the liquidity and i with bank loan of the Group
as a whole. This approach is considered appropriate on the basis that all external funding is he!d within the
Company. As such, the below assessment represents the Group position.

The Group owns a portfolio of multi-let regional property assets located throughout the UK, and operates

a car parking business. The business is funded in part by @ £106m debenture which is due for repayment

in 203). In addition the business has three bilateral RCF facilities totalling £103m which are due for repayment
or renewal between April 2022 and June 2023. In order to assess the potential impact of COVID-19 on the Group
and its ability to continue as a going concern, managementhave analysed the portfolio’s tenant base and

car parking operation and produced forecasts to 30 D 2021, These reflect ’s
view of a worst case scenario including assumptions that rent receipts are materially lower than normally
experienced and that the car park and hotel businesses recovers over the forecast period to a materially lower
level than would normally be expected.

These forecasts show that the Group has sufficient resources to continue to operate as a going concern
for at least the next 12 months. Based on the forecasts, including the mitigating options utilised such as the
government approved furlough scheme and VAT and PAYE pay deferral available to the Group the Directors
consider it appropriate to prepare these financial statements on the going concern basis.

However, the debt facilities include an interest cover covenant and a loan to value covenant. The Group it is
currently in i with all of its Were there to be a i ion in rent ion or

towards the value of these assets as a result of COVID-19 there is a possibility that these covenants could be
breached. Whilst these forecasts provide robust support, in light of the uncertainty in respect of the adverse
impacts of COVID-19, its duration, the ability of the Group to obtain loan covenant waivers if required and the
current bank facility renewal, a material uncertainty exists which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability, and therefore because of the above-mentioned reliance on the group, the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern and therefore its ability to realise its assets and settle its liabilities within the ordinary course
of business.

These financial statements do not include the adjustments that would be necessary should the going concern
basis of preparation no longer be appropriate.

\
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires to exercise j in applying the Company’s accounting policies
(see note 2). The principal accounting policies, which have been applied consistently, are as set out below:

Financial reporting standard 102 - reduced d|s:Insuve exemptions
The Company has taken adh of the followit ions in preparing these financial statements,
as permitted by the FRS 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”:

the requirements of Section 4 Statement of Financial Position paragraph 4.12(a)(iv);

the requirements of Section 7 Statement of Cash Flows;
the requirements of Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph 3.17(d):

the requirements of Section 11 Financial (nstruments paragraphs 11.41(b), 11.41(c), 11.41(e), 11.41(f),
11.42, 11.44 to 11.45, 11.47, 11.48(a)(iii), 11.48(a)(iv), 11.48(b) and 11.48(c);

the requirements of Section 12 Other Financial Instruments paragraphs 12.26 10 12.27, 12.29(a),
12.29(b) and 12.29A;

the requirements of Section 33 Related Party Disclosures paragraph 33.7.

This information is included in the consolidated financial statements of Town Centre Securities Plc as at
30 June 2018 and these financial statements may be obtained from Companies House, Cardiff CF4 3UZ.

124

Deferred taxation

Town Centre Securities PLC elected for group REIT status with effect from 2 October 2007. As a result the
Company no longer pays United Kingdom corporation tax on the profits and gains from qualifying rental business
in the United Kingdom provided it meets certain conditions. Non-qualifying profits and gains of the Company
continue to be subject to corporation tax as normal. On entering the REIT regime an entry charge equal to 2%

of the aggregate market value of the properties associated with the qualifying rental business was payable.
Deferred tax accrued at the date of conversion in respect of the assets and liabilities of the qualifying rental
business was released to the income statement as the relevant temporary differences are no longer taxable

on reversal. From 17 July 2012 there is no REIT entry charge payable where the Company makes acquisitions

of companies owning qualifying properties.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance
sheet date, where transactions or events that result in an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay
less tax in the future have occurred at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing
differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are included in the accounts at open market values based on an independent external
valuation, as at 30 June each year, or held at Directors’ valuation. Movements in fair value are taken through
the income statement.

Investments
Investments are held on the balance sheet at fair value. Any fair value gains and losses are taken to the
income statement.

Investment income
Income from investments is accounted for on the payment date of the dividends.

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
Investments in subsidiary undertakings are stated in the balance sheet of the Company at cost less impairment.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and are d at cost less

for i i A ision for i i of trade i is when there is objective evidence
that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables
concerned. The amount of the provision is i in the C: I income

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance sheet at cost. Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within borrowings in current liabilities
on the balance sheet. Where there is a formal legal arrangement with a right to offset the net position of the
individual accounts will be presented in cash ar current liabilities as appropriate.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Company and other parties undertake an economic
activity that is subject to joint control.

Investments in jointly controtled entities are valued at cost less impairment.

Turnover

Turnover, which excludes value added tax, represents the invoiced value of rent and services supplied

to customers. Rental income is accounted for as it falls due in accordance with the lease to which it relates.

Unamortised tenant lease incentives

Leasehold incentives given to tenants on entering property leases are recognised as unamortised lease incentives.

The operating lease incentives are spread over the non-cancellable life of the lease. Where this ends with a clean
break clause the incentives are spread to this date unless management is reasonably certain that the break will
not be exercised.
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{continued)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED 4. TANGIBLE ASSETS
Derivative fi (derivatives) and hedge Investment properties
The Company occasionally uses interest rate swaps to help manage its interest rate risk. In accordance ! Long
with its treasury policy, the Company does not hold or issue derivatives for trading purposes. Freehold leasehold Development Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

The Company documents at the i ion of the ion the relati ip between hedging instruments Valuation ot 30 June 2019 58,636 6,990 36,400 102,026
and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategy for undertaking various hedging N 4 ’ . .
transactions. The Company also its both at hedge i ion and on an ongoing basis, Additions 6,267 - 348 6615
of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes Valuation movement (6.153) (980) 952 (6,181)
in fair value or cash flows of hedged items. B . "

. Movement in tenant lease incentives (54) - - (54)
All derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative is entered into and are [valuation at 30 June 2020 58,696 6,010 37,700 102,406 |

subsequently remeasured at fair value. The fair value of interest rate swaps is based on broker quotes.

The methad of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated
as a hedging instrument.

Reserves
Reserves are analysed in the following categories:

Share capital represents the nominal value of issued share capital.

Share premium represents any consideration received in excess of nominal value of the shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal value of the Company’s own shares that have been
repurchased and cancelled.

Other reserves relates to the revaluation of the Company’s investments

Retained earnings represents the cumulative profit or loss position less dividend distributions.

2. JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND KEY SOURCES

OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The Company makes estil and ing the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equat the related actual results. The only estimates and assumptions that have

a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying value amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are investment properties (note 4).

3. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
I 2020 2019
£000 £000
Wages and salaries (including Directors’ emotuments) 2,697 3,086
Social security costs 325 369
Other pension costs 72 62

| 3,004 | 3,517

Employee benefits are charged to the Profit and Loss account through administrative expenses.
All of the pension costs in the table above relate to define contribution schemes.
The aggregate remuneration of the Directors of the Company was £1,955,000 (2019: £1,967,000).

The average monthly number of staff employed during the year was 51 (2019: 56). Disclosures required

by the Companies Act 2006 on Directors’ remuneration, including salaries, share options, pension contributions
and pension entitlement, are included on page 75 in the Remuneration Report and form part of the consolidated
financial statements. The remuneration paid to the Parent Company auditors in respect of the audit of the
Parent Company financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2020 is included in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

126

The above freehold and long leasehold properties have been valued as at 30 June 2020 on the
basis of open market value by Jones Long LaSalle and CBRE in accordance with the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors Appraisal and Investment Manual.

Fixtures, equipment and motor vehicles
Accumulated

Cost  depreciation

£000 £000
8alance at 30 June 2019 2127 1,255
Additions 31 -
Depreciation - 160
|8alance at 30 June 2020 i 2,158 1,415 ]
|Net book value at 30 June 2020 7431
Net book value at 30 June 2019 872
i Total tangible assets i
A1 30 June 2020 - 103,149 i
At30 June 2019 102,898
5. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

2020 2019

£000 £000
Shares in Group undertakings
At1July . 248,693 248,693
Additions - -
At30 June 248,693 248,693
Other investments
At1July » 2,510 2,125
Additions . 146 385
A30 June 2,656 } 2,510
Interest in joint ventures
At1July . 5,595 5,091
Loans advanced - 372
Share of (loss)/profit after tax (296) 132
At30 June i 5,299 5,595
Total flxed asset investments i 256,648 | 256,798

As permitted by Section 615 of the Companies Act 2006, where the relief afforded under Section 612
of the Companies Act 2006 applies, cost is the aggregate of the nominal value of shares issued plus the
fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the share capital of the subsidiary undertakings.

17
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(continued)

6. LISTED INVESTMENTS N
| 2020 | 2019
. £000 | £000
AU July [ 5871 3,530
increase i value of investments (2.363)! 2381
At30 June ' 3,508 { 5,87
Listed investments, all of which are fisted on a recognised stock exchange, are stated at market value
in the table above and have a historic cost of £889,130 {2019: £889,130).
7. DEBTORS
[ 2020 2018
£000 £000
Trade debtors [ 1,096 383
Less: provision for impairment of debtors (591) (12
an
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 92,961 95176
Other debtars end prepayments 1,139
i { 93,580 96,626
The Directors consider that the carrying amount of net trade receivables approximates their fair value.
The credit risk in respect of trade receivables is not concentrated as the Company has many tenants spread
across a number of industry sectors. tn addition, the tenants’ rents are payable in advance. The provision for
impairment of receivables has been calculated after taking into account the impact of COVID-19 on the economy
and the financial position of tenants.
Due to the nature of income, debts are generally recovered in advance and full provision has been made
for income recognised but not recovered during the year. As such, the credit risk relating to trade and other
receivables is considered to be low and any expected credit loss would be immaterial.
The expense recognised in relation to the impairment of debtors for the year ended 30 June 2020
was £519,000 (2019: £1,000).
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.
8. OTHER CREDITORS
I 2020 ; 2018
£000 £000
Trade payables 739 ; 36
Taxation and social security 313 -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 142,43 z 128,807
Other payables and accruals 3,870 3,676
i 147,065 132,519

Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company’s borrowings are at both floating and fixed rates of interest. The Company takes on exposure

to fluctuations in interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Interest costs may increase or decrease

as a result of such changes.

2020 2010
£000 £000
Non-current
Bank borrowings . 18,796 71,862
5.375% First morigage debenture stock 105,876 105,865
) 125,672 | 177727
Current e
Bank borrowings 63,648 20,337
Total borrowings { 189,320 198,064
The debenture, bank loans and overdrafts are secured by fixed charges on properties, valued
at £314,375,000 (2019: £336,825,000) owned by the Company and its subsidiary undertakings.
The debenture issue premium is net of issue costs and is amortised over the fife of the debt agreement.
The Company had undrawn committed floating rate bank facilities as set out below:
2020 ! 2019
£000 £000
Expiring in one year of less 7,500 ‘ -
Expiring in more than one year . 15,000 30,500
22,500 § 30,500
The availability of undrawn funds is subject to compliance with banking covenants.
Included within facilities expiring in one year or less are overdraft facilities subject to annual review.
There are net cash balances of £5,432,000 held by other Group companies which offset the Company’s
overdraft on consalidation. The total overdraft facility is based on the Gmups right of set off. Other facilities
are available to provide funding for future investments.
The Company finances its operations thraugh a combination of retained cash flows, dehen!ures and bank
borrowings. Procedures are in place to monitor interest rate risk as i pprop! by
Numerical financial instruments disclosures are set out overleaf.
All financial liabilities are denominated in Sterling.
129
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{continued)
f
9. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CONTINUED 11. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES
Interestrate risk . The Company’s wholly owned active subsidiary undertakings at 30 June 2020, registered in England or Scotland
The interest rate risk of the Company’s financial liabilities is as follows: and operating in the United Kingdom, are as follows:
| ‘As at 30 June 2020 1 Asat 30 June 2010 - Company number Activity
Weighted  Weighted Weighted  Weighted Hetd directly
Noc:,':,ael M’f.‘iz s:ﬁg: Nm::ﬁf,l “er,!.g; m;',‘:: {Ics Holdings Limited 2271353 - Property investmem_]
£000 % Years £000 Ld Years Dundonald Property Investments Limited 3672365 Property investment
Debenture stock 106,001 5375 n| 106,001 5375 2 [Buckley Propertis (Leeds) Limited 647309 Property investment |
Bank floating rate liabilities 83,822 178 1 92,837 2.41 3 Citipark ple 8837214 Car;,k operations
| 18982 I 108.8% fes emem (Werrion) Limited 8696141+~ Property ]
Floating rate financial liabilities bear interest at rates for term loans based on LIBOR plus an average margin TCS (Residential Conversions) Limited 3946495 Property investment
of 1.65% and for the overdraft of 2.00% above base rate. {rcs propeny Limited* - - 5281225 Management company |
Financial instruments held for trading purposes TCS Trustees Limited* 3112923  Trustee for employee benefit pians
It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Company’s policy not to trade in financial instruments. ’ [Eiﬂf’"'"es Limited* 2831154 PropEr_w investment ]
Foreign currency exposure TCS (Whitehall Plaza) Limited 9922032 Property investment
The Group has no exposure to foreign currency as it has no overseas operations and all sales and purchases hCS(S Cheapside) Limited 10139127 Property investment ]
are made in Sterling. TCS (Tariff Strest) Limited 09929851 Property investment
Effective interest rates 1CS Mill) Limited N 10291290 - Prop_ir_ly investment ]
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows: TCS (Merrion Hotel) Limited 10380988 Hote! operator
T3 2010, [Bay sentry Solutions Limited 12133595 - Car park operations |
Bank overdraft facility 21% 2.75% Apperley Bridge Limited 6879596 Dormant
Bank barrowings 178% 241% [7C5 Park Row Limited 8077103 Dormant
Debenture loan . 5.375% 5.375% Citipark UK Limited 8837203 Dormant
{TCS (Merrion House JVC02) Limited 8561356 Dormant }
Fair value: of clurrent borrov{:ngs (o vol ¢ fimancia) s andl b‘ ties hove b cuated , Tassgander Limited 4077297 Dormant
by iscounting expecied fturs cash flos o revaing meres s an  3ping foer v exenange s, (Bctogei et lied 2740190 Dorman]
The carrying amounts of short-term borrowings approximate to book value. Emett Exhibitions Limited 1544918 Dormant
| . Milngavie East Limited SC464805 . Dormant |
Fair value of non-current borrowings
No 29 Management Co (Eastgate) Limited 3873683 Dormant
T 20 1 2010 {7 Herbert Kaye’s Estates Limited Y 0226678 ) Dormant |
Book value Fairvalue | Book value Fair value TCS (Bolton) Limited 4104688 Dormant
£000 £000 £000 £000 {7cs piccadilly Limited 4317396 Dormant |
Debenture stock i 105876 123,578 l 105865 658 1CS Whitehal Riverside Limited 4329860 Dormant
Long-term bank borrowings 80,122 80,122 71,862 7,862 {75 Rothdale 1 Limited 7712768 Dormant]
TCS (Rochdale Management) Limited m2123 Dormant
:&(ﬁ::}::: UP SHARE CAPITAL [rcs Car parks Limited * 4847697 ] Dormant |
164,879,000 (2019: 164,879,000) Ordinary Shares of 25p each. TCS Eastgate Limited 6554827 Dormant
Issued and fully paid up {TCS Finance Limited : 3108777 Dormant }
Number TCS Trading Limited 3060862 Dormant
ofshares  Nominal yalue {The Merrion Centre Limited 0814845 Dormant |
230 Jomo 2018 and 30 Jume 2020 53162 13,290 Town Centre Enterprises Limited 0221003 Dormant
[Town Centre Securities (Developments) Limited 3946549 Dormant |
The Company has only one type of Ordinary Share class in issue. All shares have equal entitlement Town Centre Securities (Manchester) Limited 0129485 Dormant

to voting rights and dividend distributions.
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(continued)

11. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES CONTINUED

Company number Activity
{Jown Centre Securities (Scotland) Limited - 0748937 . . Dormant §
Town Centre Services Limited 2285764 Dormant
fics otc B 4329979 s Dormant |
TCS {EX TCCP) plc 3385312 Dormant
[Held indirectly i | LR ]
TCS Freehold Investments Limited 3684812 Property investment
[1Cs Ceasehold Limited - - 3684827 Property investment |
Town Centre Car Parks Limited 5494592 Car park operations
[recp (Clarence bock) Limited_ . 6219875 Car park operations ]
TCS (Milngavie) Limited 6391627 Property investment
{TCS (Merrion House JVCOY) Limited 8561354 ; Property investment |
Dundonald (Cumbernauld) Limited 5983938 Dormant
TCS (Bothwell Street) Limited - : 4240551 »_Dormant |
Dundanald Property Developments Limited 6430444 Dormant
Riverside (Leeds) Limited 4569350 Dormant |
TCS (Greenhithe) Limited 4413344 Dormant
{7CS (steworth) Limited - 4413343 - Dormant §
TCS (Parliament Street 1) Limited 4768830 Dormant
{1CS (Partiament Street 2) Limited . 4768845 - - Dormant
TCS Energy Limited 441044 Dormant
{7CS (Wil Hil) Limited 4413341 Dormant |
TCS (Residential) Limited 4249007 Dormant
17CS Solar Limited : 5113915 g Dormant §

* The subsidiaries marked with an asterisk above are exempt from preparing audited statutory accounts under section 479a
of the Companies Act 2006.

The registered office of all subsidiaries is at the following address:

Town Centre House
The Merrion Centre
Leeds

LS2 BLY

The Company's directly owned joint ventures, which are all registered in England and operate in the
United Kingdom, are as follows:

- Praportion of
ardinary shares
held
% Activity
Belgravia Living Group Limited 50 Property Investment
Bay Sentry Limited 50 Software Development
The registered offices of joint ventures are as follows:
Belgravia Living Group Limited Bay Sentry Limited
Middleton House Town Centre House
Westland Road The Merrion Centre
Leeds Leeds
LS115UH Ls2 8Ly
The Company also has an indirect 50% interest in Merrion House LLP, which has the same registered office
as the Company. .
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 2020 Annual General
Meeting (the “Meeting"} of Town Centre Securities Plc

{the “Company”) will be held virtually and streamed to all
sharehalders from Town Centre House, The Merrion Centre
on Tuesday, 17 November 2020 at 10:00am. To consider and
if thought fit pass the Resolutions below. Resolutions 1to

15 will be proposed as ordinary resolutions. For an ordinary
resolution to be passed, a simple majority of the votes cast

Ordinary resolutions
Resolution 1: Annual Financial Statements
and Directors’ Report

1. Torecewve the Company’s annual financial statements
(together with the Directors’ Report and the Auditors’
Report) for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

2:Dil ion Report

must vote in favour of the I 16 to 19 will
be as special For a special i

to be passed, at least 75% of the votes cast must vote in
favour of the resolution.

Due to ongoing uncertainties caused by the COVID-19
outbreak, we have put in place measures to allow
shareholders to view the AGM proceedings remotely.
Shareholders will not be able to attend the AGM in person
this year. Instead, are strongly d
to join the AGM electronically and join the audio webcast.

»

. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report set out
on pages 72-79 of the Company’s 2020 Annual Report
for the year ended 30 June 2020 (excluding the Directors’
Remuneration Policy included in the report).

3:Di 3 ion Policy

w

. To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy,
which can be found on pages 73-74.

4:Final Dividend

Information on how to join the Meeting can
be found under the explanatory notes.

Wi all to vote via proxy in
advance of the AGM as you will not be able to vote on the
day of the Meeting. Your voteisimpartant, and you are

touseit. hould vote by way
of proxy in advance of the Meeting. To ensure your vote
is counted, you should appoint the ‘Chair of the Meeting’
as your proxy. Whilst shareholders will be able to ask
questions of the Board via the webcast if you cannot
attend or would like to submit questions in advance of
the Meeting please send these to AGM@tcs-plc.co.uk
by Friday 13th November 2020.

Shareholders should refer to our website tcs-ple.co.uk/

i for any notifications relating to

required for the AGM arrangements in light of the recent
COVID-19 outbreak.

This noticei i ions’)
to be discussed at the AGM. You are requested to vote
i using the link i com, or

requestand submit a Form of Proxy as soon as possible
whether you intend to attend the AGM electronically or not.
In any event, the Proxy instruction should reach

the Company’s Registrar by 10.00am on Friday,

13th November 2020.

Completion of a Form of Proxy will not preclude you
from attending the AGM electronically by following the
joining instructions set out later in this Notice, however
you must vote in advance of the Meeting for your vote
to be counted.

IS

. To declare a final cash dividend recommended
by the Board for the year ended 30 June 2020
of 1.75 pence per Ordinary Share, to be paid on
5 January 2021, to shareholders whose names.
appear on the register at close of business on
on 4 December 2020.

Resolutions 5 to 11: Re-election of Directors

5. To re-elect Michael Ziff as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company.

6. To re-elect lan Marcus as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company.

7. Tore-elect Paul Huberman as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company.

8. Tore-elect Jeremy Collins as a Non-Executive Director
of the Company.

9. Tore-elect Edward Ziff as an Executive Director

of the Company.

10. To re-elect Benjamin Ziff as an Executive Director
of the Company.

1. To re-elect Mark Dilley as an Executive Director
of the Company.

Resolution 12: Reappointment of Auditors.

12. To reappoint BDO LLP as the auditors of the Company,
to hold office from the conclusion of this Meeting
until the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which annual financial statements are laid before the
Company’s shareholders.

Resolution 13: Remuneration of Auditors

13. To authorise the Directors to determine the
remuneration of the Company’s auditors.

14: ity to Make Politi

14. To autharise, in accordance with Part 14 of the UK
Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), the Company and all
companies that are subsidiaries of the Company at the
date on which this resolution is passed, or at any time
when this resolution has effect to:

(@) make political donations to political parties
and/or independent election candidates;

(b} make political donations to political organisations
other than political parties; and

(c)

incur political expenditure,

(as such terms are defined in the Act), up to an aggregate
amount of £50,000, and the amount authorised under

each of paragraphs (a) to (c) above shall also be limited

to such amount, during the period beginning on the date

of the passing of this resolution and ending at the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to be
hetd in 2021. Upon the passing of this resolution, all existing

(i) to Ordinary Shareholders in proportion
(as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings; and

(i) to holders of other equity securities
as required by the rights of those securities
or as the Board otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any limits or restrictions.
and make any arrangements which it considers necessary,
expedient or appropriate to deal with treasury shares,
fractional entittements, record dates, legal, regulatory

or practical problems in, or under the laws of, any territory
or any other matter,

provided that this authority shall expire at the conclusion of
the next Annual Genera! Meeting of the Company, to be held
in 2021, or 17 February 2022, whichever is earlier, save that
the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or enter
into an agreement which would or might require shares to be
allotted, or rights to subscribe for or to convert securities into
shares to be granted, after such expiry; and the Board may
allot shares or grant such rights in pursuance of such an offer
or agreement as if the authority conferred hereby had not
expired.

Special resolutions

authorisations and approvals relating to political
or expenditure under Part 14 of the Act shall be revoked
without prejudice to any donation made, or expenditure
incurred, prior to the passing of this resolution pursuant
to such authorisation or approval. For the purpose of this
resolution, the terms ‘political donation’, ‘political parties’,
“i it election ", ‘political isation”
and ‘political expenditure’ shall have the meanings given
by sections 363 to 365 of the Act.

Resolution 15: Authority to Allot Ordinary Shares

15. To generally and unconditionally authorise the Board,
in substitution for any existing authority, but without
prejudice ta the exercise of any such authority prior
to the date of the passing of this resolution, pursuant
to and in accordance with section 551 of the Act to
exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares
in the Company or grant rights to subscribe for or to
convert any security into shares in the Company:

(@) up toan aggregate nominal amount of
£4,430,162.50 (representing 17,720,650 Ordinary
Shares) (such amount to be reduced by any
allotments or grants made under paragraph {b)
below in excess of such sum); and

{b)

comprising equity securities {as defined in the Act)
up to a nominal amount of £8,860,325 (representing
35,441,300 Ordinary Shares) (such amount to be
reduced by any allotments or grants made under
paragraph (a) above) in connection with an offer

by way of a rights issue:

16: Disapply P ion Rights

16. That, if resolution 15 above is passed, the Board be given
power to allot equity securities (as defined in the Act) for
cash under the authority given by that resolution and/or
to sell Ordinary Shares held by the Company as treasury
shares for cash as if section 561 of the Act did not apply
10 any such allotment or sale, such power to be limited:

(a) tothe allotment of equity securities and sale
of treasury shares in connection with an offer of,
or invitation to apply for, equity securities (but in
the case of the authority granted under paragraph
(b) of resolution 15, by way of a rights issue only):

(i) to Ordinary Shareholders in proportion
(as nearly as may be practicable) to their
existing holdings; and

(ii} to holders of other equity securities,
as required by the rights of those securities,
or as the Board otherwise considers necessary,

and so that the Board may impose any limits or
ictions and make any which

it considers necessary or appropriate to deal with

treasury shares, fractional entitlements, record

dates, legal, regulatory or practical problems in,

or under the laws of, any territory or any other

matter; and
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(b)

in the case of the authority granted under
paragraph () of resolution 16 and/or in the case
of any sale of treasury shares, to the allotment
of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
(otherwise than under paragraph (a) above)

up to a nominal amount of £664,524.25,

such power to apply until the end of the next

Annual General Meeting to be held in 2021, or

17 February 2022, whichever is earlier, but, in each
case, during this period the Company may make offers
and enter into agreements, which would, or might,
require equity securities to be allotted (and treasury
shares to be sold) after the power ends and the Board
ay allot equity securities (and sell treasury shares)
under any such offer or agreement as if the power

had not ended.

Resolution 17: Additional Authority to Disapply
Pre-emption Rights for Purposes of Acquisitions
or Capital Investments

17. That, if resolution 15 above is passed, the Board be
given the power, in addition to any power granted under
resolution 16 above, to allot equity securities (as defined
in the Act) for cash under the authority granted under
paragraph (a) of resolution 15 and/or to sell Ordinary
Shares held by the Company as treasury shares for cash
as if section 561 of the Act did not apply to any such
allotment or sale, such power to be:

(a) limited to the allotment of equity securities
or sale of treasury shares up to a nominal amount
of £664,524.25; and

(b)

which the Board determines to be an acquisition
or other capital investment of a kind contemplated
by the of Principles on Di i
Pre-Emption Rights most recently published by
the Pre-Emption Group prior to the date of this
notice, or far the purposes of refinancing such

a transaction within six months of it taking place,

such power to apply until the end of the next Annua!
General Meeting to be held in 2021, or 17 February
2022, whichever is earlier, but, in each case, during
this period the Company may make offers and enter
into agreements, which would, or might, require equity
securities to be ailotted (and treasury shares to be sotd)
after the power ends and the Board may allot equity
securities (and sell treasury shares) under any such
offer or agreement as if the power had not ended.

used only for the purposes of financing a transaction |

18: ity to p s
ownshares

18. That the Company be generally and unconditionally
authorised for the purpose of Section 701 of the Act
to make market purchases (within the meaning of Section
693(4) of the Act) of Ordinary Shares of £0.25 each
in the capital of the Company, provided that:

(a) the maximum number of Ordinary Shares which
may be purchased is 7,974,292;

(b) the minimum price, exclusive of any expenses,
which may be paid for each Ordinary Share is £0.25;

(¢) the maximum price, exclusive of any expenses,
which may be paid for each Ordinary Share is
an amount equal to the higher of:

() 105% of the average mid-market value of an
Ordinary Share, as derived from the London
Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five
business days prior to the day on which the
purchase is made; and

{i) an amount equal to the higher of the price
of the last independent trade of an Ordinary
Share and the highest current independent
bid for an Ordinary Share.

(d;

this authority shall expire on the date of the next
Annual General Meeting of the Company or on

17 February 2022, whichever is the earlier, but, in
each case, provided that the Company may, before
such expiry, enter into a contract or contracts to
purchase shares which will or may be executed
wholly or partly after the expiry of such authority
and the Company may make a purchase of shares
under such contract or contracts as if the authority
had not expired.

Resolution 19: Notice of General Meetings, other than
Annual General Meetings

19. That a general meeting (other than an Annual General
Meeting) of the Company may be called on not less than
14 clear days’ notice.

By order of the Board.

Link Company Matters Limited
Company Secretary
22 September 2020

Registered Office:
Town Centre House,
The Merrion Centre,
Leeds LS2 8LY

Registered in England and Wales No. 00623364

Explanatory notes

Ordinary resolutions
Resolution 1: To receive the Annual Financial Statements
and Directors’ Report

Under the Company’s Act 2006, the Directors are required
1o present the Strategic Report, Directors’ Report, Auditor’s
Report and annual financial statements of the Company to
the Meeting. These are contained in the Company’s 2020
Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended
30 June 2020 (the ‘Annual Report'), which was circulated at
the time of this Notice and is also available on the Company's
website at tcs-plc.co.uk.

2: Dis ion Report
the Policy) for the
year ended 30 June 2020.

Under the Companies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), the Directors
must prepare an Annual Report detailing the remuneration
of the Directors and a statement by the chairman of

the Remuneration Committee (together, the 'Directors’
Remuneration Report’}). The Act aso requires that a
resolution be put to shareholders each year for their approval
of that report. The Directors’ Remuneration Report can be
found on pages 72-79 of the Annual Report. Resolution 2

is an advisory vote only and the Directors’ entitlement to
remuneration is not conditional on it.

ion 3: Di ion Policy

The Act also requires that a resoluticn be put to
shareholders, at intervals of not more than three years,

to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Policy, which can
be found on pages 73-74 of the Annual Report. This is a
binding policy and, after it takes effect, the Directors will
not be entitled to remuneration unless that payment is
consistent with the approved policy or has been approved
by a resolution of the shareholders of the Company. Due
to the current economic climate and financial uncertainty,
the Company feels that it would be unwise to amend the
remuneration policy this year and therefore proposes an
unchanged policy. However, once the Company is able

to make more reliable financial predictions, it will propose
arevised policy at the 2021 Annual General Meeting.

If Resolution 3 is approved, the policy will take effect

from the date of the AGM.

Resolution 4: Final Dividend

The Board proposes a final dividend of 1.75 pence per
share in respect of the year ended 30 June 2020.

If approved, the recommended final dividend will be paid
on 5 January 2021 to all Ordinary Shareholders who are
on the register of members on 4 December 2020.

5 to 11: Re-election of Di

The Board has agreed a policy whereby all Directors will
seek annual re-election at the AGM, in with
the FRC Code of Corporate Governance.

The Board believes that each Director seeking re-election
continues to have the requisite skills and experience, and

the y i to i
effectively to the Board. In addition, the Board confirms that
each Non-Executive Director is able to commit sufficient time
to meet their Board responsibilities. The biographical details
of the Directars seeking re-election at the Meeting are set
out on pages 58-59 of the Annual Report.

None of the Non-Executive Directors seeking re-election

at the Meeting has any existing or previous relationship,
transaction or arrangement with the Company, nor with

any controlling shareholder of the Company or any associate
of a controlling shareholder of the Company, within the
meaning of Listing Rule 13.8.17R(1). In considering the
independence of the Non-Executive Directors, the Board
has taken into account guidance from the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

Resolutions 6, 7 and 8 relate to the re-election of lan Marcus,
Paul Huberman and Jeremy Collins who are Non-Executive
Directors for the purposes of the UK Corporate Governance

Code. These { are as ordinary

and can be voted on by all shareholders of the Company.
However, in addition to this, the votes cast by independent
sharehalders will be counted separately in accordance with
the UKLA Listing Rules.

Resolution 12: Reappointment of Auditor

At each general meeting at which the Company’s annual
financial statements are presented to its members, the
Company is required to appoint an auditor ta serve until
the next such meeting. The Board, on the recommendation
of the Audit C: i the i

of BDO LLP as auditors of the Company.

Resolution 13: Remuneration of Auditor

The remuneration of the Company’s auditor must be
fixed by the Company in a general meeting or in such
manner as the Company may determine in a general
meeting. This resolution gives authority to the Directors
to approve the terms of engagement and determine the
remuneration of the Company’s auditors.
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14: ity to make political

Under the Act, political donations to any palitical parties,

election political
other than political parties, or the incurring of political
it are ibited unless ised by

shareholders in advance.

As the legislation is capable of wide interpretation, the terms

“political donation’, a ‘political party, a ‘political organisation”

or ‘political expenditure’ are not easy to define. For example,

sponsorship, subscriptions, payment of expenses, paid leave

for employees fulfilling public duties, and suppart for bodies
ing the business ity in policy review

or reform, may fall within the scope of these matters.

Therefore, notwithstanding that the Company has not

made a political donation in the past, and has no intention,
either now or in the future, of making any political donation
or incurring any political expenditure, the Board has decided
to propose Resolution 15 to avoid running the risk of the
Company or its subsidiaries inadvertently breaching the

Act through the undertaking of routine activities.

As permitted under the Act, this resolution also covers any
palitical donations made ar political expenditure incurred
by any subsidiaries of the Company. This resolution caps the
amount of all forms of political donations and expenditure
that the company and its subsidiaries would be permitted
to make at an aggregate of £50,000.

Resolution 15: Authority to Allot Ordinary Shares

The purpose of this resolution is to give the Directors
authority to allot shares in place of the existing authority
approved at the Annual General Meeting of the Company
held on 25 November 2019, which expires at the end

of the 2020 Annual General Meeting.

The authority in paragraph (a) of the resolution will allow the
Directors to allot new shares and grant rights to subscribe
for, or convert other securities into, shares up to a nominal
value of £4,430,162.50 {representing 17,720,650 Ordinary
Shares), which is equivalent to approximately one third of
the total issued Ordinary Share capital of the Company as
at 22 September 2020, which is the latest practicable date
prior to publication of this Notice.

In accordance with institutional guidelines issued by the
iation, (b) of lution 15

will allow Directors to allot, including the Ordinary Shares

referred to in paragraph (a) of Resolution 15, further

of the Company’s Ordinary Shares in connection with

a pre-emptive offer by way of a rights issue to Ordinary

Shareholders up to a maximum nominal amount of

£8,860,325, representing approximately two thirds (66.67%)

of the Company’s existing issued Ordinary Share capita!

and calculated as at 22 September 2020 (being the latest

icable date prior to ication of this

The Company does not currently hold any shares in treasury.

The Board believes it is in the best interests of the
Company to have these authorities so that the Board
can allot securities at short notice and without the need
to hold a general meeting if the need arises.

The authorities sought in {a)and (b) of
15 are without prejudice to previous allotments made under
such existing authorities.

The authorities will only be valid until the conclusion
of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held in 2021 or 17 February 2022, whichever is earlier.

Special resolutions
ion 16: ity to Dis-apply Pi ption Rights

At the Annual General Meeting held on 25 November

2019, the Directors were given the authority to issue equity
securities of the Company and sell treasury shares in
exchange for cash until the 2020 Annual General Meeting.
Resolution 16 renews this authority allowing Directors to
issue equity securities and to sell treasury shares for cash

an a non-pre-emptive basis: (i) to Ordinary Shareholders in
proportion to their existing shareholdings and to holders

of other equity securities as required by the rights of those
securities, or as the Directors consider necessary, and to

deal with, among other things, treasury shares, fractional
entitlements and egal and practical problems in any territory,
for example, in the case of a rights issue or other similar share
issue; and (ii) otherwise, up 1o an aggregate nominal amount
of £664,524.25 (representing 2,658,097 Ordinary Shares).
This number represents approximately 5% of the issued share
capital as at 22 2020, the latest i date
prior to publication of this Notice.

The Directors believe that this resolution will assist them
in taking advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

The Company does not currently hold any shares in treasury.

These authorities are without prejudice to allotments made
under previous authorities and will only be valid until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to be held
in 2021 or 17 February 2022, whichever is earlier.

Resolution 17: Additional Authority to Disapply Pre-emption

Rights for f Capital
On 5 May 2016, the Pre-Emption Group published a
itoring report on the i ion of its 2015
of Principles for Di fing Pt ption Rights

and a recommended template resolution for disapplying
pre-emption rights. The template recommends companies
request authority to disapply pre-emption rights in respect
of the additional 5% to be used when the Board considers the
use to be for an acquisition or specified capital investment

in with the 2015 of Principles as

a separate resolution to the disapplication to issue shares

on an unrestricted basis.

Resolutian 17 seeks this separate authority. Where the
authority granted under resolution 17 is used, the Company
will disclose this in the announcement regarding the

issue, the circumstances that have led to its use and the
consultation process undertaken.

In accordance with the section of the Statement of Principles

dis lative usage of ities within a rolling
three-year period, the Directors also confirm their intention
that (except in relation to an issue pursuant to Resolution 17
in respect of the additional 5% referred to above) no more
than 7.5% of the issued Ordinary Share capital will be issued
far cash on a non-pre-emptive basis during any rolling three-
year period, without prior itation with

Meeting shareholders autharised the calling of general
meetings (other than an Annual General Meeting) on not
less than 14 clear days’ notice, and it is proposed that this
authority be renewed.

Resolutions and Important Notes

The formal notice convening the Meeting (‘the Notice’)

is set out on pages 134-142 of this document and includes
explanatory notes to each of the resolutions to be proposed
at the Meeting. There will be an opportunity for you to raise
questions at the Meeting about the resolutions set out in the
Notice and about the business of the Company.

The Directors believe that this resolution will assist them
in taking advantage of business opportunities as they arise.

These authorities are without prejudice to allotments made
under previous authorities and will only be valid until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to be held
in 2021, or 17 February 2022, whichever is earlier.

18: ity to 'S
Own shares

Resolution 18 is a special resolution that will grant the
Company authority to make market purchases of up to
7,974,292 Ordinary Shares, representing 15% of the Ordinary
Shares in issue as at the date of the Notice.

The Directors have no present intention to exercise the
authority granted by this resolution, but the authority
provides the flexibility to allow them to do so in future.

The Directors would not exercise the authority unless they
believed that the expected effect would promote the
success of the Company for the benefit of its shareholders
as a whole. Any shares bought back will either be cancelled
or placed into treasury at the determination of the Directors.

The maximum price which may be paid for each Ordinary
Share must not be more than the higher of (i) 105% above
the average of the mid-market values of the Ordinary Shares
for the five business days before the purchase is made or

(ii} the higher of the price of the last it trade and

Voting

You may attend the AGM online using your smartphone,
tablet or computer. You will be able to view and listen
to a live webcast of the Meeting and ask the Directors
questions, however as explained above you will not be
able to vote at the event.

To join the Meeting electronically, you will need to visit:
tes-ple.co.uk/investors/AGM

To log in to the Meeting, you must register in advance
with your unique login ID (which is your full 11 digit IVC
number including any zeros) and your PiN code (which
is the last 4 digits of your IVC). You will be able to access
the tink 15 minutes before the start of the Meeting.

If you are not in receipt of your IVC this can be found on

a share certificate or dividend tax voucher or alternatively
yOu ¢an sign in to www.signalshares.com to obtain your
IVC code. If however you cannot find your IVC and don't
have access to www.signalshares.com then please contact
the Company’s registrar, Link Market Services Limited,

The Registry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU
on telephone number 0371 277 1020 before 16th November
2020 to obtain your IVC in order to log into the Meeting,
lines are open 9.00 a.m. to 5.30 p.m. GMT excluding
non-workings days.

Any shareholder attending the Meeting is eligible to ask

the highest current independent bid for the Ordinary Shares.
The minimum price which may be paid for each ordinary
share is £0.25.

This authority shall expire at the Annual General Meeting
to be held in 2021 or on 17 February 2022, whichever is the
earlier, when a resolution to renew the authority will

be proposed.

Resolution 18: Notice of general meetings other than
Annual General Meetings

Under the Act, the notice period required for all general
meetings of the Company is 21 clear days. Annual General
Meetings will always be held on at least 21 clear days’ notice
but shareholders can approve a shorter notice period

for other general meetings. At last year's Annual General

If you wish to ask questions at the Meeting,
please do so by entering your question in the Q&A box in
the webcast player during the event. Shareholders can also
submit questions to the Board in advance of the AGM by
writing to the Group Company Secretary at Town Centre
House or by e-mailing the Company at AGM@tcs-plc.co.uk.

For general enquiries on how to join the AGM electronically
please contact Link registrars on telephone number
03712771020 or write to Link Asset Services, The Registry,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4TU.

Further Information

Further information relating to the Company can be found
on the Company's website tcs-plc.co.uk.
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Recommendation

The Board considers that Resolutions 1 to 19 are in the
best interests of the Company and its shareholders as

a whole and recommends that you vote in favour of such
resolutions, as the Directors intend to do in respect of
their own beneficial holdings.

important notes

The following notes explain your general rights as

a shareholder and your right to attend and vote at this
Annual General Meeting or to appoint someone else
to vote on your behalf.

1. The right to vote at the Meeting is determined by

reference to the register of members. Only those
ldi i in the register of

of the Company as at close of business on Friday,
13th Novemnber 2020 (or, in the event that the Meeting
is adjourned, in the register of members at close of
business on the date which is two days before the date
of any adjourned meeting) shall be entitled to attend
or vote at the Meeting in respect of the number of
shares registered in their name at that time. Changes
to entries in the register of members after that time
shall be disregarded in determining the rights of any
person to attend or vote (and the number of votes
they may cast) at the Meeting.

N

. In order to gain admittance to the Meeting, members will
be required to sign up, in advance, using their IVC number
at the following tink: tcs-ple.co.uk/investors/AGM.

w

. A shareholder is entitled to appoint one or more persons
as proxies to exercise all or any of his or her rights to
attend, speak and vote at the Meeting. A proxy need
not be a shareholder of the Company. A shareholder may
appoint more than one proxy in relation to the Meeting
provided that each proxy is appointed to exercise the
rights attached to a different share or shares held by
him/her. To appoint more than one proxy, you will need
to complete a separate Form of Proxy in relation to each
appointment. Additional proxy forms may be obtained
by contacting the Company’s registrar at Link Asset
Services, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham,

Kent BR3 4TU or you may photocopy the proxy form.
You will need to state clearly on each proxy form the
number of shares in relation to which the proxy is
appointed. A failure to specify the number of shares
each proxy appointment relates to or specifying a
number which when taken together with the number
of shares set out in the other proxy appointments is in
excess of the number of shares held by the shareholder
may result in the proxy appointment being invalid.
You can only appoint a proxy using the procedures
set out in these notes and the notes to the proxy form.

The appointment of a proxy will not preclude a member
from attending and voting in person at the Meeting if he
or she so wishes.

4. You can vote either:
- by logging on to www.signalshares.com where full
instructions can be found;

- by requesting a hard copy form of proxy directly from

the registrar, Link Asset Services, on Tel: 0371 664 0300.

Calls are charged at the standard geographic rate and
will vary by provider. Calls outside the United Kingdom
will be charged at the applicable internationat rate. Lines
are open between 09:00 and 17:30, Monday to Friday
excluding public holidays in England and Wales; or

- in the case of CREST members, by utilising the
CREST electronic proxy appointment service in
accordance with the procedures set out below.

For an electronic proxy appointment to be valid,

the appointment must be received by the Company’s
registrar by no later than 10.00am on Friday t3th
November 2020 (or in the event that the Meeting

is adjourned, no later than 48 hours (excluding any
part of a day that is not a working day) before the
time of any adjourned meeting).

For a hard copy form of proxy to be valid, it must
be completed, signed and sent to the offices of
the Company’s registrars, Link Asset Services, PXS,
34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU,
50 as to arrive no later than 10.00am on Friday 13th
November 2020 (or, in the event that the Meeting
is adjourned, no later than 48 hours (excluding any
part of a day that is not 8 working day) before the
time of any adjourned meeting).

Any electronic communication sent by a member

to the Company or the Company'’s registrar which is
found to contain a virus will not be accepted by the
Company but every effort will be made by the Company
to inform said member of the rejected communication.

o

. If you return more than one proxy appointment,
either by paper or electronic communication, the
appointment received last by the registrar before the
latest time for the receipt of proxies will take precedence.
You are advised to read the terms and conditions of use
carefully. Electronic communication facilities are open
to all shareholders and those who use them will not
be disadvantaged.

3

. The return of a comptleted proxy form, electronic
filing or any CREST Proxy Instructions will not prevent
a shareholder from attending the Meeting and voting
in person if he/she wishes to do so.

=]

7. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or
proxies through the CREST electronic proxy appointment
service may do so for the Meeting (and any adjournment
of the Meeting) by using the procedures described in
the CREST manual (available from euroclear.com/site/
public/EU)). CREST Personal Members or other CREST
sponsared members, and those CREST members who
have appointed a service provider(s), should refer
to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s),
who will be able to take the appropriate action on
their behalf.

. |n order for a proxy appointment or instruction made
by means of CREST to be valid, the appropriate CREST
message (a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly
authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK &
Ireland Limited's specifications, and must contain the
information required for such instructions, as described
in the CREST manual. The message must be transmitted
50 as to be received by the issuer’s agent (ID RA10) by
10:00 on 16 November 2020. For this purpose, the time
of receipt will be taken to mean the time (as determined
by the timestamp applied to the message by the CREST
Application Host) from which the issuer’s agent is able to
retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescribed by CREST. After this time any change of
instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should
be communicated to the appointee through other means.

©

. CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST
sponsors, or voting service providers should note that
Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not make available
special procedures in CREST for any particular message.
Normal system timings and limitations will, therefore,
apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions.
It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned
to take (or, if the CREST member is a CREST personal
member, or sponsored member, or has appointed a
voting service pravider(s), to procure that his CREST
sponsor ar voling service provider(s) take(s)) such
action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message
is transmitted by means of the CREST system by any
particular time. In this connection, CREST members and,
where applicable, their CREST sponsars or voting system
providers are referred, in particular, to those sections
of the CREST Manual concerning practical limitations
of the CREST system and timings. The Company
may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy tnstruction in the
circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

. A shareholder or shareho!ders having a right to vote
at the Meeting and holding at teast 5 per cent of the
total voting rights of the Company (see Note 12 below),
or at least 100 shareholders having a right to vote at the
Meeting and holding, on average, at least £100 of paid
share capital, may require the Company to publish on
its website a statement setting out any matter that such
shareholder(s) propose to raise at the Meeting relating

to either the audit of the Company's accounts (including
the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) that
are to be laid before the Meeting or any circumstances
connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to
hold office since the last Annual General Meeting of the
Company in accordance with Section 527 of the Act.

Any such request must:

10.1 identify the statement to which it relates, by either
setting out the statement in full or, if supporting a
d by another clearly
identifying the statement which is being supported;

10.2 comply with the requirements set outin
Note 11 below; and

10.3 be received by the Company at least one
week before the Meeting.

Where the Company is required to publish such
a statement on its website:

10.4 it may not require the shareholder{s) making
the request to pay any expenses incurred by
the Company in complying with the request;

10.5 it must forward the statement to the Company’s
auditors no later than the time when it makes
the statement available on the website; and

10.6 the statement may be dealt with as part
of the business of the Meeting.

. Any request by a shareholder or shareholders
0 require the Company to publish audit concerns
as set out in Note 10 above:

n

may be made either:

1114 in hard copy. by sending it to the Company
Secretary, Town Centre House, The Merrion
Centre, Leeds LS2 BLY; or

1.1.2 in electronic form, by sending it to O113
234 0442, marked for the attention of the
Company Secretary, or to info@tcs-ple.co.uk
(please state ‘TCS: AGM' in the subject line
of the email);

o

1.2 must state the full name(s) and address(es)

of the shareholder(s); and

.

w

(where the request is made in hard copy from
or by fax) must be signed by the shareholder(s).

s

. As at 22 September 2020 (being the last practicable
date prior to the publication of this notice) the
Company’s issued share capital consists of 53,161,950
Ordinary Shares of 25p each, carrying one vote each.
The Company does not hold any Ordinary Shares
in treasury. Therefore, the total voting rights in the
Company as at 22 September 2020 are 53,161,950.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

continued

13. Sharehotders have the right to ask questions at

B

&

the Meeting relating to the business being dealt
with at the Meeting in accardance with Section 319A
of the Act. The Company must answer any such
questions unless:

1311 to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation for the Meeting or would involve
the disclosure of confidential information;

13.2 the answer has already been given on a website
in the form of an answer to a question; or

13.3 itis undesirable in the interests of the Company
or the good order of the Meeting that the question
be answered.

. Where a copy of this notice is being received by a

person who has been nominated to enjoy information
rights under Section 146 of the Act (‘Nominee):

14.1 the Nominee may have a right under an agreement
between the Nominee and the shareholder by
whom he/she was appointed, to be appointed,
or to have someone else appointed, as a proxy
for the Meeting: or

14.2 if the Nominee does not have any such right or
does not wish to exercise such right, the Nominee
may have a right under any such agreement to give
instructions to the shareholder as to the exercise
of voting rights.

The statement of the rights of shareholders in
relation to the appointment of proxies in Notes 3
to 5 above does not apply to a Nominee. The rights.
d ibed in such note only be ised

by shareholders of the Company.

. Biographical details of all those Directors who are

offering t ves for i or i
at the Meeting are set out on pages 58-59 of the
Annual Report and Accounts. .

. A shareholder which is 2 corporation may authorise

one or more persons to act as its representative(s)

at the Meeting. Each such representative may exercise
(on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as

the corporation could exercise if it were an individual
shareholder, provided that (where there is more than
one representative and the vote is otherwise than on

a show of hands) they do not do so in relation to the
same shares.

The following documents will be available for inspection
during normal business hours at the registered office
of the Company from the date of this notice until the
time of the Meeting:

171 copies of the service contracts of the Executive
Directors; and

17.2 copies of the letters of appointment of the

18. The information required by Section 311A of the Act to
be published in advance of the Meeting, which includes
the matters set out in this notice and information relating
1o the voting rights of shareholders is available at

Investor information

Registrar Dividends

All general enquiries concerning shareholdings in Interim dividend: 3.25p per share paid on 26 June 2020
Town Centre ities PLC should be to: to Iders on the register on 29 May 2020.

Link Asset Services Final dividend: 1.75p per share to be paid on 5 January 2021
The Registry to shareholders on the register on 4 December 2020.

34 Beckenham Road

Beckenham Payment of dividends

Kent BR3 4TU Shareholders whose dividends are not currently paid

Telephone: +44 (0) 371 664 0300

(Calls arc charged at ic rato and will vary by provider.
Calls outsido the United Kingdom will bo charged a1 the spplicablo intarnati

U 8.000m-5.30pm, iday oxcluding public holidoys
in England and Wales.)

Telephone outside United Kingdom:
+44(0) 371664 0300

Email: iri i co.uk

Website: linkassetservices.com

al rate.

to mandated accounts may wish to consider having their
dividends paid directly into their bank or building society
account. This has a number of advantages, including the
crediting of cleared funds into the nominated account
on the dividend payment date. If shareholders would like
their future dividends to be paid in this way, they should
complete a mandate instruction available from the
registrars. Under this arrangement tax vouchers are

sent to the shareholder’s registered address.

Advisors
Independent Auditor
BDOLLP

Brokers
Liberum
Peel Hunt

Bankers

Lloyds Banking Group Plc

The Royal Bank of Scotland Plc
Svenska Hande!sbanken AB (Publ)

Solicitors N
DLA Piper UK LLP
Bond Dickinson LLP
TLTLLP

Principal Valuers
Jones Lang LaSalle
CBRE

Corporate public relations
MHP Communications

Contact information
Registered office

Town Centre House

The Merrion Centre
Leeds LS2 BLY

- Registered number

623364 England

Email
info@tcs-ple.co.uk

Website
tes-ple.co.uk

Company Secretary
Link Company Matters
6th Floor

65 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7NQ

Registrar and transfer office
Link Asset Services

Trustees to mortgage debenture holders
Link Market Services Trustees Limited

cfo Apex Corporate Trustees (UK} Limited
6th Floor

125 Wood Street

London EC2V 7AN
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